
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Rochdale 
Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Monday, 27th February 2017

Dear Councillor

Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee, which will be held in Hollingworth 
Room B, First Floor, Council Offices, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale on Tuesday, 7th March 2017 commencing at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee 
Membership 2016/17
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 7th March 2017 at 6.15 pm

Hollingworth Room B, First Floor, Council Offices, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 4 - 6

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 7 - 11

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale Township 
Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee held 15th November 
2016.

3.  Central Rochdale Area Forum 12 - 20

Minutes of the meetings of the Area Forum held 7th November and 1st 
December 2016.

4.  Sparth Area Forum 21 - 22

Minutes of the meeting of the Area Forum held 1st December 2016.

5.  Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum 23 - 26

Minutes of the meeting of the Area Forum held 5th December 2016.

6.  Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum 27 - 31

Minutes of the meeting of the Area Forum held 5th December 2016



7.  Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum 32 - 37

Minutes of the meeting of the Area Forum held 8th December 2016.

8.  Healey Area Forum 38 - 44

Minutes of the meeting of the Area Forum held 8th December 2016.

9.  Kingsway Area Forum 45 - 52

Minutes of the meetings of the Area Forum held 8th December 2016 
and 16th February 2017.

10.  Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting 53 - 56

Minutes of the meeting of the Community Group held 13th December 
2016.

11.  Norden Area Forum 57 - 60

Minutes of the meeting of the Area Forum held 14th December 2016

12.  Spotland and Falinge Area Forum 61 - 65

Minutes of the meeting of the Area Forum held 15th December 2016

13.  Rochdale Township Clean and Green Priority Group 66 - 67

Minutes of the meeting held 15th December 2016

14.  Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority 
Group 

68 - 69

Minutes of the meeting held 21st December 2016

15.  Edenfield Road, Rochdale - Sandy Lane to Cutgate – 
Objections to Traffic Order 

70 - 101

16.  Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17 102 - 147



P
age 4

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 5



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 6



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 15th November 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Cecile Biant (Chair); Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Heakin, 
O'Neill, Sheerin, Sullivan, Winkler and Zaman.

OFFICERS:  V White and J Grahamslaw (Neighbourhoods Directorate), S Shahid 
(Resources Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  7 members of the public. 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Sultan Ali and Councillor Farnell.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
31 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Sheerin 
declared a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of agenda item 12 (RP/07/16 - 
Celebrate Rochdale Day at Touchstones) as he has been appointed by the Council 
to the Board of Link4Life.  Councillor Sheerin left the room during the consideration of 
the application. 

The Chair, Councillor Cecile Biant, declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
respect of item 12 (RP/10/16 – Heritage Wrought Iron Fencing) as she is on the 
Board of Friends of Denehurst Park.    Councillor Cecile Biant left the room during 
consideration of the application. 

MINUTES
32 DECIDED – that the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Committee held on 4th October 2016, be approved as a correct 
record. 

HEALEY AREA FORUM
33 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Healey Area Forum
held on 8th September 2016, be noted. 

NORDEN AREA FORUM
34 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Norden Area Forum
held on 14th September 2016, be noted. 

BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT COMMUNITY MEETING
35 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Balderstone and Kirkholt 
Community Meeting held on 20th September 2016, be noted. 

MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH AREA FORUM
36 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Milkstone and 
Deeplish Area Forum held on 26th September 2016, be noted. 

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
37 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Spotland and Falinge
Area Forum held on 29th September 2016, be noted. 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP CLEAN AND GREEN PRIORITY GROUP

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



38 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Clean and 
Green Priority Group held on 22nd September 2016, be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITIES AND ENGAGEMENT PRIORITY GROUP
39 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Clean and 
Green Priority Group held on 28th September 2016, be noted.

COMMUNITY CENTRE MONITORING
40 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
updating members on the community centre monitoring process for 2016.  Members 
were provided with information relating to quarter one (April, May and June 2016) 
and quarter two (July, August and September).

The Committee were advised that the monitoring process was first implemented in 
April 2012 to enable Members to monitor performance against the targets set by 
each community centre on a quarterly basis.  It was reported that the process had 
been reviewed and improved on an annual basis and more detailed information 
about the individual community centres would be made available upon request. 

The recommendation was put forward as community centres are delivering in relation 
to the Public Health indicators. Public Health team are satisfied and impressed with 
the work/activities being delivered by community centres.

DECIDED – that (1) the report be noted;
(2) that the current monitoring arrangements for community centres be 

continued.

Eligible for Call-in: no. 

ROCHDALE BLUE PLAQUE SCHEME
41 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
detailing the guidance criteria which could be used as a basis for making decisions 
about future nominations for public commemorative blue plaques based in the 
Rochdale Township area.

The recommendation was put forward as there was currently no blue plaque scheme 
for Rochdale Township.  This meant that no existing criteria could be used as a basis 
for assessing requests for blue plaques to commemorate local buildings, people and 
events.  On the 15th September 2016, Pennines Township Members approved a 
commemorative plaque scheme for the Pennines Township area.

Rochdale Borough Council receives requests for blue plaques from Members of the 
public and there was no effective and systematic approach for determining whether 
to approve such requests in the Rochdale Township.  

Establishing a blue plaque scheme for Rochdale Township and agreeing a criteria 
which could be used as a basis of assessment would preserve the interest of the 
blue plaque scheme locally and would ensure that decisions about nominations for 
blue plaques were consistent and sensitive to the local historical environment. 

DECIDED – that the report be noted;
(2) that the guidance criteria (as detailed in the submitted report) be 

approved and used as a framework and guidance for the assessments of blue 
plaque nominations. 

Page 8



Eligible for Call-in: no.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17
42 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods
which updated the Sub-Committee on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 
and balances of Rochdale Township Fund 2016/2017, to enable the Sub-Committee 
to allocate funds to proposed projects.

The recommendations contained in the report were presented as the management of
the Rochdale Township Fund was a function delegated to this Sub-Committee to
determine. The Rochdale Township Funds were designed to be allocated to projects
that benefit the Township’s communities and environment and which realise the
Township’s stated priorities. The Sub-Committee monitors and reviews the use of the 
Rochdale Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the
Township’s Funds.

The Sub-Committee were asked to note the expenditure, commitments and balances
for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1 and 2,
the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3 to the
submitted report and to consider and approve, defer or refuse the allocation of funds 
to proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4. 

Members of the Rochdale Township Action and Resource Sub-Committee were 
requested to note the Principal Townships Officer’s assessment of the proposed 
projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the Rochdale 
Township Fund, priorities of the Township and any specific risks identified.

Alternatives considered - in considering the report, Members were asked to decide
Whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects/schemes as appropriate. 

The Sub-Committee considered representations from Ms S Acton in relation to 
application RP/01/16 – Syke Chapel Parking Bays and TC/16/16 – Hamer Lane 
Loading Bay.

The Sub-Committee considered representations from Ms L O’Neill in relation to 
application RP/07/16. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered representations from Mr O’Brien in relation to 
application RP/11/16 – Rooley Moor Road Speed Surveys.

DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale
Township Revenue and Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the
submitted report be noted;

(2) the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed at
Appendix 3 of the submitted report be noted;

(3) it be noted that the Principal Township Officer had assessed the
proposed projects to be considered for funding, against the criteria of the
Rochdale Township Fund, priorities of the Township Plan and any specific
risks had been identified, (as detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report);

(4) the Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice Chair and opposition spokespersons of the Committee, be given
delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

(6) applications for Township Funds, (as outlined in appendix 4 of the
submitted report); and as, verbally updated by the Principal Township
Officer, be dealt with as follows:-

Page 9



APPLICANT PROJECT/SCHEME DECISION
Councillor O’Neill Syke Chapel Parking Bays 

Scheme. 
Approve an allocation of 
£2,500 from the Projects 
Fund for the Syke Chapel 
Parking Bay Scheme. 

Touchstones Celebrate Rochdale Day 
at Touchstones

Approve an allocation of 
£2,000 from the Projects 
Fund for the Celebrate 
Rochdale Day at 
Touchstones event

Rochdale AFC and GMP Spotland Stadium No 
Waiting Cones.

Approve an allocation of 
£1,500 from the Projects 
Fund for the Spotland 
Stadium No Waiting 
Cones.

Residents via the Spotland 
and Falinge Area Forum

Heritage Wrought iron 
Fencing project. 

The application for the 
Heritage Wrought Iron 
Fencing project be 
refused. 

Councillor Cecile Biant Rooley Moor Road Speed 
Surveys Scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£2,000 from the Projects 
Fund with a request to a) 
revise the costings and b) 
with a request to raise at 
TMU regarding the 
possibility of GMP 
supporting signage e.g. 
‘COMMUNITY CONCERN 
SPEED AREA’. 

Rochdale Air Training 
Cadets. 

Ashfield Road Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme.

The application for the 
Ashfield Road Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme be 
withdrawn. Ward 
Councillors be requested 
to visit the applicant to 
investigate alternative 
options and the applicant 
be invited to submit a 
revised application 

37th Rochdale Scouts Silk Street Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme.

The application for the Silk 
Street Waiting Restriction 
Scheme be refused. 

Local Business Hamer Lane Loading Bay 
Scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£4,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Hamer Lane 
Loading Bay Scheme. 

Resident Shawclough Road Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme.

The application for the 
Shawclough Road Waiting 
Restriction Scheme be 
refused.

Ward Councillor Longfield Road 20mph Approve an allocation of 

Page 10



Zone and Traffic Calming 
Measures Scheme. 

£8,940 from the Capital 
Fund for the Longfield 
Road 20mph Zone and 
Traffic Calming Measures 
Scheme. 

Ward Councillors Hill Street and Barlow 
Street Area Restrictions 
Scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£3,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Hill Street 
and Barlow Street Area 
Restrictions Scheme

Councillor Heakin Whitworth Road/Healey 
Lane Waiting Restrictions 
Scheme.

The application for the 
Whitworth Road/Healey 
Lane Waiting Restrictions 
Scheme be refused. 

Councillor Farnell Parking Bays at the rear of 
Town Hall Scheme.

Approve an allocation of 
£5,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Parking Bays 
at the rear of Town Hall 
Scheme.

Councillor Cecile Biant Ings Lane/Great Flats 
Parking Review Scheme.

Approve an allocation of 
£5,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Ings 
Lane/Great Flats Parking 
Review Scheme

Eligible for Call-in: yes.

Page 11



CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM

ST PATRICK’S RC PRIMARY SCHOOL
Monday, 7 November 2016

MINUTES

Present: R. Hartley, B. Lloyd (Chair), S. Delall, J. Murphy, S. Lisnys, N. Sunderland, F. Hunt and A. 
Miah.

Officers: PC. S. Firth (GMP) and G. Finch (Township and Engagement Officer)

Apologies: Councillor S. Ali

84 INTRODUCTIONS AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The meeting was chaired by Beryl Lloyd. Everyone was welcomed to the Forum and 
reminded to observe and respect the code of conduct for the duration of the meeting.

85 PACT MEETING - GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
PC Firth attended the meeting for this item.

The Forum was informed that the Ward had seen a significant increase in burglary’s in 
recent weeks. However a number of arrests had been made in connection with burglary’s in 
the Ward. A drug warrant had also been issued in relation to organised crime group 
activities.

The Police Constable in attendance commented that the Cronkeyshaw Common bonfire 
was very well attended and the public in general were very well behaved. Incidents of 
youths throwing fireworks on the night had to be dealt with and concerns in connection with 
the lack of Marshalls involved in the event, traffic management issues and local shops 
selling fireworks to young people would be reported via the appropriate channels.

The Forum was also informed that the local Neighbourhood Team had been involved in the 
recent murder in the Ward.

Residents raised the following issues:

- Drug dealing and speeding on Rugby Road.
- Illegal parking on Entwistle Road which causes an obstruction
- Speeding on John Street / Molesworth Street 

GMP would report accordingly and the Township and Engagement Officer would 
investigate the possibility of undertaking a traffic survey on John Street / Molesworth Street.

86 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS, MATTERS ARISING AND UPDATES
The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held on Monday 11th July 2016 at St 
Patrick’s Primary School were approved as a correct record.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held on Thursday 1st September 2016 at 
Wardleworth Community Centre were circulated for information and will be agreed at the 
Area Forum meeting to be held at Wardleworth Community Centre in December.

87 OPEN FORUM
The following issues were raised during the Open Forum:

1. Residents raised concerns about the lack of information available regarding the sale 
of the land opposite St Patrick’s RC Primary School and plans for its future use.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

2. A resident raised concerns about the way in which the construction of the building 
behind Rushi Restaurant had complied with the planning permission granted.

The Township and Engagement Officer acknowledged that this issue had been 
raised previously. The Forum was also informed that the building in question had 
been subject to legal intervention. However the reasons as to why this was 
necessary and the subsequent outcome was unknown.

3. Illegal tipping near to the allotments on Bay Street was reported.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to visit the site and report the 
incident.

4. A resident raised concerns about the amount of rubbish that has been discarded 
within the alleygated area between Greenbank Road and Maud Street.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to visit the site and report the 
incident.

5. A resident reported that street lighting column number 2 on Copenhagen Street was 
not working.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this fault.

6. Concerns were raised about traffic management issues on the night.of the bonfire on 
Cronkeyshaw Common. Residents of Greenbank Road, which is two way, quite 
narrow and used by residents for parking was chaotic with traffic on the night. It was 
asked if consideration could be given to introducing a one way system for future 
events supported by appropriate signage and Marshall assistance.

The Township & Engagement Officer agreed to forward this suggestion to the event 
organiser.

7. A resident queried what the industrial units on Dean Street would be used for. The 
units are surrounded by residential properties and a number of residents have raised 
concerns about the future use of the units.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

Page 13



8. Concerns were raised about anti-social behaviour on the land adjacent to Arif 
Grocers on Ramsay Street.

9. A resident highlighted parking problems / congestion on Regent Street.

10.A resident highlighted the following issues:

- Discarded materials on the footpath adjacent to Athena Roofing on Wilson Street.

- Littering problems on Lomax Street, adjacent to Harrison Electrical.

- Bins being left out outside 39 Howard Street.

- A damaged recycling centre sign / post on Haynes Street.

- The gully on Queen Street near to Banson Tool Hire is blocked.

           The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report the above 
            issues.

11.  A resident asked what the current position was on the planning application that had 
been submitted regarding the building of residential properties on Ramsay Street.

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he believed the 
planning application had been delayed, however the reasons for this were unknown.

12.A resident asked what the current situation was regarding the planning application 
that had been submitted for residential development on Red Lane / Park Road.

The Township and Engagement Officer was aware of the planning application but 
was unaware of the current position regarding the planning application. The 
Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this matter further.

13.The Township and Engagement Officer had received an email from a resident prior 
to the meeting identifying a number of issues. These were presented to the Forum:

- Some trees in the area are in need of trimming because they are obscuring street 
lights. 

- Fencing at the Bowling Club on Rugby Road has been pushed down and is 
showing exposed barbed wire.

- Some residents on Rugby Road are constantly discarding rubbish on the street.

- Graffiti on Rugby Road should be removed.

- Can there be more visits from Civil Enforcement Officers at school start and finish 
times. Concerns were raised about inconsiderate and illegal parking around St 
Patrick’s RC Primary School.

           The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report / investigate 
            the above issues.

Page 14



14.A resident asked if the Area Forums would continue considering the budget saving 
that had to be made by the Council.
 
The Township and Engagement Officer was not aware of any plans to 
stop area forum meetings. However because savings proposals included reductions 
in the number of Township support officer posts it was possible that Wards that had 
two area forums would see a reduction in area forum meetings.

88 WARD NEWS
No Ward news was presented.

89 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Thursday 1st December 2016 at 6.30pm

Wardleworth Community Centre

Page 15



CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM

WARDLEWORTH COMMUNITY CENTRE
Thursday, 1 December 2016

MINUTES

Present: H. Chaudry, A. Miah, G. Hussain, B. Lloyd (Chair), S. Lisnys, S. Danczuk MP,   M. Bany, 
A. Rashid, A. Khan and F. Hunt.

Officers:  R. Kilvington (Finance), Sergeant A. Nicholson (GMP), PC J. Butterworth (GMP), G. 
Finch (Township & Engagement Officer)

Apologies: Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, Councillor Sultan Ali, Councillor Ali Ahmed and Jim Murphy.

90 INTRODUCTIONS AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The meeting was chaired by Beryl Lloyd. Everyone was welcomed to the Forum and reminded to 
observe and respect the code of conduct for the duration of the meeting.

Apologies had been received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, Councillor Sultan Ali, Councillor Ali 
Ahmed and Jim Murphy.

91 PACT MEETING - GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Sergeant Nicholson and PC Butterworth attended the meeting for this item

It was reported that during the previous three months the following incidents had been reported:

Burglary (dwelling) 3
Burglary (other) 1
Theft from motor vehicle 7
Theft of motor vehicle 1
Criminal damage 7

The Forum was also informed that an individual was in police custody following the murder on Kellet 
Street

It was also acknowledged that crime figures for the Ward had increased significantly. However, it 
was explained that the method for recording crime figures had changed which could have an impact 
upon the figures being presented. In general the majority of incidents reported are of a public order, 
assault without injury and domestic violence nature.

Residents raised the following issues:

- Residents reported that drug dealing is taking place on Kitchen Street / Norris Street asking 
if dummy cameras could be erected.

Response: The Police would not support the installation of dummy cameras and encouraged 
residents to report incidents.

- Drug dealing on the land adjacent to Arif Grocers (Ramsay Street) was  reported.

Page 16



- Concerns over speeding was also raised. South Street and Ramsay Street were identified as 
problem areas

Response: A recent traffic operations (Entwistle Road area) had been undertaken in the 
Ward following concerns raised by residents about speeding in the area. As a result of these 
operations numerous drivers had been cautioned / issued with a penalty notice following 
offences being committed. Offences committed included – speeding, no insurance, no seat 
belts being worn, alcohol / drug use and mobile phone use. It was suggested that another 
traffic operation could be considered in the fiuture.

- Anti-social behaviour was reported on Maud Street / Rossall Road / Greenbank Road.

92 BUDGET CHALLENGE CONSULTATION
Rob Kilvington, Finance Manager, attended the meeting for this item.

It was explained to the Forum that the Council has faced significant financial challenges since 2011, 
the start of the austerity period and continues to do so. A film was screened which provided the 
following information:

 General information about the Council.
 The services the Council currently delivers.
 The financial challenges faced by the Council 
 How the Council has responded so far.
 What the Council is looking to do.
 An explanation of how residents have and can continue to contribute   to financial 

challenges going forward.

A general discussion took place about the effects austerity was having within the Ward. It was 
acknowledged that the situation would not change in the short term therefore voluntary and 
charitable organisations, rather than statutory ones, would play an ever important role in supporting 
individuals and the community. 

93 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING, MATTERS ARISING AND UPDATES
The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held at Wardleworth Community Centre on 
Thursday 1st September 2016 were approved as a correct record.

The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held at St Patrick’s RC Primary School on 
Monday 7th November 2016 were approved as a correct record.

The following updates were provided:

- Travellers Site

The Forum was informed that the traveller site on Bellfield Road was being provided as a temporary 
measure until a permanent site could be identified. The site was also classed as a temporary 
stopping site which limited the amount of time travellers could stay on the site.

- Footway adjacent to town centre taxi rank 

Following a concern raised by a resident about the height of the above footway the Forum was 
informed that the footway was replaced at the same height as the previous one following the 
transformation work that had recently been completed within the Town Centre. 

Page 17



- Neighbour nuisance

This issue had been reported.

- Lomax Street / Yorkshire Street litter bin.

The bin requested had been ordered.

- Disgarded rendering and portaloo near to Channings Childcare

The Township and Engagement Officer had visited the site and subsequently reported the issues 
raised. It should also be noted the land in question was Rochdale Boroughwide Housing land.

- Caravan – Whitehall Street

This had been reported and the caravan had moved.

- Alleygated area – Greenbank Road / Maud Street

This had been reported.

- Sale of land opposite St Patrick’s RC Primary School

The Forum was informed that Foxholes House and 180 Rugby Road were sold to Madrassar 
(Muslim Training Organisation). They are using the facilities as a training centre and 
accommodation for the Imams.

There is no legal requirement upon the Council to inform residents of land sales. The only time 
residents would be consulted would be in the scenario where a planning application for some 
material change of use or development was submitted.

- Illegal tipping on Bay Street

The site had been visited and tipping reported .

- Copenhagen Street lighting column not working

This had been reported and was now operational.

- Greenbank Road traffic management

Concerns over the above during Bonfire celebrations had been passed to the event organiser.

- Dean Street industrial units

Additional information regarding the industrial units had been passed to the resident who raised the 
issue at an earlier meeting.

- Discarded materials on the footpath adjacent to Athena Roofing on Wilson Street.

A site visit had been undertaken and subsequently reported.

- Littering problems on Lomax Street adjacent to Harrison Electrical.

A site visit had been undertaken and the littering problems have been reported. However it should 
be noted that the litter is on private property.

Page 18



- Bins being left out outside 39 Howard Street

A site visit was undertaken and the footpath on Howard Street was clear of bins.

- A damaged recycling centre sign / post on Haynes Street

A site visit had been undertaken and the issue had been reported.

- The gully on Queen Street near to Banson Tool Hire is blocked.

This had been reported.

- Current situation regarding planning application for residential development on Red Lane / 
Park Road.

The resident had been informed that the application had been refused.

- Trees on Rugby Road need trimming

A site visit had been undertaken and the resident informed that the trees in question were not 
having a negative impact on the lighting in the area.

- Fencing at Bowling Club has fallen down and is showing exposed barbed wire.

The resident has been informed that the land in question is leased by the Bowling Club from the 
Council. However it is unclear who has responsibility for the fencing. Investigations continue.

- Discarded rubbish on Rugby Road.

This has been reported.

- Graffiti on Rugby Road

A site visit has been undertaken and graffiti had been found. However in both cases the graffiti was 
on private property (a gate and a BT box).

- Civil Enforcement Officers should visit schools at start and finish times to deter inconsiderate 
and illegal parking.

The resident had been informed that Civil Enforcement Officer attended schools throughout the 
borough on a rota basis to deal with parking related problems. However there are over 70 schools 
within the borough and only 13 Civil Enforcement Officers.

94 OPEN FORUM
Residents raised the following issues:

- A resident commented that he believed that the timing of the traffic lights at the Townhead 
Junction when turning right from Yorkshire Street to Whitworth Road should be extended.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this.

- A resident raised concerns about the condition of the footway and highway on Brookland 
Avenue.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this.

Page 19



- A resident raised concerns about the traffic congestion in the area around Dean Street, Cook 
Street and Cliff Street. This could become more problematical as a number of industrial units 
were being erected in the area.

The Township and Engagement Officer would investigate if any parking restrictions were planned 
for the area as a consequence of the industrial units being constructed.

- Lighting column number 2, South Court, South Street is not working.

This would be reported.

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that because of proposals to reduce 
administrative support within the Township Team it would not be possible to circulate paper copies 
of the agenda prior to the meeting and that it would be necessary to consider different ways of 
advertising / publicising area forum meetings to residents.

In addition Central Area Forum meetings would from January 2017 take place at Wardleworth 
Community Centre. 

A general discussion took place about the possibility of using a number of different venues for the 
four Area Forum meetings that take place over a twelve month period. It was agreed that this topic 
should be revisited at a future meeting.

95 WARD NEWS
No Ward Councillors were present at the meeting therefore no Ward news was provided.

96 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Wardleworth Community Centre
Thursday 9th March 2017
6.30pm – 8.30pm

Page 20



SPARTH AREA FORUM

Thursday 1 December 2016
Sparth Community Centre, Norman Road,

Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: K. Farrar (Chair), B. Hasny, J. Howarth, S. O’Connor, J. Hussain, M. Mohammed, 
L. Al, B. Morgan, H. Zameer, H. Nasir and M. Ahmed

Officers: R. Hudson (Townships) and PCSO T Anderton (GMP)

Councillors: Councillor M. Zaman

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND CODE OF CONDUCT
All were welcomed to the meeting and introductions took place.  The Chair referred to the code of 
conduct and asked all to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.

Apologies were received from Councillors Brett and Zaheer, A. Hoque (Youth Service), S. Ahmed, 
N. Edge, G. Rushton and J. Lord.

2. MINUTES FROM LAST MEETING
The minutes of the last meeting were approved as a correct record.

3. MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES
No matters arising.

Previous matters raised:

Mandale Park
N. Afzal (Environmental Management) is looking at working with residents to secure funding to 
develop Mandale Park and other areas.  A meeting to be held on 17 January 2017 at 10.30am at 
the Sparth Community Centre about the bid.

4. GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - PACT MEETING
The stats for Sparth area for the dates September/October/November (figures produced after the 
area forum):

3 x Burglary dwellings (All October)
2 x Burglary other (November)
2 x Theft from motor vehicle (September)

No drug offences have been recorded.

GMP advised residents to be extra vigilant as there is a huge increase in Town Centre pick-pockets, 
especially in card shops due to lack of CCTV installed.

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



You should always call 999 in an emergency.
Call 101 to report a non-emergency incident or make a general enquiry.
You can contact your local neighbourhood team by telephone or email:

 Telephone: 0161 856 8549
 Email: rochdalenorth@gmp.police.uk
 Crimestoppers: 0800 555111

5. OPEN FORUM
Kick pitch lights
Issue was raised regarding the frequency of the lights being lit on the kick pitch.  K. Farrar advised 
the forum more people are needed to take responsibility for switching them on and off as he cannot 
man it every day of the week. A member of the local community who is experienced in switching 
them on will be contacted.

Mellor Street/Dane Street Junction
Resident queried whether Highways could implement a yellow painted boxed junction at the Mellor 
Street/Dane Street junction (coming out of Sparth approach).

Councillors Report
 Councillor Zaman advised the forum of the regular local surgeries at Sparth Community Centre 

that take place on the third Saturday of the month between 11-12pm.
 Gasworks Demolition – all structures are now down and Councillor Zaman is hopeful a planning 

application will be secured in the future for housing regeneration in this area.
 Any issues for Clean & Green/HIT Team for refuse/fly-tipping can be forwarded to local 

Councillors/Township office.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Sparth Community Centre AGM
The forum was informed the Sparth Community Centre AGM will take place on Thursday 8 
December 2016 at 2pm and they were encouraged to join the management group/have their say.

Township Officer attendance
The Chair advised the forum a Township Officer will no longer attend the Sparth Area Forum due to 
a reduction in staff within the department as a result of the Council’s savings proposals.  Support will 
still be available from the Township Officer on issues raised at the forum.  A Township Officer will 
continue to attend the Milkstone & Deeplish Area Forum held at Deeplish Community Centre.

7. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Thursday 23 March 2017 at 6.30pm in Sparth Community Centre

Page 22



BAMFORD AND OAKENROD AREA FORUM

Monday 5 December 2016
Bamford Chapel, Norden Road, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: I. Sturrock (Chair), B. Colligan, H. Colligan, W.L. Brown, A. Teuton, S. Grindrod, 
D. Stevenson, J. Stevenson, S. Amin, M. Spiteri, B. Woodburn, L. Reid, C. Reid, K. Smith, A. Smith, 
R. Doyle, R. Mallinder, D. Armbrister, B. Taylor, S. Nangle, S. Bleakley, P. Bleakley and
S. Cresswell

Councillors: Ian Duckworth

Officers: Rochdale Council: S. Hay (Township), D. Lodwig (Community Safety) and T. Buckley 
(Finance) and GMP: PCSOs Colin Taylor and Lauren Whelan

Apologies: Councillor Jane Howard, Councillor Pat Sullivan (both at Planning and Licensing 
Committee), Graham Morris, David Moss, Patricia Moss and Brenda Griffiths

1. WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting.

2. CODE OF CONDUCT
A copy of the code of conduct was circulated with the papers, and all were asked to abide by the 
code for the duration of the meeting.

3. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the last meeting held on Monday 5 September 2016 were agreed as an accurate 
record and the following updates were given.

Blocked drains
The Officer dealing with the Bury Road culvert made contact with the complainant direct.

Murrayfield Potholes
The pot holes on Murrayfield and at its junction with Norden Road have been repaired but the road 
remains uneven with dips in and will be further reported to Highways.

Mojitos
Head of Licensing tasked out visits to Mojitos Wine Bar to deal with drinking outside, on the 
pavement and the resultant noise.

Bamford Green
The cost of installing matching bird beak fencing around the remainder of Bamford Green would be 
£5,650.  Other cheaper and less aesthetic alternatives could be considered such as wooden 
bollards at £25 each or boulders at £100 each but these as previously reported have maintenance 
liabilities and been discounted.

Northdene Drive, Rochbury Close & Bury Road Footpath & Street Light
The footpath from Northdene Drive to Rochbury Close to Bury Road has been cleaned and the 
street light at the end of the path repaired.

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



4. POLICE AND COMMUNITIES TOGETHER
The Police advised there is an ongoing investigation, following a very recent Police pursuit, into a 
road traffic collision on Sandy Lane involving a stolen motor vehicle in which two females were 
injured.

Burglary dwelling continues to be the Ward Police And Community Together meeting priority as is 
speeding motor vehicles.

In the last three months there have been eleven burglaries in September, mostly committed 
between 1300 to 1630 hours, ten in October mostly overnight and twelve in November.  The method 
of entry is via forcing rear patio doors and windows with the hotspots being along the Bury Road 
corridor.  Operations are in place to tackle the issue and Patrol Plans will cover the hotspot areas.  
There have been six burglars arrested recently and current intelligence suggests offenders are a 
mixture of locals and out of towners.  All were urged to report any suspicious circumstances.

Speeding initiatives took place on Norden Road on 22 September in which three offenders were 
prosecuted for not wearing a seat belt, four for using mobile phones and twenty one advised for 
speeding. On 13 October five were prosecuted for not wearing a seat belt, ten for using mobile 
phones and ten advised for speeding.  There was a strong opinion that drivers using mobile phones 
for any reason should be severely punished with an example given of a lorry driver receiving a 
twelve year custodial sentence for killing a pedestrian whilst using a phone.

A Community Speed Day took place in November on Bury Road and there was a request to conduct 
further speeding initiatives on Bury Road preferably during the evening.  PCSO Taylor will look into 
this matter.  Publicity after speeding initiatives is conducted via social media.

The 20mph speed limit at Bamford Academy School is permanently in operation and is not 
restricted to school times.

Police advised where vehicles are parked near to junctions the Police could consider prosecuting for 
causing an obstruction; each case is decided on its own merits.  Rochdale Council Enforcement 
Officers can only take action where parking restrictions are in place.

Police reported there have been some thefts from persons at Heywood Morrison’s where shoppers 
are distracted by one offender whilst another does the stealing from handbags.  There was a theft of 
motor vehicle at Aldi where the owner was distracted at the back of the car and another offender 
drove off in the vehicle.

A user of an Automated Cash Machine was distracted by being told he had dropped some money, 
whilst his actual money was stolen.  Watch word is stay vigilant.

Vehicles parked on a cycle lane can only be enforced by Rochdale Council Enforcement Officers if 
a Traffic Regulation Order is in place; in the absence of an Order the lane is advisory.  PCSO Taylor 
will check the GMP policy on prosecuting for an obstruction and enquiries will be made with 
Highways as to whether any cycle lanes in the Borough are covered by a Traffic Regulation Order.

5. POSSABILITIES HOMESHARE
Mathilde Vautier from PossAbilities Homeshare outlined the three year Lottery funded scheme 
launched on 17 July 2016.  Homeshare is a householder who has a spare room plus a home sharer 
who provides support in return.  The householder is willing to let someone live with them in return 
for ten hours of personalised social support which might be shopping, cleaning, going out for a 
meal, gardening or whatever the householder thinks would give them a better quality of life.  The 
home sharer benefits from access to cheap accommodation and providing activities that can 
enhance their C.V.  Householders and home sharers pay a small monthly management fee for the 
arrangement to be supervised and ensure the safety of both parties.  A first match has been made 

Page 24



in Heywood and it is reported to be going very well with a second imminent.  The scheme covers the 
whole of Greater Manchester and any home owner is eligible.  Safety is paramount and all parties 
are checked, interviewed and two references required before clearance.  The first meeting of the 
parties is supervised and all arrangements are monitored.  For more information visit the website 
www.possabilities.org.uk, telephone 01706 626747 or email homeshare@possabilities.org.uk

6. ROCHDALE COUNCIL BUDGET CHALLENGE
A presentation on Rochdale Council’s current savings proposals was given by Tim Buckley, 
Rochdale Council Finance Manager.  The proposals can be viewed on the Council’s website 
www.rochdale.gov.uk/savings and comments can be submitted to consultation@rochdale.gov.uk or 
post to Freepost RTKH-UCCB-JSJU, Rochdale Borough Council, Public Consultation, PO Box 100, 
Rochdale OL16 9NP. Consultation closes at 1700 hours on Monday 9 January 2017.

7. OPEN FORUM
Green belt land
Serious concerns were expressed at the last forum about a resubmitted planning application to build 
a house approximately sixteen times larger than an average sized house on green belt land at the 
back of land at the junction of Norden Road and Bury and Rochdale Old Road.  Comments were 
made about the loss of Rochdale’s green belt land and precedent setting for further developments.  
A hand out was made available to all giving further detail and location.  There was an overwhelming 
consensus that this development does not fit any of the criteria to allow it to proceed on green belt 
land.  The original application was supported by a Planning Officer but was refused at Committee.  
Councillor Duckworth put forward a very good case against the development.  The resubmitted 
application saw a minimal reduction in size only to approximately fifteen times the size of an 
average sized house.  Field number 574 on the plan is not currently used but does support wildlife.  
Any development is a matter of taste, but some considered this proposal resembled a large pre fab 
and it is totally out of character for the area.

Two hundred and fifty people attended a meeting in November at Bamford Chapel about the Spatial 
Framework proposals following The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
promoting the sale and use of green belt land.  At this meeting it was very clearly stated by all that 
the development of green belt land is not wanted in Bamford and that precious green space must be 
protected.

Another meeting took place last Friday at the Bowling Club when an Action Committee on the 
development of green belt land was set up and they agreed a full and comprehensive objection 
report on all points will be submitted.  All were urged in any case to submit individual objections and 
comments and the importance of so doing stressed to protect the area for our children and our 
children’s children. There will be media coverage of the campaign.  Councillor Duckworth attended a 
Greater Manchester Conservative Council Leaders meeting last week at which Tory Mayoral 
candidate, Sean Anstee, was present.  Councillor Duckworth made very clear his views against the 
acquisition of green belt land.

All Spatial Framework documents can be views on the Council’s website or in Libraries and the 
Council’s Spatial Framework consultation events are being held between 3.30pm and 6.30pm on 
Wednesday 7 December 2016 at The Phoenix Centre, Heywood, Thursday 8 December 2016 at 
Milnrow Cricket Club and Monday 12 December 2016 at Middleton Library.

Consultation ends at 5pm on Friday 23 December 2016.  Comments can be submitted to 
strategic.planning@rochdale.gov.uk, telephone 01706 924252 or write to Strategic Planning, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU.

The Ward Councillors hold a surgery from 10am to 11am on the first Thursday of each month here 
in Bamford Chapel (although they often go beyond 11am).  Ward Councillors contact details are 
available on the Council website:

Page 25

mailto:strategic.planning@rochdale.gov.uk


Councillor Ian Duckworth
Telephone: 01706 648393
Email: ian.duckworth@rochdale.gov.uk

Councillor Jane Howard
Telephone: 07870 172144
Email: jane.howard@rochdale.gov.uk

Councillor Pat Sullivan
Telephone: 0161 762 1129 or 07967 985240
Email: patricia.sullivan@rochdale.gov.uk

Rochdale Borough Council Officers:
Stuart Hay, Township Officer
Telephone: 01706 922230
Email: stuart.hay@rochdale.gov.uk

Diane Lodwig, Crime & Anti Social Behaviour Prevention Officer, Community Safety
Telephone: 01706 922226
Email: diane.lodwig@rochdale.gov.uk

8. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Monday 6 March 2017 at 6.30pm in Bamford Chapel

Page 26



MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH AREA FORUM
Monday, 5 December 2016

MINUTES

Present: S. Ahmad, Farhan, Shahid, H. Ali, Badar, A. Beasley, F. Mian. M. Ahmed, M. Hussain, S. 
Ahmed, A. Mahmood, M. Yasin, M. Younas, K. Shanket, Y. Mahmood, M. Saleem, H. Ikram, M. 
Khan, S. Iqbal and S. Mohammed (Chair)

Officers: S. Reay, Highway Services Manager, T. Bland, Finance Manager, G. Finch, Township 
and Engagement Officer, Sergeant Shirazi and PCSO’s Anderton, Beever, Nasir and Aziz.(GMP)

Councillors: Councillor M. Zaman

Apologies: Councillors Brett and Zaheer and John Beasley

69 INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair of the Area Forum, Shahid Mohammed welcomed all to the meeting and asked that the 
Code of Conduct be adhered to throughout the meeting.

Apologies had been received from Councillor Zaheer and Councillor Brett and John Beasley.

70 GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
The following GMP representatives attended the meeting for this item:
Sergeant Shirazi and PCSO’s Anderton, Beever, Nasir and Aziz.

The Forum was informed that over the last three months GMP has concentrated on drug dealing, 
prostitution and anti-social behaviour within the Ward.

Drug dealing – There has been two successful arrests in the Ward for intent to supply and it is 
hoped that the individuals arrested will receive custodial sentences.

A cannabis farm was also located and arrests have been made as a result of this operation.

Prostitution – Operation Streetshield has been in operation for some time around Lincoln Street, 
Lincoln Close, Durham Street and other residential areas.

Eight individuals have been cautioned for kerb crawling with one prostitute also receiving a caution.

It was explained that GMP’s approach in dealing with prostitution was to initially offer help and 
assistance followed by warnings and then cautions.

It was explained that prostitution numbers had dropped significantly in the Ward, however it was 
acknowledged that a number of prostitutes are travelling into Rochdale from other areas.

Anti-social behaviour – This is an ongoing issue within the Ward. Problems are usually caused by 
street drinkers with Drake Street being a particular problem area. GMP reassured the Forum that 
efforts were being made to manage this issue.

Some residents raised concerns about speeding in the Ward. GMP agrred that a traffic operation 
could be considered in the new year.

The Forum was reminded that it was important to report incidents, primarily on the 101 number 
although concerns could also be raised at Councillor surgeries

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



It was agreed that the priorities for the Ward for the next three months should be – anti-social 
behaviour, prostitution and drug dealing.

71 MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
The minutes of the Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum held on Monday 26th September 2016 were 
approved as a correct record.

The following updates were provided:

- Introduction of one-way traffic system on Exeter Street

Although this request had been reported it was unlikely that anything would change in the 
short term.

- Current situation regarding double yellow lines on Manchester Road (Old)

Situation ongoing

- Introduction of a car parking bay adjacent to the fire station (Maclure Road)

The Council does not support the introduction of individual car parking bay requests. 
However a further investigation would be undertaken to understand the current Traffic 
Regulation Order that operates within the area.

- Why have concrete blocks been placed in Broadfield Park.

The blocks have been placed there to deter theft of York Stone from the area.

- Repair of road surface on Great George Street

According to the information received the area was inspected on the 17th October with the 
work expected to be completed within 20 days.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

- Introduction of signage adjacent to Rochdale Railway Station / Metrolink stop welcoming 
people to Rochdale.

Reported – no progress.

- Process involved in initiating a paupers funeral.

The Forum was informed that no action had been taken with this as press reports had 
indicated that donations from the community had helped with funeral costs.

A resident asked what the current situation was regarding the Madina Cash and Carry cash 
machine.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this.

- The Chair asked if Rochdale Environmental Action Group could be contacted to see if they 
have tidied the green area on Cheltenham Street.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to do this.

Page 28



72 OPEN FORUM
The first part of the Open Forum was dedicated to Highway issues as Steve Reay, Highway 
Services Manager attended the meeting for this item.

A general discussion took place regarding residents’ general dissatisfaction 
with a number of highway related issues, for example; congestion and lack of parking capacity.

Specific issues raised included:

- Poor road surface on Vine Place

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to visit the site and report accordingly.

- Street sign missing on Vine Place

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this.

- Could a one way system be introduced on Exeter Street

It is difficult to deal with individual requests for Highway alterations as any changes made 
could potentially have a knock on effect elsewhere. 

- Is the sharp bend on Milkstone Road / Tweedale Street going to be made less dangerous

The Forum was informed that there were no plans to reconfigure the above junction.

- A petition was submitted on behalf of residents on Devon Street who were requesting the 
introduction of residential parking bays.

It was acknowledged that there are a number of problems with regards to congestion and 
parking capacity within the Ward. It was also accepted that residents can suffer as a result of 
commuters parking in the Ward. As a consequence of this a ‘Beat’ survey was currently 
being undertaken in the Ward to determine the extent of this problem and attempt to quantify 
the number of commuters who travel and park in the Ward. Areas near to the train station 
were cited as particularly problematical.

It was suggested that the only way to resolve many of the Highway problems encountered 
within the Ward would be to introduce parking zones whereby residents would be entitled to 
two parking permits per household to park in a particular zone. This would not mean that 
residents were entitled to park outside their homes but within a zone. It was argued that if 
parking zones were introduced other factors could then be considered, for example the 
introduction of one-way systems. It was also explained that should parking zones be 
considered consultation with residents would be necessary. A £25 charge would also be 
payable by residents for parking permits.

In general the reaction of the Forum to this suggestion was positive.

In response to a question it was advised that a project of this nature could take 12 – 18 
months to introduce.

Other questions raised in relation to Highway issues included:

- What can be done about parking on pavements

The police can take enforcement action if parking is deemed as dangerous or causing an 
obstruction.

Page 29



Non-related Highway questions raised during the Open Forum included:

- A resident commented that her fence on Vine Place was being constantly damaged and that 
it was becoming increasingly difficult for her to obtain insurance cover. She asked if the 
Council could assist in anyway.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to visit the site.

- Concerns were raised about the illegal dumping that is occurring on land on Durham Street.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to visit the site.

Councillor Zaman encouraged residents to visit Ward Councillor Surgeries to discuss / raise 
issues. Details of surgery dates and times are below:

First Saturday of each month
10.00am – 11.00am at Deeplish Community Centre, Hare Street, Rochdale

11.00am – 12.00 noon at Sudden Community Centre, Cheltenham Street, Rochdale
Third Saturday of each month

10.00am – 11.00am at Castlemere Community Centre, Tweedale Street, Rochdale

11.00am – 12.00 noon at Sparthbottom Community Centre, Norman Road, Rochdale

No appointments necessary, just drop in at any of the above centres during the surgery times

73 ROCHDALE COUNCIL BUDGET CHALLENGE
Tracey Bland, Finance Manager attended the meeting for this item.

It was explained to the Forum that the Council has faced significant financial challenges since 2011, 
the start of the austerity period and continues to do so. Forum members were provided with the 
following information:

 General information about the Council.
 The services the Council currently delivers.
 The financial challenges faced by the Council 
 How the Council has responded so far.
 What the Council is looking to do.
 An explanation of how residents have and can continue to contribute   to financial 

challenges going forward.

A general discussion took place about the effects financial and service reductions were having in 
the Ward and the fact that many households in the area where finding it difficult to make ends meet. 

74 RECYCLING IN THE WARD
Neil Maver, Waste and Recycling Programme Delivery Manager attended the meeting for this item.

The Forum was informed that there had been significant improvements in recycling rates in the 
borough and specifically the Milkstone and Deeplish Ward since the introduction of the new 
Recycling Strategy.

In 2014/2015 Rochdale was positioned 8th out of nine Greater Manchester Authorities in relation to 
recycling rates.

Page 30



Over a 12 month period:

Kerbside recycling has increased by 21% between April and October 2016.
Bio-waste has increased by 32% between April and October 2016
Residual waste is down by 19% between April and October 2016
Disposal costs across the borough have reduced by approximately £1.83million

The Forum was also informed that a number of projects / initiatives had been introduced to engage 
with community groups and multi-faith groups. However it was acknowledged that more needs to be 
within the community to continue taking recycling in the right direction and plans were in place to 
undertake more community engagement, more engagement with women and a pre-Ramadan 
initiative 

75 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Deeplish Community Centre
Monday 20th March 2017
6.30pm – 8.30pm

Page 31



BRIMROD, MARLAND AND SUDDEN
AREA FORUM

Thursday 8 December 2016
Brimrod Methodist Church, Roch Valley Way,

Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: B. Hudson (Chair), B. Frost, D. Frost, F. Hamer, M. Hamer, N. Thorndyke, R. Coles, 
J. Walker, A. Spencer, M. Bibby, D. Logan, I. Birchenough, D. Hall, S. Walker, K. Huggett, J. Welby, 
S. Whitehead, M. Vautier, B. Goodwin, M.K. Brawn, G. Birch, L. Stansfield, S. Marsh and
L. Bamford.

Officers: Rochdale Borough Council: S. Hay (Townships), N. Rogers (Business Engagement 
and Compliance), M. Ashworth (Finance Manager) and Diane Lodwig (Community Safety)
GMP: Sergeant Rhys Ibbotson

Councillors: Jane Howard and Pat Sullivan

Apologies: Azizul Hoque, Councillor Ian Duckworth, Councillor James Gartside and Jim Watson

1. WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES
Introductions were made and all were welcomed to the meeting.

2. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair referred to the code of conduct and asked all to abide by the code for the duration of the 
meeting.

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the previous meeting on Thursday 8 September 2016 were agreed, noting that in the 
Springfield Park update the planned work on the Commemorative Gardens should read £12,000 
and not £17,000 and the following updates were given.

Half Acre Lane
Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee rejected the scheme to close Half Acre Lane 
and no alternatives were presented by the Head of Highways.  The grass verge work is scheduled 
by the contractor to start week commencing 16 January 2017.

Holborn Street Area
Highways have been chased up several times for a report on the state of the junction at Holborn 
Street with Mayfair Gardens.  Councillor Sullivan has met the Highways Portfolio Holder on site and 
the junction is to be further inspected pending resurfacing in the 2018-19 Forward Programme.

Further substantial fly tipping has been reported with photographs and it has been all cleaned up 
again.  Many thanks to Bruce Goodwin for his efforts to keep the area clean and tidy.  Permanently 
left out bins were dealt with again.  A resident had recovered correspondence from a pile of fly 
tipping which contains more paperwork that could help identify the fly tippers.  The correspondence 
will be forwarded to Rochdale Council’s Enforcement Section with a request to have the fly tipping 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



inspected and removed together with further fly tipping on Finsbury Street.  Diane Lodwig outlined 
the evidential requirements to make a successful prosecution.  Sergeant Ibbotson undertook to 
place the area in the Neighbourhood Policing patrol plan.

Highway rights to the rear of numbers 2 to 8 Southdown Crescent had been established and the 
complainant advised on procedures for closure.

4. POLICE AND COMMUNITIES TOGETHER
Sergeant Ibbotson outlined the crime figures for the last three months.  He confirmed his team have 
had success in tackling burglaries having arrested six prolific offenders, four of whom are remanded 
in custody, and the team have solved numerous burglaries.  The burglary crime figures reflect this 
as there had been three burglaries in September, two in October and four in November.  GMP 
cadets have been leafleting the area.

Speeding initiatives have been carried out on Bury Road and more are planned including on 
Southdown Close.

Problem parking at Oulder Hill shops was raised.  Councillor Sullivan outlined the plans to properly 
mark out the highway boundary with the shop curtilages and introduce a Traffic Regulation Order to 
limit parking to three hours.  This plan is supported by GMP and the shopkeepers.

5. POSSABILITIES HOMESHARE
PossAbilities Homeshare is a three year lottery funded scheme launched on 17 July 2016.  
Homeshare is a householder who has a spare room plus a home sharer who provides support in 
return.  The householder is willing to let someone live with them in return for ten hours of 
personalised social support which might be shopping, cleaning, going out for a meal, gardening or 
whatever the householder thinks would give them a better quality of life.  The home sharer benefits 
from access to cheap accommodation and providing activities that can enhance their C.V.  
Householders and home sharers pay a small monthly management fee for the arrangement to be 
supervised and ensure the safety of both parties.  A first match has been made in Heywood and it is 
reported to be going very well with a second imminent.  The scheme covers the whole of Greater 
Manchester and any home owner is eligible.  Safety is paramount and all parties are checked, 
interviewed and two references required before clearance.  The first meeting of the parties is 
supervised and all arrangements are monitored.  For more information visit the website 
www.possabilities.org.uk, telephone 01706 626747 or email homeshare@possabilities.org.uk

6. ROCHDALE COUNCIL BUDGET CHALLENGE
Rochdale Council Finance Manager, Michelle Ashworth, outlined the current savings proposals and 
gave a presentation.  The proposals can be viewed on the Rochdale Council’s website and 
commented online at consultation@rochdale.gov.uk or by post to Freepost RTKH-UCCB-JSJU, 
Rochdale Borough Council, Public Consultation, PO Box 100, Rochdale OL16 9NP.  Consultation 
closes on Monday 9 January 2017 at 5pm.

A discussion took place on the conflicting demands of an ever increasing population versus the 
reduction of services.  Opinions on what should be cut differed between individuals, hence the need 
for all to give their views.

7. OPEN FORUM
Nicola Rogers (Rochdale Council Service Manager for Business Engagement and Compliance) had 
a survey conducted in to the former High Birch School site and this week posted out the summary of 
investigations results and recommendations.  This information was made available to all at the 
meeting and Nicola went through in detail as follows:

Background
The former High Birch School site is in the Marland area of the borough, and measures 
approximately 1 hectare.

Page 33

mailto:consultation@rochdale.gov.uk


The site was sold by Rochdale Council to a private owner in December 2010.

In 2011 the school was demolished in preparation for a housing development. However, planning 
permission was declined and the rubble and other waste materials, associated with the former 
school buildings were left on site.

Following complaints regarding the demolition rubble on site, a record search was undertaken and 
other enforcement agencies were contacted (the Health and Safety Executive and the Environment 
Agency). This suggested that some asbestos was removed from site prior to demolition but 
discrepancies in reports left the possibility that asbestos/asbestos containing materials could be left 
on site within the demolition rubble.

In September 2016 the Council funded an investigation in accordance with Part 2A of the 1990 
Environmental Protection Act, this involved:
 excavating nine pits (up to 1.5m deep) around the site,
 taking samples from the pits and surface for further analyses (14 in total),
 monitoring the air around the pits for any airborne contaminants released by the sampling 

process.

What did the survey find?
The survey found the presence of asbestos containing materials in four samples from two different 
locations. Theses samples were taken from depths ranging from 5cm to 70cm.

In two of the samples the level of asbestos fibres was below detection. The other two contained 
asbestos fibres above the level of detection.

No airborne fibres were found during air monitoring.

The survey also found elevated levels of another contaminant, benzo(a)pyrene. This is probably 
associated with the lumps of coal and asphalt which are present on the site.

What does this mean?
The results suggest that the risk of asbestos fibres being released off site is considered low. The 
chances of fibres being released are reduced due to the asbestos being bound in soil and the 
vegetation on site.

When making a decision about what to do next we need to consider the potential for:
 Asbestos fibres being transported off the site by wind.
 The public transferring ground materials off the site on their footwear.

During the survey, airborne monitoring did not detect the presence of asbestos fibres. It is therefore 
considered unlikely that fibres would leave the site during normal conditions.

It is possible that public accessing the site could move soil materials offsite on their footwear.

Therefore precautionary measures are considered appropriate. 

What precautionary measures are being recommended?
The best solution for the site would be development, however, until this is undertaken the site 
should be secured by adequate fencing to prevent public access. It should also break any pathway 
the contamination could follow from the site to the wider area.

Stopping people from accessing the site would also prevent exposure to the other identified 
contaminant on the site.

Page 34



What happens now?
As the site is privately owned it is the responsibility of the site owner to undertake the precautionary 
works.

The Council has contacted the site owner and requested suitable fences are installed to prevent 
unauthorised access.

If an agreement is not obtained the Council will undertake work to secure the site and regain its 
costs.

When the site is developed in future, the results of this investigation will inform the planning process 
and suitable measures will have to be undertaken to enable the whole site to be developed.

What should I do?
The public are advised not to enter the site. If you know anyone who does visit the site please 
advise them not to do so.

Who should I contact if I have any questions?
If you have any further questions regarding the survey please contact HighBirch@rochdale.gov.uk

The following list of written questions was submitted at the start of the meeting by Ian Birchenough 
and a copy made available to all:

Questions regarding the High Birch Site

In the time between the sale of the property and its demolition, a number of fires were 
deliberately started in the building:

a) Is it possible that asbestos fibres were airborne as a result of those fires and if so how 
large an area might have been affected.

b) Since no duty of care was exercised during the demolition, is it possible that asbestos 
fibres were airborne during the demolition work?

c) Since 2011 to date, ie from point of fires being started to the point at which the survey pits 
were dug, is it possible that asbestos from the site might have become airborne for 
example on a very windy day or as a result of physical movements by vehicles on the site.

d) Since it can take 20 years for the signs of asbestos inhalation to become apparent, how 
does RMBC intent to ensure that residents’ health will be screened and protected going 
forward?

e) As this area now represents a threat to the health and well-being of the local population 
and the chances of the land ever being used for building seem remote, what steps does 
RMBC intend to take to reimburse residents for the loss of value and amenity to their 
properties?

f) Given that local residents’ fears about asbestos disposal on the site were not taken 
seriously by RMBC (since it has taken over 4 years to even check out the claims) who has 
been responsible for the non-pursuance of this case and what disciplinary measures have 
been taken against them?

g) Was there any "prior approval application" before demolition took place?  It would appear 
that asbestos known to be on the site was not properly removed or simply left on site.

a) When the site was sold by RMBC, what caveats were included in the terms of sale to 
ensure the asbestos would be properly and safely removed?

b) At the planning meeting in 2012 the authority seemed unconcerned/ignorant of the 
fact that local residents were convinced that the asbestos had not been properly 
removed. Why was the work recently carried out, not undertaken at the time? And 
why was the RMBC representative at the planning meeting unable to satisfy requests 
from residents to see suitable asbestos removal certificates?

c) Did RMBC draw up a suitable "demolition of premises" plan in conjunction with the 

Page 35



new site owner? knowing that there was asbestos present and given the age of the 
building that there was a probability that benzo (a) pyrene, a carcinogenic (lung 
cancer) material could well be present in the tar used to surface the school play area 
which was probably originally made from the residual tar from the local town gas 
facility?

d) What COSH requirements were put on the developer in terms of his use and storage 
of diesel and other chemicals on the site as a condition of sale?

e) Did RMBC take into account the proximity of a nearby secondary school in its 
demolition requirement plan, ie by stopping demolition at times when children were 
arriving or leaving school?

f) Following the demolition of the school, the site owner started a large fire on-site on 
5th November 2012 or thereabouts (residual burnt timbers could be seen for many 
months afterwards). Is it possible that a large bonfire could cause asbestos fibres to 
become airborne?

g) Several trees with protection orders have been badly damaged or cut down entirely, 
what correspondence has RMBC had with the developer about this abuse and what 
legal steps have been taken against the site owner as a result?

What happens now?
a) Is it the opinion of RMBC that this site can be made suitable for housing development? And 

if so at what cost?
b) Since the planning meeting, has any employee of RMBC had a face to face meeting with the 

site owner?
c) How many times has RMBC written to the site owner regarding the site and received no 

response?
d) Has RMBC taken any legal action of any sort against the site owner?
e) Is RMBC concerned that a large amount of the demolition spoil has been dumped on land not 

owned by the site purchaser?
f) Residents have been well aware of the inadequate if not dangerous condition of the fence 

erected around the site several years ago by the site owner. What measures have been taken 
to require the site owner to comply with basic and essential health and safety requirements 
regarding this fence in the last 48 months? And how do RMBC explain that no remedial action 
has been taken despite pieces of the fence being blown onto the local footpaths and roads?

g) Residents have made council officials aware on several occasions that the site has been used 
for tipping which continues to be the case. What steps have RMBC taken with the owner of the 
site to prevent this illegal tipping and what has the owner done in response to those requests?

Marland Fold Resident's question: Concerned that the water running off the High Birch site, onto her 
garden and then down onto her actual property may contain hazardous materials - what are you 
doing about checking this?

Some of the submitted questions and history of the site was discussed, such as the numerous 
setting of fires, the manner of demolition, the degree to which the site owner complied with 
regulations and differing asbestos surveys.  The question of whether or not residents should be 
entered on a register of exposure to asbestos was raised which will be checked.

Residents expressed their frustration and disappointment at Rochdale Council’s handling of the site 
over a number of years, perceived lack of action, felt that property values will go down and 
complained that it had taken five years to get to this stage.  The Health and Safety Executive are the 
regulating body and all concerns were raised with them at each stage.

The site owner will be required to fence the site off properly and securely, to prevent trespassing 
and disturbance of the site, and will be required to regularly maintain and monitor.  The site owner 
has a Right of Appeal.  If the site owner does not comply Rochdale Council will do the work and bill 
the owner.

Nicola’s contact details are available to all and she will answer all points submitted in writing direct 

Page 36



to Ian Birchenough and anyone else who wants them.  A separate meeting dedicated to this issue 
can be arranged.

Greater Manchester Spatial Framework
The Greater Manchester Spatial Framework has been launched and is out for consultation.  The 
plan sets out a strategy to grow the economy, accelerate development and investment and manage 
the supply of land for jobs and new homes across Greater Manchester.  Bamford residents have set 
up an Action Committee against the development of Green Belt land in Bamford.

All the Spatial Framework documents can be viewed on Rochdale Council’s website or in Libraries.  
The Council has organised Spatial Framework consultation events with the last one arranged for 
Monday 12 December 2016 at 3.30pm to 6.30pm in Middleton Library.

Consultation ends at 5pm on Friday 23 December 2016.  Comments should be submitted to 
strategic.planning@rochdale.gov.uk or telephone 01706 924252 or post to Strategic Planning, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU.

Gracie Fields Statue
A plaque is to be installed on the Gracie Fields statue.

Springfield Park Toilets
Dave Logan clarified that the toilets in Springfield Park open and close according to Heywood 
Cemetery opening times.

Ward Councillors contact details are available on the Council’s website: 

Councillor Ian Duckworth
Telephone: 01706 648393
Email:ian.duckworth@rochdale.gov.uk

Councillor Jane Howard
Telephone: 07870 172144
Email: jane.howard@rochdale.gov.uk

Councillor Pat Sullivan
Telephone: 0161 762 1129 or 07967 985240
Email: patricia.sullivan@rochdale.gov.uk

Rochdale Council Officers:

Township Officer - Stuart Hay
Telephone: 01706 922230
Email: stuart.hay@rochdale.gov.uk

Community Safety, Crime Prevention Officer -  Diane Lodwig
Telephone 01706 922226
Email: diane.lodwig@rochdale.gov.uk

8. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Thursday 9 March 2017 at 6.30pm in Brimrod Methodist Church

Page 37



HEALEY AREA FORUM
Thursday, 8 December 2016

MINUTES

Present: S. Acton (Chair), J. Murphy, J. White, A. Evans, H. Connely, R. Connely, J. Kennedy (Vice 
Chair), G. Bowdon – Witts, V. Heather, M. Fraser, J. Moran, H. Wilson, N. Dixon, S. Dixon, D. 
Barnett, Rev H. Johnson

Officers: T. Buckley (Finance – Rochdale Borough Council), PCSO Smith, PCSO Collins and G. 
Finch (Township & Engagement Officer).

Councillors: Councillor Wazir and Councillor O’Neill

Apologies: Councillor Heakin, M. Whittle, M. Benyon and E. Ward.

100 WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND CODE OF CONDUCT
Gary Finch (Township and Engagement Officer) welcomed all to the meeting and asked that 
everyone abide by the Code of Conduct for the duration of the meeting.

101 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR
Sheila Acton was appointed Chair of the Area Forum until December 2017 and took the Chair at this 
point.

John Kennedy was appointed Vice-Chair of the Area Forum until December 2017.

102 CONFIRMATION OF HEALEY AREA FORUM SUB GROUP MEMBERSHIP
It was confirmed that the present Healey Area Forum Sub Group consisted of:

Sheila Acton – Chair Healey Area Forum
John Kennedy – Vice-Chair Healey Area Forum
Councillor Shaun O’Neill
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Shah Wazir
Jim Murphy
Neil Dixon
Andrew Evans

103 GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
PCSO’s Smith and Phillips attended the meeting for this item.

It was reported that for the last three month period there had been:

24 Domestic Burglary’s
2 Burglary others
12 Theft from motor vehicle

It was also reported that there was no particular pattern to how or where these offences had been 
committed.

Criminal damage within the Ward was also on the increase as were assaults and harassment. Many 
of the assaults and harassments were of a domestic violence nature.

The recent fatal car crash and murder in the Ward were ongoing investigations.

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



A resident asked if GMP Officers could issue Fixed Penalty Notices.

The Forum was informed that this could be done for certain offences.

Residents also raised concerns about speeding on Bentley Street and that a car had been parked 
for approximately five weeks in the parking bay near to Falinge Park.

It was agreed that the priorities for the Ward for the next three months would be:

- Burglary’s (Domestic)
- Criminal Damage
- Vehicle Crime

104 OPEN FORUM - AN OPPORTUNITY FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS TO COMMENT ON 
ISSUES IN THE WARD
Residents raised the following issues:

- Concern was raised about the way in which a vendor (s) discarded food on the Common on 
Bonfire night.

Response: This issue had already been brought to the attention of the Township and 
Engagement Officer who had subsequently reported this incident.

- A number of residents raised concerns about traffic congestion within the Ward. Whitworth 
Road, Shawclough Road, Mizzy Road and Fieldhouse Road (especially during the recent 
road works) were identified a particularly problematical. It was also expressed that better 
planning of road works was needed.

Response: Traffic congestion, generally is difficult to resolve. The problem is a Boroughwide 
one and not specific to particular areas in the Ward or Borough.

It was also explained that the contractors who had undertaken the recent works on 
Fieldhouse Road had been fined for poor working practices.

- A resident asked why the plaque to the Gracie Fields statue had not been installed.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

- A resident commented that street lighting had been turned down near to number 1 
Shawclough Way.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

- A Ward Councillor asked the Forum what they thought about street cleansing within the 
Ward.

Response: In general, Forum members were pleased with the service.

- A resident asked why the paving work had stopped on Yorkshire Street.

Response: It had stopped because of the Christmas period.

Page 39



- A resident raised the following issues:

           Land next to 1 Bentley Street remains littered and requires attention.

          The two ‘A’ Boards on the Common are still in place and should be 
           removed.

          Two signs on Mizzy Road are missing from their posts. Therefore the 
          signs need replacing or the posts need removing. 

          Damage has been caused to the Common (near to Cronkeyshaw Club)   
          by the gas contractors who have recently been working in the area. 

          Gullies on Joy Street are blocked.

The Township & Engagement Officer agreed to report the above.

105 ROCHDALE COUNCIL BUDGET CHALLENGE
Tim Buckley, Finance Manager attended the meeting for this item.

It was explained to the Forum that the Council has faced significant financial challenges since 2011, 
the start of the austerity period and continues to do so. Forum members were provided with the 
following information:

 General information about the Council.
 The services the Council currently delivers.
 The financial challenges faced by the Council 
 How the Council has responded so far.
 What the Council is looking to do.
 An explanation of how residents have and can continue to contribute   to financial 

challenges going forward.

A general discussion took place about the effects financial and service reductions were having in 
the Ward. Ward Councillors explained that it was becoming increasingly difficult to minimise the 
effects service reductions were having on front line services.

Residents suggested that the number of Councillors in the Borough should be reduced and that the 
Library at Number One Riverside should be closed on Saturday’s.

Forum members were encouraged to view the savings proposals on-line or in libraries and make 
comments.

106 UPDATES ON ISSUES RAISED AT PREVIOUS MEETING
The following updates were provided on issues that had been raised at previous Area Forum 
meeting:

1. Parking bays on the Common

The Forum was informed that no evidence had been found that suggested that the parking 
bays on the Common had been adopted or registered. 

2. Syke Road Survey

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he  had not received any 
update or was aware of any progress in relation  to:

Page 40



- The possible introduction of 20mph signage on Syke Road and Dewhirst Road with 
speed humps at the bottom and top of Syke Road.

- The possible introduction of double yellow lines at the junctions abutting Syke Road.

         However a site visit had been made to examine the pot holes on Syke 
         Road.

3. Council Policy on ‘A’ Boards

The Forum was informed that a report on the Council’s planned approach to ‘A’ Boards 
would be going to a Scrutiny Committee on the 8th February 2017.

4. Parking problems adjacent and opposite Syke Methodist Church

The Forum was informed that the application to have parking bays installed adjacent to the 
Church had been approved at Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee on the 
15th November 2016. It is now understood that consultation will take place with Transport for 
Greater Manchester.

5. Unauthorised Traveller Encampments – Joint Protocol

The Forum was informed that work is ongoing between the Council and GMP regarding this 
issue.

6. Traveller Encampment Hot Spots

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that a barrister had agreed to 
work with the Council to develop a ‘hot spot’ injunction across the Borough. Cronkeyshaw 
Common has been identified as a hot spot.

7. Syke Pond Steering Group

It was reported to the Forum that:

- Health and Safety had visited the pond and had agreed that significant remedial work 
was necessary to the paving around the pond and agreed that financial support be 
sought to undertake the work.

- A report seeking financial support for this project had not been presented to the Asset 
Management Group and Rochdale Township Committee 

- A response had been received in relation to investigating if the footpaths on Syke 
Common are designated rights of way.

The response was read out and is as follows:

The process for investigating the history and legal status of an alleged public right of way 
can be long and complicated and with few resources is to be avoided if possible. 
Fortunately in this case I think it may be avoidable. 

If Syke Common is registered as common land it would be illegal for anyone to obstruct 
anyone exercising their right of access for air and exercise over the Common. It would 
also be illegal for anyone to carry out restricted works, eg fencing without consent from 
the Planning Inspectorate. On the other hand, I think resurfacing / repairs to existing 

Page 41



paths over the Common would be unrestricted – the law is in The Common Act 2006 and 
there is guidance on works on Gov.uk website. If the land is on the Commons register it 
should not be necessary to register the paths on the definitive map.

If for some reason, this isn’t enough, is the land owned by the Council. If so, the Council 
can dedicate routes to the public. Normally we would have a dedication agreement 
between the Highway Authority and the landowner and since both parties would be the 
Council we obviously cannot do that. However it should be possible for Legal to come up 
with wording for a formal declaration of dedication to the public, after which the list of 
new routes could be added to the definitive map without any further paperwork.

8. Shawclough Road Traffic Survey

The Township and Engagement Officer circulated the report. Because Forum members had 
not had the opportunity to read the report it was agreed to include this as an item on the next 
agenda. Forum members were also encouraged to contact the Township and Engagement 
Officer if they had any questions concerning the content of the report.

9. Condition of paths due to weeds

It was explained to the Forum that the programme for treating weeds had fallen behind, 
consequently some footpaths were suffering from excess weeds.

10. Illegal tipping opposite 380 Whitworth Road

Environmental Management had visited the site and concluded that it would be too 
dangerous to ask officers to remove the tipped items.

11. Estate agent / Fly posting promotional material

It was reported that Environmental Management have responded by stating they are not 
aware of any fixed penalty notices which have been issued for estate agent / fly posting 
promotional material. The difficulty in carrying out this type of enforcement is that officers 
either need to be on location when the offence is committed or those responsible for the 
offence have to be traced. 

12. My Account Council website – attachment of photographs

Digital Services advised that the service had not requested a facility whereby photographs 
could be attached.

107 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCES AND APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
HELD ON 8 SEPTEMBER 2016
Apologies had been received from Councillor Heakin, Margaret Whittle, Mick Benyon and Erica 
Ward.

The minutes of the Healey Area Forum held on Thursday 8th September 2016 were approved as a 
correct record.

108 MATTERS ARISING FROM THOSE MINUTES NOT LISTED AS AGENDA ITEMS
There were no matters arising.

Page 42



109 MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS - INCLUDING PROJECTS/INITIATIVES SUBMITTED FOR 
POTENTIAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT
The Forum was informed that the following monies were available to the Ward:

Members Funds:

Councillor Wazir - £2000
Councillor O’Neill - £398.87
Councillor Heakin - £624.82

Ward Funds - £ 7250

Environmental Issues - £3003

Since the last meeting a number of suggestions had been received as potential projects / initiatives 
that could be supported from Ward Funds. These included:

1. A donation towards the refurbishment of the Chapel. The kitchen was specifically identified.

2. Relaying the paths around the pond.

3. The planting of more trees on the Common. An avenue of trees along ‘the road with no 
name’ was suggested.

4. The placement of a stone on land opposite the Healey public house. It was suggested that 
the sign could read – ‘Welcome to Shawclough – gateway to Healey Dell.

5. A number of ‘target hardening’ initiatives around the Common.

During a general discussion regarding the above it was suggested that a sign (similar to the ‘in 
bloom’ signs) could be placed on the land opposite the Healey public house as an alternative 
suggestion to the stone.

It was agreed that the Township and Engagement Officer collate estimates in relation to points 
3, 4 and 5 above, the cost of a sign and arrange a meeting of the Area Forum Sub Group in 
January to progress these suggestions.

The Forum was advised that financial support for the repair work that is required to the paths 
around the pond is being sought from alternative funding streams.

Councillor Wazir agreed to support a fencing project on Bernard Street raised by Councillor 
O’Neill from his Member’s Funds (£500)

110 COUNCILLORS' NEWS
The Forum was informed of the following issues:

- A new platform at Rochdale Station had been created.

- The Draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Consultation Paper had been published 
and residents were encouraged to read the document and comment. 

- The Playing Fields Strategy had recently been discussed at Rochdale Township Committee 
with St Wilfred’s School Playing Fields potentially available for alternative use. Councillor 
O’Neill commented he would oppose the selling of this piece of land.

Page 43



- Two additional bus services were planned to help commuters travelling to and from 
Rochdale Infirmary.

- The market would be situated on the area opposite the Regal Moon and a small indoor 
market is proposed to operate from the old Santander premises in the Town Centre.

- Age UK, Rochdale will close on the 23rd December 2016.

111 GOOD NEWS FROM PEOPLE IN THE AREA AND SYKE COMMUNITY BASE
The following issues were raised:

- A ‘light a light’ carols service was to be held near the pond on Wednesday 21st December 
2016 at 6.15.

It was also suggested that future topics for the Forum could include – devolved budgets and day 
surgery at the Infirmary.

112 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Syke Community Base, Syke Methodist Church
16 March 2017, commencing 6.30pm

Page 44



KINGSWAY AREA FORUM
Thursday 8 December 2016

Newbold Baptist Church, Milnrow Road, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: M. Topham, E. Curzon, C. Brook, L. Morris, J.J. Wilcock, C. Tweedale, K. Walker, 
B. Smith, G. Lowthion, N.Z. Hamzah and A. Taylor

Councillors: Councillor D. Ali

Officers: R. Hudson (Townships) and PC B. Walsh (GMP)

Apologies: Councillor L. Brosnan, Councillor S. Ahmed, Mr Whelan, A. Hoque, M. Ahmed, 
D. Morton, S. Curzon and A.Curzon

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
Apologies were noted.  Attention was drawn to the code of conduct, a summary of which was read 
out. All attendees were asked to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.

2. MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING/UPDATES
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed and the following updates were provided:

Waithlands/Witley Road Junction
Sign missing from the signpost has not been replaced.
Action: Contact Highways to request urgent action/update (Rachel Hudson)

Waithlands Road
Residents reported the sign (directing to the canal) on the footpath has not been replaced.
Action: Contact Highways to request urgent action/update (Rachel Hudson)

Milnrow Road
Residents requested more details from Parking Services/GMP as to what times the area is being 
monitored.
Action: Contact Parking Services to obtain information (Rachel Hudson)

3. GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - PACT MEETING
PC Walsh provided last three months of the crime statistics:

Burglary dwelling:
 28 incidents
 Belfield and Newbold hot spot areas
 6 insecure the rest were forced entry
 Usually increase this time of year due to festive season
 Leave lights on timer as easy to spot empty properties when getting dark early

Burglary non-dwelling:
 29 incidents
 Belfield/Turf Hill/Oldham Road hot spot areas - 3 last night Oldham Road J/W Kingsway
 3 x Lower Place School

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



 3 x Moss Industrial Estate Woodbine Street

Robbery:
 7 incidents
 Oldham Road/Count Street/Woodbine Street
 Monday 7 November 2016 at 1345 hours - Female knocked to ground on Oldham Road near to 

Fishwick Street and bag taken. Offender chased but not detained. White male in a chequered 
shirt. Enquiries ongoing

 One domestic related, one related to school children and one relating to a taxi driver being 
robbed where three offenders have been arrested and are on bail

Criminal Damage:
 44 incidents
 5 x Damage to vehicle on Percy Street, offender arrested
 Several on Ansdell Road which was related to a family/neighbour dispute. Tenancy warnings 

have been issued by RBH
 Youths throwing stones at vehicles on Oldham Road

Theft from Motor Vehicle:
 23 incidents
 Belfield and Newbold hot spot areas
 Most have left items on show
 Worker’s tools also taken

ASB:
 65 incidents
 Lock 50
 Oldham Road near Balderstone Park
 Newbold Estate
 David Wilson Estate - 4 incidents - Park Wedgewood Close, youths stopped and removed from 

area details taken

Total Incidents/Crimes:
 Jun-Sep -1284 Incidents (2015 - 1377) Crimes 336 (2015 - 428)
 Sep-Dec -1036 Incidents (2015 - 1375) Crimes 342 (2015 - 395)

GMP Initiatives:
Milnrow Road – A Traffic Operation was carried out by way of a mobile speed camera on 23 
September 2016 in a response to concerns from residents regarding speeding and traffic incidents.  
GMP Traffic Police have been cut dramatically over the last few years resulting in less cover in and 
around the Borough.  In three hours 13 fixed penalty notices were given and two vehicles had no 
insurance/MOT.  No one was caught speeding but this may have been due to the fact that the 
operation was carried out early morning when traffic was slower due to delays, etc.

Milnrow Road and Croxton Avenue Speed Surveys
GMP have approached Highways about conducting speed surveys on A640 Milnrow Road and 
Croxton Avenue to determine the extent of the problem.  The forum expressed their support to fund 
the surveys from Kingsway Ward Funds.

St Peter’s Primary School – CCTV was installed by the school due to problems last year with 
intruders accessing the roof.  As a result of this, one prolific offender was arrested and fined 
resulting in no more ASB issues at the school.

Driving offence email scam – GMP advised residents of a scam being circulated via email 
advising people they have committed a driving offence.  Advice is to delete the email and not click 

Page 46



on any links within it.  GMP never send emails regarding offences; they would be hand delivered or 
sent via recorded delivery.

GMP body cameras – PC Walsh advised residents of new body camera equipment on all officers.  
When the camera is lit green it is on stand-by, not videoing as presumed by some members of the 
public.

New Housing Estate (Michael Faraday Way) – GMP reported an increase in complaints of anti-
social behaviour and theft from motor vehicles on the estate.  PC Walsh advised residents that he 
always makes it priority to drive through at least once per shift.  Residents intend to set up a ‘Home 
Watch’ scheme.  There are issues concerning inadequate lighting and no lighting on the adjacent 
park to the estate where youths walk through, which has been raised by GMP with the Council’s 
Highways Department in correspondence with the developers.  PC Walsh advised if he receives any 
feedback he will update the residents/forum.  Residents also reported speeding occurring 
throughout the estate which was noted by GMP.

4. OPEN FORUM
Belfield Lane area
A resident asked for praise and thanks to be communicated to the senior managers within 
Environmental Management regarding the improvements made recently to the Belfield Lane area of 
the Kingsway ward.  She advised the meeting that the area has dramatically improved due to a very 
responsive fly-tipping removal team, along with a fabulous effort by the litter pickers and the 
sweepers.
Action: Forward comments to Environmental Management (Rachel Hudson)

Belfield Lane street lights
A resident complained about very poor emissions from some street lights as a result of being 
located within the vicinity of conifer trees.  The lights are situated on route to the housing estate 
walking from the railway bridge.
Action: Contact Street Lighting with concerns about light levels (Rachel Hudson)

Belfield Lane
Residents advised GMP of speeding along this stretch of road.  Speed bumps are inadequate and 
not fit for purpose.
Action: Raise concerns with Highways (Rachel Hudson)

Unauthorised use of premises
A resident expressed concern about a house on Milnrow Road that had historic complaints relating 
to unauthorised use as a car breakers/repairs business.  Planning Enforcement Officers have been 
monitoring/investigating the matter.  Resident requested they attend his property to view from his 
perspective.
Action: Planning Enforcement to be asked to contact resident (Rachel Hudson)

Milnrow Road shops parking
Residents requested an update from Parking Services on how many tickets issued and how 
frequent do they patrol the area.
Action: Parking Services to be asked to supply information (Rachel Hudson)

Worsley Street Parking
A resident raised concerns about parking on Worsley Street and the blocking of rear access to 
properties.  A majority of cars are apparently associated with the MOT garage situated on the same 
street.  The resident was advised if there are no road markings then any obstruction of the highway 
or access is a matter for GMP.

Leach Street speeding
A resident advised vehicles are speeding along Leach Street from Moss Street.  Queried whether 

Page 47



speed bumps could be installed on this road.
Action: Contact Highways to seek advice about speeding concerns (Rachel Hudson)

Milnrow Road surface problems
A resident read out a letter he had sent to P O’Gorman at Rochdale Council’s Highways Services 
concerning road surface issues outside his property on Milnrow Road.  The road is cracking and 
heavy goods vehicles have made the surface uneven and cause neighbouring properties to 
experience vibrations and shaking as a result.
Action: Contact P O’Gorman to obtain a response to issues raised (Rachel Hudson)

Michael Faraday Avenue
Residents advised that youths had been causing nuisance by throwing stones from in front of the 
warehouse situated on Michael Faraday Avenue.  A question was raised as to who owns this land.  
Councillor Daalat Ali requested the matter is escalated to the local Community Safety Officer.
Action: Report concerns raised to Community Safety Officer (Rachel Hudson)

Newbold Moss/Klondike
Residents attended the forum to speak about issues concerning land to the rear of their properties 
on Newbold Moss – known as the Klondike.  They stated that there has been historic problems with 
this site over several years and that they now wish to approach the area forum to ask assistance 
from the Council as they feel in their words that they have ‘exhausted all other avenues of 
assistance and now have nowhere else to turn’.  With the support of Councillor Daalat Ali, they also 
asked for a letter to be sent to the Chief Planning Officer to request a meeting about the recent 
refusal of a planning application for the site and also for an update on enforcement action with 
regards to containers, fencing and a bund in place at the site.  They expressed their wish for an 
officer to view the issues from their side of the land to get a full perspective on the matters 
concerning them.

5. WARD NEWS
Bulky Waste Amnesty Scheme
An update was provided to residents on Councillor Brosnan’s ‘Bulky Waste Amnesty Scheme’. The 
scheme involved the collection of large refuse items to assist the ongoing problem of fly tipping and 
it was funded by Township ward funds.  The amnesty was rolled out in three sessions with 
collections on 22 September, 29 September and 6 October.  90 households made use of the 
scheme, taking all places available and four tonnes of waste was collected for recycling/disposal.

Greater Manchester Spatial Framework
Councillor Daalat Ali advised residents of the consultation on the draft Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework.  Public consultation on the draft version of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
runs from 31 October to 23 December 2016. Comments are welcomed on this document and 
supporting background documents. Views submitted will be considered and a final draft will be 
published in 2017 when another period of consultation will be held.  For more information visit 
website https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20081/draft_plan

6. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Thursday 16 February 2017 at 6.30pm
Newbold Baptist Church, Milnrow Road, Rochdale

Page 48



KINGSWAY AREA FORUM

Thursday 16 February 2017
Newbold Baptist Church, Milnrow Road, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: M. Topham (Chair), A. Mansoor, C. Davies, A. Bell, G. Lowthon, C. Clegg, B. Smith, 
S. Curzon, E. Curzon, J. Wilcock, G. & B. Morrish, D. Clayton, H. Zulfiqar, C. Tweedale, K. Walker, 
S. Danczuk MP and N. Zulfiqar

Councillors: Councillor D. Ali

Officers: V. White (Rochdale Borough Council) and PS Shelton & Craig Birkhead (GMP)

Apologies: Councillor L. Brosnan, Councillor S. Ahmed, PC Walsh, R. Hudson and D. Morton

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
All were welcomed to the meeting and apologies were noted.  Attention was drawn to the code of 
conduct, a summary of which was read out.  All attendees were asked to abide by the code for the 
duration of the meeting.

2. MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING/UPDATES
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed and the following updates were provided.

Waithlands/Witley Road Junction
Sign missing from the signpost has not been replaced.  Highways have them on the list for order.

Waithlands Road
Residents reported the sign (directing to the canal) on the footpath has not been replaced.  
Highways have them on the list for order.

Milnrow Road
Parking Services Update - a joint enforcement operation with GMP and the Civil Enforcement 
Officers has now been arranged, however, for obvious reasons the dates and times cannot be 
disclosed in advance.  There was positive feedback both from the Police and the Civil Enforcement 
Officers last time and therefore it is anticipated this operation will prove to be as beneficial.

GMP further update – PC Walsh has spoken to the Safety Camera Team regarding: deploying a 
mobile speed camera van.  Unfortunately, there is a strict criterion which has to be met in order for a 
site to be approved by the local authority and enforcement to take place and the location mentioned 
at the forum doesn’t meet the criteria at this stage.  This criteria includes a certain amount of 
incidents involving serious injury or death in a particular time period and speed surveys showing a 
certain percentage of vehicles going well above the speed limit.  He was advised however, that the 
traffic PCSOs may be able to deploy with a speed gun to areas of local concern so this has been 
requested on Milnrow Road, Croxton Avenue and Sir Isaac Newton Way.  If they are able to do this 
any results will be collated and reported back to future area forums.
Action 1: Request that parking around the Premier Store near Charlotte Street be included in 
this joint operation (Rachel Hudson)

Page 49



Milnrow Road and Croxton Avenue Speed Surveys
These surveys have been carried out and we are awaiting the results.

Belfield Lane Street Lights
The forum was informed that an inspection was carried out on Belfield Lane columns 10, 11 and 12.  
Residents disputed the response in particularly regarding column 12, which they say is affected by 
the presence of a conifer that stops the light shining down onto the highway.
Action 2: Request follow-up inspection with recommendation to view from the bridge 
towards the column (Rachel Hudson)

Unauthorised use of premises – Milnrow Road
The forum was informed that Planning Enforcement have provided an update to state that they are 
monitoring the property and can only take action when the vehicles present at the property do not 
belong to the owner and give rise to suspicion of possible business use.  At present there are no 
breaches of planning.  Residents were unhappy with this response stating that there is clearly an 
operational business at these premises, and requested that alternative enquiries take place.  The 
MP suggested that this issue could be taken as an opportunity to demonstrate effective partnership 
working and that enquiries could be made with other authorities around how they tackle similar 
issues.
Action 3: Make enquiries with regard to Trading Standards, Business Rates, Planning and 
Environmental Health (Rachel Hudson)

Milnrow Road Surface Problems
It was confirmed by a resident that repairs had been completed but only a small patch around a grid; 
the wider surface area is still in need of repair and the surface around Reservoir Street (Albert 
Royds Street) is also in need of attention.
Action 4: Request inspection and any necessary repairs (Rachel Hudson)

3. GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - PACT MEETING
Crime Statistics – Last Quarter
Burglary dwelling –22 offences, mainly in the Belfield, Sandfield and Newbold areas.
Burglary other – 31 offences, up from 21 in the previous quarter.  Mostly businesses targeted for 
cash floats, and focussed on the Sandfield, Newbold and Lower Place areas.  Plain Clothes 
operations are taking place during weekends and early hours of weekdays.
Robbery – offences reduced to 3 from 8 in the previous quarter.
Taking from a motor vehicle – offences reduced to 15 from 25, mainly targeting sat nav systems.
Criminal damage – reduced to 49 from 60.
Anti-Social Behaviour – down to 60 incidents from 87, mainly around Newbold, Oldham Road, 
Lower Place and Beswick Royds Street.

There have been two offenders convicted for offences recently, receiving sentences of 4 years and 
18 months respectively.

Presentation – GMP Citizen’s Contract
Greater Manchester Police is improving the way it works to meet the challenges it faces and provide 
the best possible service.  The organisation needs to save a further £44m in the next four years.  
They are developing a Citizen’s Contract which will outline what GMP will do and what they need 
members of the public to do, to enable Greater Manchester to be a safer place.  Residents’ views 
are invited and will be used to help shape policing in the next four years up to 2020.  The Township 
Office will electronically distribute surveys to all residents on the mailing list which can be completed 
and returned to GMP.  Residents reiterated that the main concern in the Kingsway Ward is 
speeding on Milnrow Road, and asked that this be addressed.  The officer present undertook 
to attempt to increase patrols in the area.

Page 50



4. OPEN FORUM
Worsley Street Parking
Concerns were again raised in relation to local garages parking vehicles in the area, making access 
to driveways difficult for residents.  GMP stated ‘difficulties’ do not constitute an obstruction.  In the 
absence of parking restrictions the local authority is unable to take any enforcement action.  The MP 
suggested that a Council Officer could visit the premises with a Police Officer to discuss the 
concerns of residents and to encourage the business to be a good neighbour, whilst explaining the 
options open to the Council in terms of parking restrictions which would have a negative impact on 
all that work and reside in the area.
Action 5: Arrange visit to premises with local Beat Officer (Rachel Hudson) Litter/Fly-Tipping
Some positive information was given with regard to initiatives recently led by residents in the ward, 
they include:
 Clean up with the Canal & Rivers Trust.  The Trust has agreed to clean up the canal tow-path 

on a quarterly basis.
 Discussion with Morrisons and TfGM resulting in their agreement to cut back the shrubs and 

clean up the path between the tram stop and the store.
 Talking to the Council about receiving assistance with clean-ups, in terms of lending equipment 

and removing bags of collected rubbish.
There were concerns that rubbish bags are being rifled through and their contents left strewn on 
footpaths and tow paths.  The concerns were particularly in relation to whether the activity is being 
carried out by homeless people looking for food.  It was acknowledged that there are many reasons 
why this could be happening and it shouldn’t be assumed it is related to homelessness.

Kingsway Retail Park – The area at the rear of the retail park is untidy, dirty and unsightly.  The MP 
asked that a letter be written to the landlord to ask them to liaise with the businesses and to require 
them to take responsibility for the rear of their stores.
Action 6: Write to landlord on behalf of the area forum (Rachel Hudson)

Residents were encouraged to report grot spots direct to the Council which would allow the hit-
teams to be deployed: email environmental.management@rochdale.gov.uk, telephone 0300 303 
8884.

Milnrow Road/Kenworthy Street – Additional Bin
Councillor Ali supported a request for an additional litter bin in the vicinity of the off licence; 
preferably one with a lid to stop litter blowing around the streets.
Action 7: Arrange installation of additional lidded litter bin – agree location with Councillor 
Daalat Ali (Rachel Hudson)

Kenworthy Street Alley Gates
Fly-tipping at the rear of Kenworthy Street is a recurrent and unacceptable problem.  Residents 
were informed that this problem is not something that the Council can clean up or enforce.  There 
were also safety concerns regarding the alley gates; one will not lock and the other appears unsafe.
Action 8: Speak to Environmental Management to see whether properties can be leafleted 
regarding fly-tipping (Rachel Hudson)
Action 9: Refer alley gate concerns to Burglary Reduction Officer (Val White)

Information concerning future Area Forums – Email notifications only
As a direct result of the Council’s savings proposals it will no longer be possible for the Township 
Office to post letters and agendas for area forums.  Residents were encouraged to supply their 
email address to receive notifications of dates of future meetings, agendas and minutes.  Also 
information can be accessed via the Council’s web site www.rochdale.gov.uk/councilmeetings.

5. WARD NEWS
Robinson’s Common
Plans are in progress to develop the common into community use.  Surveys have been completed 

Page 51

mailto:environmental.management@rochdale.gov.uk


and the final project will result in a kick-pitch and community allotments.

Bulky Waste Amnesty
A further scheme has been funded from ward funds; this time the focus will be on the Belfield and 
Croxton areas.

Lower Place Playing Fields
Agreement to transfer the fields to Kingsway Park High School has now been reached.

6. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
To be confirmed
Newbold Baptist Church, Milnrow Road, Rochdale

Page 52



BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT
COMMUNITY MEETING

Tuesday 13 December 2016
St Mary’s (Balderstone) Church, Oldham Road, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: E. Warburton, K. McBride, R. Dowd, M. Wilson, K. Hopwood, S. Hender, 
E. Kitcher, M. Matthews, M. Whalley, D. Holt, B. Bergin, B. Harrison, S. Boardman, C. Smith and 
R. Farrell

Officers: PC Jackie Butterworth (GMP), Sgt Alistair Twidale (GMP), R. Hudson (Townships) 
and V. Bradshaw (Finance)

Councillors: Daniel Meredith and Richard Farnell

Apologies: Colin Mottershead (Chair), Cllr K. Nickson, Sgt R. Shelton (GMP) and PC S. Horton

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair (Township Officer substituted in the absence of the Chair and also minuted the meeting) 
welcomed everyone to the meeting.  Attention was drawn to the code of conduct and a summary of 
which was read out.  All attendees were asked to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.

2. PACT MEETING - GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Crime
An update was provided on the Oldham Road, Balderstone Park/library wall and anti-social 
behaviour issue.  Damage was caused to a motor vehicle and graffiti to the library.  A PCSO met 
with the Council’s Community Safety Officers and discussions were held regarding the possibility of 
installing CCTV on Balderstone Library.  GMP also met with Environmental Management about the 
option of erecting a fence on top of the stone wall.  GMP will keep this matter as a priority.

Concerning the previously reported issues regarding theft from motor vehicles, GMP reported that 
there had only been one recent incident since September which may be down to the fact high-vis 
patrols had been stepped up along with leaflet drops and door knocks.

Surgeries are held at the Kirkholt Drop-in Centre every two weeks on a Tuesday 10-11am.

A traffic operation has been carried out by GMP on Queensway (near to the petrol station) by traffic 
PCSOs.  Three vehicles were seized with no insurance, nine vehicles stopped for mobile phone 
use, two vehicles stopped for drivers not wearing seatbelts and one vehicle stopped for speeding.

Statistics for the ward (past three months compared to last year)
Burglaries - Reduced by 32%
Criminal damage – Increased by 64%
ASB – Decreased by 33%
Vehicle crime – Decrease of 4%

Residents raised queries concerning disabled blue badge enforcement and off-road bikes.

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



3. ROCHDALE COUNCIL BUDGET CHALLENGE
A presentation was given by Victoria Bradshaw (Finance, Rochdale Borough Council) about the 
huge financial challenges and difficult choices to be made about how to spend public money.  Since 
2010 savings of £159 million have been agreed.  By 2019 approximately £38.8 million more needs 
to be saved.  With the community’s help, ideas and support, the Rochdale Borough can be made a 
great place to live, work, do business and visit.  The Council faces the task of having to decide 
where and how to reduce services or increase income, and they need to make sure resources are 
spent as efficiently and effectively as possible.

Residents were encouraged to put forward their views, opinions and suggestions for 
improvements/savings.  Questions were asked relating to the appointment of a Chief Executive and 
whether it was necessary, whether the Council could apply for foreign aid, contingency plans for 
future flooding and also the new retail development planned for the Town Centre.

4. COUNCILLOR UPDATE
Councillor Meredith
Councillor Meredith thanked all the residents who attended the Christmas event at Kirkholt and also 
those who attended the Wonderland event at Balderstone Library.

Balderstone Library is open on Christmas Day from 11.30am–1pm and everyone is invited for a late 
Christmas breakfast with board games, carols, music and conversation.

A Lego Club & Coding Club at Balderstone Library have both been great successes along with the 
new changing rooms and football pitches in the area.

Councillor Meredith reported he had received several emails over the past few weeks from residents 
about the Wainhomes development and flooding concerns relating to the planning permission and 
the culvert.  A request will be submitted to the Council’s Planning Department for an urgent review 
to ensure proper defences will be in place.

Burnedge – GM Spatial Framework – Councillor Meredith advised that there is currently no access 
to this site in question.  A meeting for the public could be held in the New Year in order to put 
forward a response to challenge Oldham Council who is dealing with the matter.

Councillor Farnell
Bungalows at Rhodes Crescent – RBH have been contacted to thin and prune the trees which block 
light to residents’ houses.

Mornington Road – The dip in the road near to the garages has been causing issues.  This matter 
has been escalated to the Council’s Highways Department.

St Mary’s Primary School – The new play area has been a great addition for the children.

Friends of Balderstone Park – A meeting is to take place in January regarding plans for the 
improvements to the park and library involving a new community room, kitchen and changing 
facilities.

Former Balderstone Park – Plans are almost finalised ready for submission.  There is a need for 
more members to join the committee and interest is welcome.  Kirkholt Million has now appointed a 
Developmental Worker to assist groups and bring in new members.

Two major housing planning applications to be dealt with are the 100 affordable homes at the 
Ruskin Road site and 150 units on the former Balderstone School site.

The Strand – Demolition to start in the New Year and it will take eight weeks before the new building 
work can commence on the eight new shops, flats and state of the art community hub/Police/RBH 

Page 54



rooms along with youth and training rooms.  The project is a joint initiative with the Council and RBH 
and will be an amazing facility for the community.

CCG Health Authority – A commitment has now been received to build a new health facility situated 
on the roundabout that will include a doctor’s surgery, dentists, a chemist and health rooms.

Kirky Kitchen, St Thomas’ Church – A great social meeting point, Kirky Kitchen is open Tuesdays 
and Wednesdays and the time is charged for how long you stay as opposed to what is eaten/drank 
whilst there.

5. PRESENTATIONS/UPDATES
Kirkholt Million
Apologies have been received from the newly appointed Chair.

The first phase of the programme is now coming to an end.  Two projects have been achieved 
which have encouraged people back into employment.  Community grants have been made 
available and the new skate park was funded which has been a massive success.

The ethos of Kirkholt Million is to reach out to the community to comment and decide on how the 
monies are spent and what is funded.  Suggestions are now welcome on the next phase for 
2017/2018 and can be forwarded to kirkholtmillion@hotmail.co.uk or dropped off into the drop-in 
box.

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing
No Housing Officer was in attendance at the forum.  Residents can contact the Township Officer 
with any issues and they will be emailed through to Rochdale Boroughwide Housing.

A resident from Queens Drive complained about trees (sycamores) to rear of her property which 
block light and she experiences problems with overhanging branches and fallen leaves.
Action: Raise issue with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (Rachel Hudson)

A resident asked for Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to be contacted about none attendance of a 
representative for the last two area forums.  The Township Officer advised apologies were 
submitted last forum but the matter will be noted and it was reiterated that Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing and the Council work in partnership and can advise each other about any concerns.

6. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a true record.

Chloe Cockton Memorial
St Cuthbert’s RC High School propose to create a memorial to former student Chloe Cockton with a 
memorial bench and a plaque.  Councillor Nickson has allocated the balance of her Member’s Fund 
towards the scheme and the meeting gave their support to contribute the shortfall of £418.01 from 
Balderstone & Kirkholt Ward Funds.

7. OPEN FORUM
Access to Springhill Playing Fields
Residents raised concerns again about Springhill Playing Fields being fenced off and gated by the 
football club which deny the public access to the land.  The club has advised the reason for these 
measures is persistent dog fouling.  The residents state they do not oppose the football club 
maintaining and improving the land or erecting fencing, only that they had restricted public access.

Councillor Farnell commented that the land is not public open space and has always housed formal 
sports with the club happy to co-exist alongside the local community to enjoy.  However, despite 
attempts by the club to keep dogs off the land, the matter still persists.  The club is legally entitled to 
fence off the land and has a duty of care for the players and children using the facility.  The whole 

Page 55



area is not being fenced off nor are dog walkers being denied full access.

Residents complained about the lack of responses to letters previously submitted at Committee.  
Councillor Farnell asked for an email to be sent for his attention and he will address each point as 
part of a reply.

Gilbrook Way Culvert
Broad Lane Action Group has issues regarding the Wimpey-owned land and will continue to discuss 
matters with Wainhomes.

8. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday 21 March 2017 at 6.30pm
Venue: Kirkholt Community Church, Daventry Road, Rochdale

Page 56



NORDEN AREA FORUM
Wednesday 14 December 2016

Norden Community Primary School, Shawfield Lane,
Norden, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: N. Morrell (Chair), P. Ellison, I. Sturrock, Z. Hotchkiss, J & S Kershaw, C.McHugh, 
S. Cresswell, C. Brandford, J. Watson, D. Brett, J. Atkinson, J. Lingard, M&L Whiteley, P. Massey, 
S. Eddison, M. Coats, M. Newnham and J. Oliver

Officers: R. Hudson (RBC - Township) and Sgt Rhys Ibbotson (GMP)

Councillors: Councillor Winkler

Apologies: Councillor Holly, Councillor Gartside, D. Lodwig (Community Safety), R. Jones, 
A. Rawsterne, J. Newcolme, S. Croke, B. Paulinski, N. Fowler, S & S. Davison and A. Whatmough

1. INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair introduced himself and officers present, and welcomed all to the meeting.  He referred to 
the code of conduct and asked all to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.

2. MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2016 were approved as a correct record.

Township in Bloom
A gold award was regained in the ‘Small City’ category.  The Chair appreciates the help of Mark 
Foxley from Town Centre Management and also Councillor Richard Farnell.  Norden Jubilee Park 
was judged as ‘outstanding’.

Former Turner Bros Site
Mick Coats attended and provided an update for residents.  Mick explained that developments on 
the TBA site affect not only his own ward (Spotland) but neighbouring wards as well, as the legacy 
of health problems arising from the site has affected great numbers of people.  There are 
widespread concerns about the latest site investigations and the lack of clear information associated 
with them; neither the Council, owners nor specialist contractors have been able to explain clearly 
the methods being used in the latest surveys and what scientific principles underlie them.  Local 
people are frustrated at the lack of information.  The TBA Working Party has not met for a 
considerable time, depriving residents of a crucial opportunity to get answers to key question from 
Council Officers and experts.

There are ongoing concerns that, following the last fire on the site, some 2 years ago, residents 
have been unable to obtain information of what was released into the atmosphere during the 
incident, despite the fact that GM Fire and Rescue were conducting air monitoring during the 
incident.

There is serious concern that the site owners and their advisors will not provide full details of the 
survey results and what their proposals are for remediation.

Mick explained that, in his view, there should be complete transparency from all associated with the 

Page 57

Agenda Item 11



site and that public health and safety should be a paramount consideration.

Black Pits Chimney
The Chair explained that, following requests from villagers, the Township Office had checked with 
the Planning Department prior to each forum for the last 12 months as to whether there were any 
proposals for work on the Chimney.  On each occasion including prior to the forum in September 
2016, the answer was that no proposals had been received or approved.  He was therefore 
surprised when he and other residents received a letter from Redrow Plc on 19 November 2016 
explaining that work, which had been approved by the Council, would commence on 21 November 
2016.

A number of residents (including Mr Richard Jones) had expressed concerns that, where during 
previous works, the footpath at the foot of the Chimney had been the subject of a formal closure 
notice and diversion, in this case it was not and Redrow had been allowed to close the path without 
providing an alternative.

The Chair thanked Councillor Winkler for his help and support in gaining a clear indication of the 
scope of the works as well as an alternative route, by liaising directly with contractors on site.

Moss Row
Moss Row Community Allotment Society have decided not to develop the land but have advised the 
Council’s Environmental Management Department to inform them of any changes in the future.

Rainshore Mill/Overtown Lane, Norden
Residents are still concerned about the heavy traffic.  Waste was dumped in Doctor Dam and local 
residents assisted by Councillor Gartside contacted the Environment Agency about this serious 
matter.  As a result, contractors on the Rainshore Mill site were served with a warning.  Pollution 
has now ceased.

Footpaths
Update from John Oliver was that works are still ongoing and the involvement of the Council’s 
Environmental Management Department this year has been great.  The responses from Ian Trickett 
and his team at Environmental Management, to matters raised at the Rights Of Way Forum, have 
been welcomed by all user groups.

The Chair thanked Ian and the Environmental Management Team for their diligent attention to 
matters and John for his consistent championing of the cause of all footpath users.

Ashworth Road
The Ashworth Road area has received a lot of attention from groups/residents/Police/Council 
Officers and local Councillors recently.  A combined effort has resulted in a major clear-up of the 
area with new signage, private CCTV installation, additional fencing and bins on order and also 
extra patrols by the Police.  Fly-tipping incidents will hopefully reduce in future with the threat of 
prosecution imminent.  Efforts continue.  The Chair thanked all parties who have assisted this 
initiative.

Wind Farm Update
A report will be presented in February 2017 and a decision made thereafter.

Norden Old Library
The forum was advised that a spokesperson for the committee will be invited to attend in March 
2017.  If any resident has concerns relating to the library to email them to 
nordenoldlibrary@gmail.com.

Ashbourne Street
Signage has been affixed to the side of a building urging motorists to park more considerately.  

Page 58



Issues remain. The Chair discussed whether Township could write to the watch officers at Rochdale 
Fire Station and Ambulance Stations to comment on the situation.  Discussed the recent situation 
concerning an ambulance having to reverse back out on to Edenfield Road.  Ward Councillors to 
raise the matter at Township.

3. GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Sgt R Ibbotson informed the forum of the latest crime figures for Norden: 

Burglary: 19 (down by 39% on year)
Burglary dwelling: 5
Theft from motor vehicle: 12
Theft of motor vehicle: 6 (down 19%)

PACT
Speeding Operations – Police looking at carrying out traffic operations in January/February.
Youths Causing Annoyance –A recent occurrence of youths on Furbarn Lane on unauthorised 
scooters going into conifers and talking drugs.  GMP will prioritise this matter.
Operation Dragster –2 arrests were made.  Next op will be in February/March 2017.  Owners of 
windfarm still to be pursued for funding for future operations.
Pub Watch Scheme – No main issues.  Police in regular contact with licensees. 5/21 pubs turned 
up.
Drugs – No issues.  If any residents have any issues please make Police aware of these.
Licensing – No main issues.  Police are in regular contact with licensees.

Any issues, matters to be reported to the Police by ringing 101 as always in these instances.

The forum expressed their gratitude to the Police team.

4. ROCHDALE COUNCIL BUDGET CHALLENGE
Finance presentation by Stuart Smith (Finance Manager) Rochdale Council.  Further information can be 
accessed via the Council’s website http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/budgets-
and-spending/savings-plans/Pages/default.aspx

Public consultation closed on group 1 savings, group 2 public consultation closes 5pm on 9 January 
2017.

5. OPEN FORUM
Edenfield Road/Forsyth Street Junction Bollards
The forum was informed of the cost to install two bollards at the junction of Edenfield Road/Forsyth 
Street to prevent vehicles mounting the pavement.  Agreed to support this scheme from Norden 
Ward Funds.

Seven Acres Lane/Knowl View Drive
A report of flags cracked and needing attention.

Woodhouse Lane
A resident requested white lines to be repainted in the area to the rear of the war memorial.

Yummies Shop
A resident requested double lines to be repainted outside of the shop premises.

Furbarn Lane
A resident reported that the vegetation to the side of the footpath at the side of the substation 
(Elmsfield Avenue side) needs to be cutback.

Page 59

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/budgets-and-spending/savings-plans/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/budgets-and-spending/savings-plans/Pages/default.aspx


Foodbank Collection
Thanks for all who have donated and supported this cause.

Norden Christmas Lights
The Chair expressed thanks to NEVA for the Norden Village Christmas Lights.

School Lane
A resident advised the surface on School Lane is very poor and there is the possibility of an 
accident.  Works are needed to scrape it back and resurface.

Edenfield Road volume and speed of traffic
The Chair advised a resident had wrote to Highways with their concerns.

Greater Manchester Spatial Strategy Consultation
Residents urged to submit their views before the closing date of Monday 16 January 2017.  More 
information is available at http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning-and-building/local-planning-
policy/the-local-plan/Pages/gm-spatial-framework.aspx

6. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday 15 March 2017 at 7.00pm
Venue - TBA

Page 60

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning-and-building/local-planning-policy/the-local-plan/Pages/gm-spatial-framework.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning-and-building/local-planning-policy/the-local-plan/Pages/gm-spatial-framework.aspx


SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM

Thursday, 15 December 2016

MINUTES

Present: B. Holden, J. Moss, B. Penty, A. Foster, R. Heap, P. Massey (Chair), S. Ashworth,   Mr & 
Mrs Forden, S. Whitworth, M. Coats, M. Oliver, L. Kay, Rowland, D. Holden and C. Faulkner.

Officers: PC Jones, PCSO Vokra, V. Bradshaw (Finance) and G. Finch (Township & Engagement 
Officer)

Apologies: Councillors C. Biant, S. Biant and Cocks and forum members J. Addy, C. Dodgson, B. 
Patterson, Mr & Mrs Summerville, A. Rawsterne, M. Rashid and D. Kay

62 WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and reminded the Forum about the Code of Conduct. 
He asked that everyone comply with the code throughout the meeting.

Apologies had been received from Councillors C. Biant, S. Biant and Cocks and forum members J. 
Addy, C. Dodgson, B. Patterson, Mr & Mrs Summerville, A. Rawsterne, M. Rashid and D. Kay

63 GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
PC Jones and PCSO Vokra attended the meeting for this item.

The Forum was informed that the last three months has seen a reduction in reported crime. An 
arrest had also been made of an individual who was responsible for a significant number of motor 
vehicle crimes.

Crime related hotspots of recently reported crime have been the Edenfield Road and Denehurst 
Park areas.

Forum members were encouraged to report incidents on the 101 number although Crimestoppers 
can also be used – 0800 555 111. In the event of an emergency 999 should be used.

A resident asked what happens when an incident is reported to 101.

GMP informed the Forum that by reporting to 101 the incident will be logged and will help in building 
up a picture of activity in a particular area. The more an incident is reported the more likely it is to 
receive a response.

However it should be understood that by reporting an incident to 101 will not necessary mean that a 
police officer will attend the incident. Because of capacity issues prioritisation of incidents has to 
take place.

Concerns were also raised about the number of scooters being driven in the Ward. Churchill Street 
was identified as a particular problem area.

GMP acknowledged they were aware of this and that Operation Dragster was a successful recent 
initiative which resulted in a number of off road bikes being seized and arrest being made.

Residents were also informed that GMP has a no pursuit policy.

Incidents should be reported with as much information as possible, for example make of bike, 
colour, registration number.

Page 61

Agenda Item 12



64 GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
Victoria Bradshaw, Finance attended the meeting for this item.

It was explained to the Forum that the Council has faced significant financial challenges since 2011, 
the start of the austerity period and continues to do so. Forum members were provided with the 
following information:

 General information about the Council.
 The services the Council currently delivers.
 The financial challenges faced by the Council 
 How the Council has responded so far.
 What the Council is looking to do.
 An explanation of how residents have and can continue to contribute   to financial challenges 

going forward.

A general discussion took place about the effects financial and service reductions were having in 
the Ward and Borough generally and that it was getting increasingly difficult to preserve front line 
services.

A lengthy discussion took place about the recent decision by local Councillors to accept an increase 
in Members Allowances which had been recommended by an Independent Remuneration Panel. In 
general Forum members expressed their disappointed with this decision and asked that increases in 
Members Allowances should be the same as Council employee salary increases.

It was also commented that it was hypocritical to discuss the financial challenges facing the Council 
when the boroughs elected representatives had awarded themselves significant increases in their 
allowances.

Some residents questioned the decision to build Number One Riverside. However it was explained 
that in doing this a number of other Council owned assets could be released which off-set costs. 

A resident suggested that the Council should publish the suggestions received from the public which 
accrued most savings. It was believed this could encourage more people to engage.

Forum members were encouraged to view the savings proposals on-line or in libraries and make 
comments. The consultation process would finish on Monday 9th January 2017.

65 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
The minutes of the Area Forum held on Thursday 29th September 2016 were approved as a correct 
record.

No matters were arising.

The following updates were provided:

- Hedges on Ings Lane

The Township and Engagement Officer apologised for not investigating this further. However 
further information would be available at the next area forum meeting.

- Meanwood School Fencing

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that an application to secure 
funding for the restoration of the above fencing had recently been submitted to Rochdale 
Township Action and Resources Committee. However the application was unsuccessful. 

Page 62



- Speeding issues within the Ward

The Township and Engagement Officer apologised for not investigating this further. However 
further information would be available at the next area forum meeting.

- Environmental Impact Report

The Forum was informed that there were no plans to produce an Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) for the small pocket of land at the junction of Edenfield Road / Ings Lane. The 
advice received from the Council was that EIR’s are only produced for larger pieces of land.

A resident commented that the land had recently gone to auction but that the agreed sale 
had fallen through.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

- Holmes Street flood concerns

The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that concerns raised by 
residents about flooding concerns on Holmes Street had been reported to the appropriate 
service,

- Churchill Street dog fouling

The Forum was informed this had been reported.

66 MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS
The Forum was informed that the following monies were available to the Ward:

Members Funds:

Councillor Cecile Biant - £1574.88 (£425.32 has been allocated to Greave Play Scheme).

Councillor Surinder Biant - £1232.53 (£767.47 has been allocated to Rooley Moor Neighbourhood 
Forum Launch Event)

Councillor Cocks - £2000

Ward Funds - £7387.72 (£297.28 has been allocated to Churchill Street Bollards; £315 has been 
allocated to Churchill Street Litter Bin)

A general discussion took place about a number of projects that may be suitable for financial 
support. These included:

Safety Barrier

Following the recent incident on Sandy Lane which resulted in a wall being demolished by a 
speeding car a request had been received to install a safety barrier at the location to improve safety 
in the area. An estimate of £2700 had been received for this work.

The Forum was not convinced that this was necessary, especially a barrier and thought it was a 
knee-jerk reaction. They also commented that there were other areas in the Ward that required 
safety improvements. They also asked why bollards would not be appropriate.

Having said this, the Area Forum Sub-Group agreed to consider this again once a commissioning 
document has been received.

Page 63



The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to progress this matter.

Meanwood School Fencing

An application for £14980 had recently been submitted to Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Sub Committee (RTAC) for the restoration of the above fencing. The application was 
refused.

The Forum was informed that if they wished this work to be carried out it would be necessary to re-
submit another application. However this application would have to be different. The only way the 
application could be amended would be by obtaining funding from another funding stream which 
would enable an application to be submitted to RTAC for a lesser sum. 

Following discussion the Forum refused to support this project from Ward funds, therefore a re-
submission to RTAC would not occur in the short term.
A resident asked if an application form for funding could be forwarded to him regarding a project at 
St Edmunds Church.

A general discussion took place about the planting of flowers/flowerbeds within the Ward. 

The Chair reminded the Forum that any applications for Ward Funds should be submitted as soon 
as possible.

67 OPEN FORUM
Residents raised the following issues:

- Area Forum members expressed their disappointment that no Ward Councillors were in 
attendance at tonight’s meeting. 

It was explained that apologies had been received and that there was also a clash of 
meetings. 

- A resident raised concerns about the lack of information and poor communication about the 
TBA site.

An information sheet on TBA related issues was circulated to Forum members and the 
information provided can be seen below:

What is happening on site;

The site owner has commissioned a company - RSK to undertake an intrusive site survey.

Purpose of the survey; 

Some previous surveys have been undertaken on an ad-hoc and piecemeal basis. This 
survey will use the old information and supplement it with more investigation to provide a 
comprehensive understanding of the site.

Details of the survey;

The contractor RSK has conducted risk assessments and safe working practises. Resident’s 
concerns about work on site (eg washing down machinery) have been passed onto RSK and 
dealt with.

Page 64



Road Closures; 

The contractor has applied to the Highways Authority and permission has been granted to 
close part of Woodland Road and Spod Road during the intrusive site works. The road 
closure is permitted for 8 hours per day (9.00 – 17.00hrs)

The RBC website will be updated to include this information.

Results of the survey; 

The contractor; RSK will report all findings to the site owner. The site owner has agreed to 
share the final report with the Council, which will then also be available to the Public. No 
specific date has been stated at this time for the report to be made available to the Council 
and the public.

  
Illegally dumped waste materials on site;

The Environment Agency are the enforcing authority for waste materials and they are 
conducting a criminal investigation. The EA have not disclosed any further information to the 
Council as this may compromise their investigation. RBC is unable to comment further in this 
regard. 

Future of the site;

The survey report will allow the site owner to consider the future options and feasibility for 
the site. It is therefore not possible at this stage to say what the future use will be.

Any future use will require planning permission and the normal planning process of planning 
application, consultation, consideration and then determination will be followed. 

- Concerns were raised about the length of time it was taking to carry out the work on Mellor 
Street Bridge. 

- Concerns were raised about the litter that was being caused by smokers near to Ings Lane 
Clinic.

- Amy Street and Cutgate Road were highlighted as dog fouling hot spots.

- A resident asked what the current situation regarding the land that had been identified as 
replacement for Lenny Barn was.

- Residents asked what Section 106 monies were available to the Ward.

- A resident also suggested that an information sheet should be provided at Area Forum 
meetings with useful contact numbers.

- A resident reported the street sign on Woodstock Street needed replacing.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report / investigate the above issues.

68 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday 30 March 2017, commencing 7pm.
Spotland Methodist Church

Page 65



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP CLEAN AND GREEN 
PRIORITY GROUP

Thursday, 15 December 2016
Room G10 - Number One Riverside

MINUTES

Present: Councillors Sameena Zaheer (Chair), Jean Hornby (Vice Chair), Wendy Cocks, 
Kieran Heakin, Michael Holly, Kathleen Nickson and Peter Winkler

Nigel Morrell and Roy Down (CG/07/16 Rochdale Township in Bloom 2017)
Paul Whiting (CG/09/16 Denehurst Park Trees Replanting and Garden Restoration)

Officers: Rachel Hudson (Townships)

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES
The chair welcomed all to the meeting.

Apologies were received from Councillors Howard and Brosnan.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the last meeting were approved as a true record.

No matters arising.

3. GRANT APPLICATIONS
CG/06/16 Rochdale Township Litter Pick Packs
An application to commission Environmental Management to provide litter pick packs to 
environmental community groups based in the Rochdale Township on request (subject to 
agreement with relevant Ward Councillors) was submitted for consideration.  Ten litter pick packs 
would be acquired at a cost of £4,042.90.
Decision: Members decided to defer this application

CG/07/16 Rochdale Township in Bloom 2017
An application was received from Rochdale In Bloom applying for a grant of £5,000 to deliver 
horticultural projects throughout Rochdale Township and enter the Small City Category of RHS In 
Bloom competition.  Rochdale In Bloom aspire to build upon the previous five years of Rochdale 
Township In Bloom success and sustain the Gold Award received in 2016.
Decision: Members agreed to support a grant of £5,000

CG/09/16 Denehurst Park Trees Replanting and Garden Restoration
An application was received from the Friends of Denehurst Park applying for a grant of £1,203 to 
complete the Victorian Garden in Denehurst Park, improve the park’s landscape and create a new 
welcoming entrance into the park.  The project will require 30 varieties of plants to complete the 
herbaceous border and 33 trees planted along the path leading from the reopened Willbutts Lane 
entrance to the sunken garden to create a colourful and unique attribute to the park.
Decision: Members agreed to support a grant of £1,203

Page 66

Agenda Item 13



4. MEMBERS CLEAN & GREEN ISSUES
Clean & Green Team
Members were advised the Clean & Green Team is available to respond to any requests within their 
wards concerning grot spots.  Contact the Township Office with details of the work required, eg 
weeding, strimming overgrowth, litter pick, etc, and the location.  All requests are sent to the 
Township Chair for authorisation before forwarding to Environmental Management to action.

Devolved funded litter bins
Funds have been secured for the provision of litter bins as part of The Leader’s manifesto.  
Rochdale Township has an allocation of 59 litter bins.  Members were informed requests for litter 
bins will be processed via the Rochdale Township Office.  Discussions were held about the 
procedure for processing the litter bin requests.  All requests for litter bins will involve consulting 
Environmental Management on the proposed location for installation relating to their ability to 
service the bin.  Ward Councillors will be provided details of the proposal to install a litter bin within 
their ward and their support obtained.  On receipt of support, the litter bin request will be forwarded 
to the Township Chair for approval before Environmental Management is instructed to install the bin.

5. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday 16 March 2017 at 5pm in Room G10, Number One Riverside

Page 67



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITIES AND 
ENGAGEMENT PRIORITY GROUP

Wednesday, 21 December 2016
Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith 

Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

MINUTES

Present: Councillors Wazir (Chair), Nickson, Daalat Ali, Cocks, Gartside, Rashid and Sultan Ali 
(Substitute)

Officers: G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer)

Apologies: Councillors Duckworth, Ali Ahmed and Zaheer

Councillor Zaman also attended the meeting in support of applications CE/13/16 & CE/18/16

22 INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting. It was explained that the group had £8102 available in its 
budget and that the maximum amount of financial support an application could be awarded is 
£2000. The total amount of funding being applied for by the applications received at tonight’s 
meeting totals £10710.

Apologies had been received from Councillors Duckworth, Ahmed and Zaheer. Councillor Sultan Ali 
was attending the meeting in his role as a substitute for the Group.

23 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority Group held on 
Wednesday 28th September 2016 were approved as a correct record with no matters arising.

24 GRANT APPLICATIONS
CE/13/16 – MULTICULTURAL RESOURCE CENTRE – POETRY AND HISTORY OF ASIAN 
GREETING CARDS AND LINK WITH CHRISTMAS CARDS– APPLIED FOR £750

The Group agreed to support this application to the value of £500.

CE/14/16 – HAMER YOUTH ORGANISATION – SAFER PLATFORMS, JUST SAY NO – 
APPLIED FOR £2000

The Group agreed to defer this application.

CE/15/16 – SPOTLAND COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION – HEALTHIER HEARTS– APPLIED FOR 
£2000

The Group refused this application.

CE/16/16 – CRESCENT COMMUNITY RADIO – ELDERLEY PRESENTERS PROJECT – 
APPLIED FOR £1960

The Group agreed to defer this application.

Page 68

Agenda Item 14



CE/17/16 – ROCHDALE KASHMIRI ASSOCIATION – WHAT IS KASHMIRI – APPLIED FOR 
£2340

The Group agreed to support this application to the value of £1500.

CE/18/16 – MULTICULTURAL ARTS & MEDIA CENTRE – SUPPORT PROGRAMME FOR 
THOSE WITH MENTAL HEALTH & LEARNING DIFFICULTIES – APPLIED FOR £2000

The Group agreed to support this application to the value of £1000.

25 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
8th March 2017 at 6pm
Training & Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside

Page 69



Title: Edenfield Road, Rochdale - Sandy 
Lane to Cutgate – Objections to Traffic Order

Public/Private: For Publication/Not for 
Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Environment

Report Author: Paul Wotton

Date: 7 March 2017

Director:    Director of Neighbourhoods

Tel: 01706 924593  

Author Email:    
paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk

Key Decision: Yes/No

Comments from Statutory Officers: Monitoring Officer:  Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

1 Purpose of the report

1.1       This report is to advise Members of objections received to a proposed introduction of 
‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restrictions on parts of Edenfield Road, Rochdale (A680) 
between Sandy Lane and Cutgate, in Spotland & Falinge Ward.  

2 Recommendations

2.1       It is recommended that the Committee considers whether the proposed Traffic 
Regulation Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No. 108) Order be 
implemented in light of the representations received which are outlined in Section 7 of 
this report.

3 Reason for Recommendation

3.1 To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, Regulations 1996 the 
Authority must consider all objections submitted during the consultation period of at 
least 21 days (see Section 7) before ‘Making’ a Traffic Regulation Order.

3.2 The Committee should consider the objections received and make a decision as to 
whether the scheme can be progressed and the new restrictions introduced.

3.3  It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is deemed 
strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with Section F2 of the 
Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee. Committee has delegated power to 
confirm the proposals and the Order. However, if the Committee wish not to confirm 
the proposals and the Order, the matter must be referred to Cabinet for decision.

Page 70

Agenda Item 15



4 Alternatives Considered

4.1 Consider recommending to Cabinet that the proposal be abandoned

4.1.1 The proposal to make a Traffic Regulation Order affecting sections of Edenfield Road 
(A680) and into several of its side streets in the Spotland & Falinge Ward has been 
developed for and commissioned by Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee.

4.1.2 Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then issues of 
junction visibility, forward visibility and impeding the free passage of through traffic will 
not be addressed by continuing with the current level of restriction on the highway.

4.1.3  It should be noted that this Traffic Regulation Order is proposed as a consequence of 
indiscriminate parking along the lengths of roads concerned affecting driver visibility 
and road safety. To address this issue it is necessary to introduce the proposed Order 
as originally advertised (see Appendix A).

5 Consultation Undertaken

5.1 Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, Regulations 1996 has 
taken place.

5.2 The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association have been consulted.

5.3 Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper on 25th 
May 2016.

5.4 The objection period ended on 22nd June 2016.

6 Background:

6.1 Statement of Reasons

6.1.1 Edenfield Road A680 is one of Rochdale’s strategic highways situated to the 
north-west of Rochdale town centre which carries significant traffic flows particularly
in peak hours. 

6.1.2 A service request from a member of the public has highlighted the difficulty 
caused by parked vehicles on Edenfield Road which obscure visibility close to its 
junctions with Phyllis Street and Baildon Road creating potential hazards for emerging 
motorists.

6.1.3 Instances of further indiscriminately parked vehicles on Edenfield Road have been 
found which cause

 obstructions to the free flow of through traffic particularly at peak travel times
 blockage of some parts of the cycle lanes which can force cyclists to deviate 

out into the main traffic lane
 restriction of through traffic on Edenfield Road in the vicinity of Cutgate 

Shopping Centre when parked vehicles hinder efficient use of the right turn 
lane into the centre.

Page 71



 
6.1.4 No Waiting At Any Time restrictions are proposed to remove parked vehicles

from the
 approach to Edenfield Road along each of Baildon Road, Phyllis Street and 

Passmonds Crescent
 approach to Edenfield Road along Amy Street which already has restrictions 

marked on it which do not appear in a Traffic Regulation Order
 informal white hatched markings on Edenfield Road at the junctions of each of 

Baildon Road, Phyllis Street, and Passmonds Crescent. Marked out parking 
bays on Edenfield Road in these locations are mostly reduced in length to 
further improve junction visibility for both emerging traffic from side streets 
and increase their conspicuity to main road traffic

 westbound exit from Sandy Lane junction to protect a section of cycle lane up 
to a point where an existing marked unrestricted parking bay reaches 
sufficient width for a vehicle to fit in it without obstructing the cycle lane

 eastbound cycle lane beyond Passmonds Crescent heading towards Sandy 
Lane where it is frequently obstructed by parked vehicles up to and including 
the bus stop situated in the layby just before the Sandy Lane junction

 south side of Edenfield Road between Upper Passmonds Grove and Cutgate 
Shopping Centre where isolated indiscriminately parked vehicles do restrict 
the free movement of through traffic

 north side of Edenfield Road between the pelican crossing situated to the 
west of Amy Street to Somerset Grove where isolated indiscriminately parked 
vehicles do restrict the free movement of through traffic.

6.1.5 At 4 bus stops the proposed No Waiting At Any Time restrictions are to be 
supported by No Stopping Except Buses restrictions.

6.1.6 At 2 bus stops situated where there are no proposals to introduce any waiting 
restrictions No Stopping Except Buses restrictions are proposed between the hours 
7am and 11pm.

6.1.7 Marked unrestricted parking bays situated on the south side of the Edenfield Road 
dual carriageway section between Willbutts Lane and Upper Passmonds Grove 
remain unaltered except for a minor increase in the length of a bus stop marking 
situated opposite Passmonds Crescent.

6.1.8 There have been three recorded injury accidents in the last 3 years on the section of 
Edenfield Road under consideration.

6.2 The Notice of Intention and two associated plans illustrate the proposals at Appendix A 
of this report.

Page 72



7 Report

7.1 During the consultation period the Authority received nine objections.

7.2 The Objectors can be grouped into three affected sections of Edenfield Road.

7.3 Three Objections concerned with Denehurst Park/Passmonds bend are reproduced in 
Appendix B of this report together with the Director of Neighbourhoods’ response.

7.4 Four Objections concerned with the Upper Passmonds Grove to Cutgate (south side) 
are reproduced in Appendix C of this report together with the Director of 
Neighbourhoods’ response.

7.5 Two Objections concerned with parking matters on the north side are reproduced in 
Appendix D of this report together with the Director of Neighbourhoods’ response.

7.6 Four expressions of support for the proposals contained in this scheme have been 
also been received. It is quite unusual to receive such significant support for this kind 
of scheme and further emphasises the underlying justification for the proposals by 
highway users. Appendix E of this report contains extracts from the comments 
received.

7.7 In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only right 
the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it. The Authority has 
both a duty of care to ensure the safety of the travelling public and a duty under the 
Traffic Management Act 2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

7.8 Rules 242 and 243 of the Highway Code state that motorists should not cause 
an unnecessary obstruction of the road or park within 10 metres of a junction.

7.9 None of the Objectors make adverse comments about the advertised proposal to 
introduce six Bus Stop Clearways to existing bus stops along Edenfield Road. One 
Objector does make a supportive comment about protection of bus stops; “I think that 
clearway markings for buses would be a good idea; I think buses need to have better 
treatment on Edenfield Road”. It is therefore recommended that the Committee 
approves their introduction.

7.10 The proposed Traffic Regulation Order does not contain loading restrictions therefore 
disabled persons would be able to use their ‘up to 3 hours’ blue badge parking 
concessions except on the short sections of Edenfield Road where the six bus stops 
are situated. 

8  Legal Implications

8.1 The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely and
efficiently for all traffic including pedestrians.

9 Financial Implications

9.1 The proposed Traffic Regulation Order is a Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee scheme, and is therefore funded from Township Capital 
Funds. The estimated cost is £4000.

10 Personnel Implications

10.1 This scheme has no implications.

Page 73



11 Corporate Priorities

11.1 The proposed scheme is generated by Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee.

12 Risk Assessment Implications 

12.1 There are no risk assessment implications.

13 Equalities Impacts

13.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

13.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

A detailed Equality Impact assessment is attached as an Appendix to this report. The 
Equality Impact Assessment at Sections 10, 11, 12, and 13 identifies that;

 Disabled persons may benefit from the proposed scheme by a reduction in the 
obstruction of kerbside, footways and visibility by parked vehicles making it 
easier to cross roads.

 Bus stop clearways are intended to assist public transport.
 The scheme does not contain loading restrictions therefore disabled persons 

would be able to use their ‘up to 3 hours’ parking concessions. 
 It further identifies that the proposed restrictions will not prevent motorists 

stopping to allow a passenger to board or alight.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 74



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and Plans
Notice of Intention

TRO Ref No H60/1196

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 108) ORDER

Edenfield Road, Rochdale

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order, the effect of which would be to:-

     (i) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Amy Street, Spotland & Falinge Ward

n(i) the west side from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 15 metres in a 
northerly direction

n(ii) the east side from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 13 metres in a 
northerly direction

Baildon Road, Spotland & Falinge Ward

n(i) both sides from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 15 metres in a 
northerly direction

Edenfield Road, Spotland & Falinge Ward

n(i) the northerly side from a point 5 metres south-west of its junction with Moorland 
Terrace to a point 41 metres west of its junction with Baildon Road

n(ii) the north side from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Baildon Road to a 
point 15 metres east of its junction with Baildon Road

n(iii) the north side from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Phyllis Street to a 
point 10 metres east of its junction with Phyllis Street

n(iv) the north-east side from a point 15 metres north-west of its junction with 
Passmonds Crescent to a point 18 metres south-east of its junction with 
Passmonds Crescent

n(v) the northerly side from a point 40 metres south-east of its junction with 
Passmonds Crescent to a point 47 metres east of its junction with the un-named 
access leading to Lisbon Street

Page 75



n(vi) the south side from a point 29 metres east of its junction with Sandy Lane to a 
point 46 metres west of its junction with Sandy Lane

n(vii) the southerly side from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Upper 
Passmonds Grove to a point 108 metres east of its junction with Pargate Chase

Passmonds Crescent, Spotland & Falinge Ward

n(i) both sides from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 15 metres in a 
north-easterly direction

Phyllis Street, Spotland & Falinge Ward

n(i) the west side from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 17 metres in a 
northerly direction

n(ii) the east side from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 15 metres in a 
northerly direction

24 hour Bus Stop Clearway
Edenfield Road, Spotland & Falinge Ward

north side from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Amy Street for a  
distance of 18 metres in an easterly direction

north-east side from a point 5 metres south-east of its junction with Passmonds 
Crescent for a distance of 13 metres in a south-easterly direction

north side from a point 13 metres east its junction with the un-named access 
leading to Lisbon Street for a distance of 34 metres in an easterly direction

south side from a point 22 metres west of its junction with the un-named access 
leading to Cutgate Shopping Centre for a distance of 34 metres in a westerly 
direction

7am – 11pm Bus Stop Clearway
Edenfield Road, Spotland & Falinge Ward

south side from a point 67 metres west of its junction with Sandy Lane for a 
distance of 20 metres in a westerly direction

south-west side from a point 89 metres south-east of its junction with Upper 
Passmonds Grove for a distance of 23 metres in a south-easterly direction

     (ii) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Edenfield Road, Spotland & Falinge Ward

Page 76



n(i) the north westerly side from a point 42 metres south west of its junction with 
Meadow View to a point 5 metres south west of its junction with Moorland Terrace.

(iii) the north side from a point 34 metres east of its junction with Meadow View to a 
point 42 metres west of its junction with Meadow View

n(iv) The northerly side from a point 34 metres east of its junction with Meadow View for 
a distance of 43 metres in an easterly direction

(iv) the north side from its junction with Amy Street to a point 15 metres east of its 
junction with Amy Street

(vii) the south side from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Sandy Lane to a 
point 29 metres east of its junction with Sandy Lane

n(iii) the southerly side from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Upper 
Passmonds Grove to a point 15 metres west of its junction with Upper Passmonds 
Grove.

(v) the south side from a point 108 metres east of its junction with Pargate Chase to 
its junction with Catches Lane

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected 
at the Customer Services Centre, Ground Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU during normal office hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 
to reach the Council on or before 22nd June 2016, quoting H60/1196.

Dated this 25th day of May 2016

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal, Governance & Workforce

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 77



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and Plans
Plan 1 of 2

Page 78



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and Plans
Plan 2 of 2

Page 79



APPENDIX B – Objections Received 
Denehurst Park/Passmonds bend

Objector B1                 . 
     . Edenfield Road, Passmonds, Rochdale OL11      .   

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of Economy & 
Environment

30th May 2016

Regarding: H60/1196

Dear Sir/Madam

I am writing in response to the recent proposal 
to add ‘No waiting at anytime’ restrictions 
outside my house on Edenfield Road. I am 
deeply upset and anxious about the way that 
this will impact on my life. I live at number      . 
which is one of the cottages next to 
Passmonds car garage. I have lived there for 
almost nine years and have parked there 
without any problems at all during that period.

I am extremely proud to own the house. When 
I first viewed the house I knew immediately 
that I would buy it. I spoke to neighbours and 
the estate agent about the parking situation 
and was told that historically there had never 
been any issues with parking outside. My 
father and I conducted a thorough security 
check of the area before I bought the house 
and a key factor in my decision was the street 
lighting outside the house and the accessible 
parking.

I am a female resident who lives alone. I work 
very long hours and regularly return home 
from work after dark. As a teacher I often 
return home with boxes of resources and 
students’ work. I am really concerned that I 
will not have anywhere to park when I get 
home. As a result of the restrictions that are 
being proposed up and down the road I 
honestly don’t know where I could park as an 
alternative. The thought of having to park my 
car somewhere else and walk with my 
resources and equipment in the dark really 
frightens me. This would be even worse in icy 
conditions both in the morning and at night.

At the weekend I look after my niece and 
nephew who are aged three and one. I 
couldn’t possibly get them out of my car by 
myself and get them into my house safely. At 

Parked vehicles do affect the flow of traffic 
at the location in question, situated on a 
left hand bend, where parked vehicles 
occupy a cycle lane, restrict forward 
visibility on the approach to the major 
junction at Sandy Lane and Ings Lane, and 
can hinder traffic wishing to turn right into 
Denehurst Park car park.

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

There can never be a guarantee that a 
road without restrictions on it will remain 
so.

In its role as Highway Authority the Council 
does not have a duty to provide kerbside 
parking for residents.

The ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions 
proposed do not restrict the ability for a 
motorist to stop and load/unload or to 
allow passengers to board or alight from a 
vehicle.

Page 80



the same time I also can’t imagine having to 
walk with my groceries and purchases across 
a main road.

There are only five cottages in the row and 
only four car owners. We are all professional 
people who work Monday to Friday. We leave 
in rush hour and return after rush hour (two of 
us return very late) and therefore that part of 
the road is vacant all day. At weekends we 
are out and about. The flow of traffic has 
never been affected and we are not blocking 
anybody’s view when pulling out of the side 
streets. Having said that, when we are parked 
there, there is plenty of room for cars, buses 
and HGVs to get past. There is also plenty of 
room for cyclists too. On the opposite side of 
the road (outside Denehurst Park) there are 
marked bays and a cycle lane. The road is the 
same width on both sides and I was 
wondering if a suggestion could be to add 
bays outside our houses alongside a cycle 
lane. This is the case up and down Edenfield 
Road (right into Norden and down to Spotland 
Bridge), where there are both bays and a 
cycle lane. If the parking bay isn’t possible 
then there is still plenty of room to extend the 
cycle lane. I would be more than happy to pay 
for a resident parking permit to limit the 
amount of cars that could park there. Another 
suggestion could be to remove the island in 
the middle to allow a little more room. The 
islands are relatively new and rarely used by 
pedestrians.

I have had a good look at the map outlining 
the proposals and this affects a lot of 
residents. There really isn’t anywhere else 
that the cars could move to. This will mean 
that people possibly park outside people’s 
homes on the nearby cul de sacs which could 
cause friction and unease amongst residents 
(these streets are already very busy). There is 
also a corner shop just next to Denehurst 
Park. Customers regularly park in the bays 
outside the park so these spaces are taken. 
I’m really upset at the thought of having to 
spend the future worrying about where I can 
park my car every time I go out and I am 
really anxious about it. This would be even 
worse on football match days. 
 
My neighbours and I are very courteous and 
considerate to other road users and 
pedestrians. As mentioned at the beginning of 
the letter, I have lived and parked here for 

Other vehicles can and have been 
observed to park at the kerbside during 
these times.

Parked vehicles do affect the flow of traffic 
at the location in question, situated on a 
left hand bend, where parked vehicles 
occupy a cycle lane, restrict forward 
visibility on the approach to the major 
junction at Sandy Lane and Ings Lane, and 
can hinder traffic wishing to turn right into 
Denehurst Park car park.

The cycle lane in this location is regularly 
obstructed by parked vehicles and the 
road is of insufficient width to create 
parking bays with a cycle lane on the 
outside of it.

Limiting parked vehicles to those of 
residents’ only would not solve the issue of 
obstruction or forward visibility.
There is insufficient width to alter the 
central reserve bearing in mind the use by 
vehicles crossing its gap to reach 
Denehurst Park car park.

Page 81



nine years without any problems. Our cars do 
not obstruct drivers’ views or stop the flow of 
traffic. I appreciate that cyclists deserve to feel 
safe on the roads, however the cycle lane 
outside my home could be extended and as I 
mentioned before, the spaces are empty for 
the majority of the day.

I cannot emphasis the enormity of the 
difficulties that the restrictions would impose 
on my life. It may seem that I am using a lot of 
emotive language throughout my letter but I 
am genuinely very upset about it. After many 
years of hard work, I have for the first time 
been able to afford a brand new car. I would 
like to be able to continue parking it where I 
can see it. There have been several reports of 
criminal damage to vehicles around the area 
and I do not want to be victim.

I was wondering if it would be possible to 
please arrange a meeting so that we can 
discuss face to face. I have some availability 
on      . and      . if this is convenient. I really 
hope that we can discuss this further and I 
would really appreciate your time. My contact 
details are below. I look forward to hearing 
from you.

Yours faithfully             .    

Objector B2                 . 
     . Edenfield Road, Rochdale OL11      .

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

June 13th 2016
Subject:- No waiting restrictions on Edenfield 
Road Passmonds

Dear Sirs

      I wish to oppose most strongly to the 
proposed changes.

The way to make the area safer is to calm the 
traffic speed,not to prevent residents from 
parking outside their homes thus giving the 
speedsters yet another excuse to travel at 
40mph

I appreciate that no one has a god given right 
to park in front of their home, but on 
inspection of the plans it appears that some 
parking bays are being left outside homes 
which already have driveways and to leave 

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

Restrictions are proposed where required 
for forward visibility, junction protection 
and the removal of obstruction to through 
traffic.

Page 82



others who have no driveways, without any 
parking bays ,such is the case with my 
property

Double yellow lines everywhere will make it 
look like a “Freeway” than just a busy local 
road (which it is). It will encourage speeding 
and not reduce it, as should be the case. 
People will not stop from parking on Double 
Yellow lines despite the laws in force because 
there are simply not enough enforcement 
officers to deter them. The odds against 
getting caught are very low. Traffic wardens 
will be round the area like a “rash” round here 
to begin with and then because they cannot 
possibly be everywhere at once their visits will 
be fewer and less frequent. Football traffic in 
the season will be affected

Speed cameras along the stretch of road from 
Sandy Lane lights up to Cutgate would be the 
answer and are self policing.

Vehicles travelling passed my house in both 
directions are achieving speeds far in excess 
of 30mph in fact some in excess of 40mph. 
Those travelling East from Cutgate  cut the 
corner in front of my house and those of my 
neighbours and race up to the lights hoping to 
get there before they change.

If the speed along the entire length of 
Edenfield Road was calmed then there would 
be no danger to people crossing or to vehicles 
joining from the side streets.

Driving at 30mph creates gaps for cars to join 
the flow of traffic and is safer for pedestrians 
without the need to keep adding lines to 
prevent stopping which only gives these 
irresponsible drivers an excuse to travel even 
faster

Try it yourself sometime and you will find that 
it works

There is NO NEED to stop cars from parking. 
It is a 30mph area not 40mph area.If it was, 
then I would be in favour of lining the whole 
lot!! and letting the speedsters get on with it!! 
Then the number of recorded incidents WILL 
rise!!

In this day and age traffic has to be calmed by 
force these days because the modern day 
driver cannot stick to a speed limit.

At present vehicles are prevented from 
travelling past occasional obstructions 
caused by indiscriminately parked vehicles 
which mean vehicles in opposing 
directions have on occasion to give way, 
particularly if one or both vehicles is large 
such as a bus or goods vehicle.
Removal of parked vehicles does not in 
itself promote motorists travelling at 
excessive speed, but does remove the 
slow down, give way, accelerate past 
obstructions in favour of the opportunity to 
make normal unhindered progress.

We are required to ensure that the 
highway operates efficiently and safely for 
the large volumes of traffic that use this 
road.

Restrictions proposed at junctions are 
intended to improve identified visibility 
problems reported by some highway 
users.

Page 83



I frequently travel from Edenfield. As you are 
aware the speed limit changes from 50mph to 
40 mph and then to 30 mph as you get 
to”Nutters”. Before I have travelled many 
yards some “Boy or Girl Racer” is behind me 
wants to shove me all the way down Edenfield 
Road ,because They want to travel faster than 
30mph

Norden village is very narrow and with lots of 
hazards, Beyond there the road widens and 
drivers think they have a right to speed all the 
way down to Passmonds.

It would be more cost effective to install speed 
cameras rather than going to the expense of 
re-setting out all the lines involved.

I think that provision for on street parking 
should be given priority over cycle lanes 
providing that within that area the speed limit 
is strictly kept to 30mph

I also think that permits should be issued to 
Nos246.248.250.252 and 254 Edenfield Road 
otherwise when we return at the end of the 
day there will be be nowhere to park up.

Regards

Cyclists are another class of highway user, 
and motorists wishing to park have no 
absolute right to do so.

Issuing permits would not solve problems 
of obstruction and forward visibility.

Objector B3                 . 
     . Edenfield Road, Rochdale

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Tue 21/06/2016

parking restrictions(No waiting at Any time 
restrictions Edenfield road ,Sandy Lane to 
cutgate.

To who it my concern 
 
I would like to rise my objections to the 
proposed parking restrictions that will effect 
parking outside my house at      . Edenfield 
Road I object to this restriction on the 
following that the parking bays on the 
opposite side of the Road would not 
accommodate all the vehicles and for many 
years there was a parking bay outside the 
house. Due to the lack of parking i feel that 
this could cause disputes with neighbours in 
the surrounding streets.            Regards

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

Page 84



APPENDIX C – Objections Received 
Upper Passmonds Grove to Cutgate (south side)

Objector C1                 . 
     . Edenfield Road, Rochdale OL11      .   

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Thu 09/06/2016
H60/1196

FTAO David Wilcock,

I would like to make an objection to the 
proposed “No Waiting At Any Time” on 
Edenfield Road reference H60/1196.

My family and myself have only moved into 
our property at     . Edenfield Road in October 
2015 and one of the reasons for moving was 
due to the fact that we would be able to park 
outside our house as we have a young child 
who in now 6 months old. My wife requires 
access to get our child in and out of the car at 
the front of our property as she has back 
problems.

The proposed restrictions on parking would 
have a negative impact on the on the resale 
price of our property if we were ever to sell the 
property.

As our son is only 6 months old we often have 
friends and family visit. The proposed 
restrictions would result in there being 
insufficient parking space for any visitors as 
the on street parking on the opposite side of 
the road is taken up by the residents of the 
other side of the road.

Due to not having access at the rear of the 
house any workmen or deliveries have to park 
up at the front of our property, the proposed 
restrictions would prevent this and would 
prevent us from making any improvements to 
our property. Last year our property and our 
next door neighbour’s properties cellars were 
flooded, any restrictions would prevent United 
Utilities gaining accessing to the properties to 
pump out the water.

It is not just concerns for myself but for the 
effect that the proposed traffic restrictions will 
have on others, including local business.

The traffic restrictions will cause residents to 

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

There can never be a guarantee that a 
road without restrictions on it will remain 
so.

The desire to park directly outside of 
residential properties conflicts with 
Edenfield Road’s status as a classified 
road and strategic route.

The value of a property cannot include a 
sum for items that the seller has no control 
over such as parking on the Public 
Highway.

The ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restrictions 
proposed do not prevent motorists 
stopping to load/unload or to allow 
passengers to board or alight from a 
vehicle.

Page 85



park on Cuttgate Precinct and in turn the 
parking spaces will soon become full, 
meaning that shoppers will be unable to park 
and will most probably take their trade 
elsewhere. Any loss in trade will impact on the 
business on Cuttgate Precinct and if any of 
these close it will then cause a loss in revenue 
for Rochdale Council through business rates 
and rental, as I am led to believe that the 
council own the properties at Cuttgate 
Precinct.

When Rochdale Football club are at home, 
both home and away supporters park on 
Edenfield Road where the proposed 
restrictions are planned. If there is nowhere to 
park this could result in drop in attendance for 
the Football Club and a loss in revenue. The 
reduced parking options could again have the 
same effect on Cuttgate Precinct as stated 
above.

The proposed stretch of road is already 
abused by speeding motorists and a reduction 
in parked cars on the road will just give cause 
for the speeding cars to go faster without any 
obstacles, resulting in a danger to the public 
and property. 

Due to the negative impact that these 
restrictions will have, as stated above, I 
cannot envisage the benefits the proposed 
restrictions will have on the people living and 
working in the proposed area and the benefits 
that this will have on the flow of traffic through 
this area.  

I look forward to your positive response and 
hope that all of my concerns are taken in to 
account when a final decision is made.

Regards

At present vehicles are prevented from 
travelling past occasional obstructions 
caused by indiscriminately parked vehicles 
which mean vehicles in opposing 
directions have on occasion to give way, 
particularly if one or both vehicles is large 
such as a bus or goods vehicle.
Removal of parked vehicles does not in 
itself promote motorists travelling at 
excessive speed, but does remove the 
slow down, give way, accelerate past 
obstructions in favour of the opportunity to 
make normal unhindered progress.

Objector C2                 . 
     . Edenfield Road, Rochdale OL11      .   

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

21 June 2016
H60/1196

To whom it may concern

Re: H60/1196 Statement of Intent for 
waiting restrictions on Edenfield Road

Page 86



I am writing in response to a notice I have 
seen taped to a lamppost near my home.  It 
was in regard to the waiting restrictions and 
changes to road markings and designated 
parking for the stretch of Edenfield Road 
between Sandy Lane and Cutgate.  I followed 
this up on the Council's website and found 
that most of what is being proposed is very 
unnecessary, and that the proper impact of 
implementing these restrictions on this part of 
Edenfield Road had not been properly though 
through from the point of view of residents or 
accounting for the needs of the surrounding 
area.

My main concern are:

 Precautions already put in place by 
Rochdale Council that have improved 
visibility at the junctions on Edenfield 
Road / Amy Street and Cutgate precinct

 The 3 accidents that have happened on 
Edenfield Road in the last 3 years

 Potential parking available to residents 
who do not have off-road parking of their 
own and the increased competition for 
parking spaces on Cutgate precinct

 The potential of cars being parked on 
side streets and increasing competition 
for parking with the residents who already 
make use of these spaces

 The parking needs of Spotland Stadium 
on match days and the role parking 
availability on Edenfield Road plays in 
this

 The likelihood of Cutgate precinct 
becoming a pay and display car park for 
long stay users

I live at      . Edenfield Road, very close to 
Cutgate precinct (                                    .), 
and I have lived here for 15 years.  We are 
lucky to have off-road parking, but we have 
neighbours in the terraced houses nearer to 
the precinct who do not.  For the same 
reasons proposed for H60/1196, bollards 
have already been put outside their front 
doors to stop them from parking near their 
homes and to reduce the risk posed to drivers 
by obscured vision when trying to exit Cutgate 

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

Most of The Cutgate Shopping Centre car 
park is owned by Rochdale Council.
It is not one of Rochdale’s many managed 
car parks which have controls on and/or 
charges where enforcement is carried out.

Page 87



car park.  This was, I felt at the time, a 
necessary precaution.  One of my neighbours 
owns a large truck as part of his business that 
almost certainly obscured rivers' views when 
exiting the car park.  The residents of that 
stretch of houses now park on Cutgate 
precinct, and the junction is safer for it.  The 
goal of the Council – to make the road safer 
and increase visibility – has been achieved.  I 
do not feel there is further need to limit the 
parking for this reason.  

The Statement of Reason mentions at the end 
that one of the concerns of the Council is that 
on the stretch of road in question there have 
been 3 accidents on the stretch of Edenfield 
Road in question in the last 3 years.  The 
Statement does not include, however, 
reasoning for how these accidents are linked 
to there being parked cars on the road or how 
they could have been prevented if the 
changes to waiting restrictions, road markings 
or reduced designated parking could have 
prevented them.  The Statement also does 
not go into detail about how these changes 
will prevent future accidents.  To my 
knowledge, these 3 accidents did not occur 
after the installation of the aforementioned 
bollards.  

Edenfield Road is one of the longest and 
busiest roads in Rochdale.  Accidents are 
bound to happen and in all the years I have 
lived here I have never seen or heard of a 
very serious one.  If the parked vehicles on 
the road were the main cause of these 
accidents, the Council should make this clear 
in the first instance.  The lack of detail given in 
the Statement of Intent does not make me 
believe that the safety of the road is 
compromised by the parking on the street.  
Making the statement that there have been 3 
accidents does not give me enough reason to 
believe further measures are required.  

I am sure that when the area itself was 
assessed for changes to road markings and 
wait times the assessors will have noted that 
the side streets (such as Whalley Road, for 
example,) are also full of parked cars at the 
roadside.  If parking is restricted on the main 
road, residents and their guests / visitors will 
likely increase competition for parking on 
these side streets and the residents there will 
be affected in turn.  This will have a negative 
impact on their lives.  It is not easy to live 

Imposing controls such as time limits or 
charges is not something that could be 
implemented quickly and would have to be 
firstly approved as a viable scheme and 
then publicly advertised to invite objections 
before any such changes could be made.

Page 88



without off-road parking, especially with the 
number of cars on the road these days.  
Depending on where the drivers of these cars 
may live or are visiting, they might also being 
trying to cross Edenfield Road.  The nearest 
pelican on this stretch is either at the four way 
junction at the bottom or the pelican near Amy 
Street at the top.  People won't walk this 
distance and will try to cross the road in the 
middle.  There needs to be fewer reasons for 
pedestrians to be crossing the road, not more.  
People take silly risks when crossing 
Edenfield Road – I've lived here for 15 years;  
I see it all the time – and to prevent accidents 
there should either be a new crossing 
installed at the mid-point or parking allowed 
on both sides of the road.  

Drivers may choose, as my neighbours 
mentioned above did, to park at Cutgate 
precinct and increase competition for spaces 
there, too.  They will compete with residents, 
visitors and customers who want to use the 
car park for its purpose – visiting the local 
businesses on the precinct.

Another of my concerns, that I don't think the 
Council has considered, is the parking needed 
to support Spotland Stadium on match days.  
At times like these, there are lots of cars 
parked all the way up and down Edenfield 
Road and (unless any of the 3 accidents 
mentioned happened on a match day,) this 
has not posed a problem to the safety of the 
road.  It's a very wide road, ideal for parking 
space, and we don't really mind it as residnts.  
The fans that park there have so far been 
rather respectful.  They don't block drives, and 
– admittedly only in my own experience – they 
do not park in such a way that prevents 
wheelchair users passing by.

If the parking is restricted, they will then start 
clogging up the side streets and affecting 
residents who don't have off-road parking.  
They will fill up Cutgate precinct and prevent 
residents and customers from being able to 
park there.  They will fill up the car park at 
Tesco Extra further up and again, cause 
problems with not enough parking for 
customers there.  The lack of parking is 
already a concern with Spotland Stadium as 
the streets and roads around there are all 
coned off on the day or have double yellows 
to prevent parking.  Whenever someone is 
planning a trip, especially if they are driving a 

Page 89



distance, they will in some way plan their 
parking.  If parking is going to be this much of 
a hassle, they may become more selective as 
to which matches they attend and which aren't 
worth all the stress that comes with trying to 
find a spot somewhere within walking distance 
of the stadium.  This could affect the stadium 
which has no provision to expand its parking 
facilities as far as I am aware.

In addition to my concerns above, I am not 
aware of who actually owns Cutgate car park.  
I believe the car park is where the Council is 
thinking everyone will be able to park once the 
restrictions are in place, and I am very 
concerned that once it becomes obvious that 
there will be a number of users who have no 
choice but to use the car park for long periods 
the owners will decide to make it like the town 
centre car parks – you can park for free for 
short periods (i.e. to use the shops) but if you 
need to be there for longer, you have to pay.  
I've heard before that Cutgate car park could 
be going in that direction, and with the news 
that soon it will be the only option for many 
Edenfield Road residents and guests to park I 
am wondering if this is all coming together 
now.  It would become a very profitable and 
exploitable car park in that respect, with the 
added ticket and fine income.

If the car park is owned privately and the 
Council cannot guarantee that residents won't 
be charged for being forced to make use of it 
in the future, they cannot make the unfair 
decision to restrict our parking and the parking 
for Spotland Stadium in this way.  I am also 
concerned with the safety of leaving cars 
there overnight.  There is no CCTV, and 
where my house is situated you can hear the 
groups of people that congregate there on 
Fridays and Saturdays (and sometimes during 
the week).  We can hear when they are 
skidding around the car park, trying to do 
donuts, revving their engines and playing 
music as loud as they can.  I would not be 
happy to be a resident having to leave their 
car there overnight, free or not.  I would 
definitely think twice about it as it is not a safe 
place to be at night.

I think that clearway markings for buses would 
be a good idea; I think buses need to have 
better treatment on Edenfield Road.  
However, I am also fed up with the sheer 
volume of roadworks constantly happening on 

All six bus stops on the section of 
Edenfield Road under consideration in this 
report are proposed for Bus Stop clearway 
restrictions as part of this scheme.

Page 90



Edenfield Road and implementing any 
changes will mean even more.  I understand 
that improvements are ongoing, but they need 
to be better planned so that they all happen at 
once rather than in a constant drip or trickle.  
Constant roadworks have affected the safety 
and flow of traffic on the road more than 
parked cars with the current bollards and 
restrictions could.  I feel that the waiting time 
proposals and reduction of designated parking 
is going to require a lot of hard work and 
expense for what seems to be little more than 
the convenience of drivers driving down the 
road.  They are the stretch for no more than 2 
minutes.  We have to live here.

This is a densely residential area and 
reducing parking is going to devalue our 
properties and make day to day life difficult for 
some of the residents and visitors to the area.  
I hope that you have considered my views 
carefully and will realise that the plans for 
these waiting restrictions and changes to 
designated parking need to be seriously 
reviewed, and the full impact from the point of 
view of the people who are permanently here 
taken into account.

Yours sincerely

Objector C3                             . for H. Bell & Sons,
33 Princess Street, Rochdale OL12 0HA

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Fri 17/06/2016
H60/1196

60/1196 Proposed Yellow lines to Edenfield 
Rd, Rochdale

F.A.O David Wilcock – proposed no waiting 
on Edenfield Road

We are writing to object to the proposed 
yellow lines to be marked on Edenfield Rd 
outside the development we are to commence 
at 237 Edenfield Road this summer.
As you will see H Bells are a building 
contractor and                             . is part 
owner of the land where we are to commence 
building 2 No.  3 storey properties in 
September providing much needed new 
housing in the borough, and income from the 
council tax. 

Page 91



The proposed no waiting/parking will make it 
near on impossible for us to complete the 
project preventing the parking of operatives, 
delivery of materials and skips to the project. 
Wagons would be required to enter and 
reverse on an existing narrow driveway with 
the need of an ombudsman causing traffic 
disruption.
We feel strongly this will also cause issues in 
the re-sale of the properties on completion 
and reduce the expected value of the 
properties.  

We await your comment

Kind Regards

                            . 
For H Bell & Sons Ltd

The ‘no waiting at any time restrictions’ 
proposed do not affect loading or 
unloading from vehicles and therefore 
kerbside deliveries for a construction 
project would not be affected.

The value of a property cannot include a 
sum for items that the seller has no 
control over such as parking on the 
Public Highway.

There can be no guarantee that 
restrictions will not be introduced on any 
highway in the future

Objector C4                 . 
     . Edenfield Road, Rochdale OL11      .

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Wed 15/06/2016
H60/1196

.60/1196

For the attention of David Wilcock. re; the 
proposed no waiting on Edenfield Road.

My name is                 ., my wife and I have 
lived at       .  Edenfield Road for the past 46 
years. We would like to strongly object to the 
proposed no waiting on Edenfield Road.

I am now nearly 80 years of age and my wife 
is in her 70s. We  have family who visit almost 
daily to see if we need anything and they 
need to park outside, as their time is precious, 
as is yours.
We also pick up our granddaughter from 
school, and her parents collect her as she is 
an infant.

As we appreciate there is parking across the 
road, but most residents have two cars, One 
has three and another has five, so there is no 
room for any guests or anyone to park.
Some of the residents park outside our house 
which we do not object to. When I remove my 
car off the drive so that my wife can go out I 
have to leave my car on the road.
She needs her car as she is not good in 

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

The desire to park directly outside of 
residential properties conflicts with 
Edenfield Road’s status as a classified 
road and strategic route.

At present vehicles are prevented from 
travelling past occasional obstructions 
caused by indiscriminately parked vehicles 
which mean vehicles in opposing 
directions have on occasion to give way, 
particularly if one or both vehicles is large 
such as a bus or goods vehicle.
Removal of parked vehicles does not in 
itself promote motorists travelling at 
excessive speed, but does remove the 
slow down, give way, accelerate past 
obstructions in favour of the opportunity to 
make normal unhindered progress.

Page 92



health, neither am I.

When Rochdale Football Club play at home 
the fans park outside our house which we also 
do not object to. The nearest place will be 
Cutgate Precinct, as will all guests have to go 
to park.
That will reduce the fans which visit Rochdale, 
this will result in lack of revenue for Rochdale. 
I am sure you will agree Rochdale is in the 
news enough.

We have not seen any major accidents 
outside our house, the only ones seem tobe at 
Amy Street crossing. Having cars parked 
outside our house seems to slow the traffic 
down, this seems to cause less accidents.

At weekends when the road is quieter cars 
speed at well over the 30 mph limit, In fact it is 
at least 50mph. as there are no speed 
cameras, children crossing the road to school 
will be more vulnerable.

Due to the negative impact on these 
restriction, I cannot see the benefits of these 
restriction, also it will reduce the value of the 
property.

I look forward to your response and hope you 
will take on board our concerns.

Regards

Page 93



APPENDIX D – Objections Received 
North side

Objector D1                 . 
     . Edenfield Road, Rochdale

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

12.06.2016      REF: H60/1196

Dear Sir/Madam.

The Parking Restrictions which you are 
proposing to implement on Edenfield Road. I 
am a resident residing at      ..

I feel very strongly in these proposals and 
would like to lodge my complaint. My reasons 
are, if these are implemented the parking and 
flow of traffic will only escalate. Where would 
we park legally, our family and friends when 
visiting would be unable to park. On football 
match days it will be catastrophe.

Where there may be less parking restrictions 
would it be better to issue parking permits for 
residents, one permit per household. One 
household has four vehicles and expects to 
park all these outside or near his property. An 
other neighbour is parking vehicles and using 
the area for selling vehicles.

We have lived at our present address for over 
37 years, and if these restrictions come into 
force, where are we and everyone else going 
to park.

The speed of traffic is unacceptable, and will 
only increase, after 20.00 hours many 
vehicles are using it as a race track, with 
speeds inexcess of 60 mph.

We have as residents have enquired to 
yourselves and the police to have speed 
cameras installed, before a fatality occurs.

I strongly object to these proposals being 
passed and implemented, as it will only cause 
severe stress and anxiety, my wife could do 
without as she suffers from vascular 
dementia.

Hoping you take these comments and 
proposals seriously.

Yours faithfully

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

Established marked out parking bays on 
Edenfield Road are being shortened in 
some but not all cases to provide junction 
visibility for motorists on the main road 
together with side streets.

At present vehicles are prevented from 
travelling past occasional obstructions 
caused by indiscriminately parked vehicles 
which mean vehicles in opposing 
directions have on occasion to give way, 
particularly if one or both vehicles is large 
such as a bus or goods vehicle.
Removal of parked vehicles does not in 
itself promote motorists travelling at 
excessive speed, but does remove the 
slow down, give way, accelerate past 
obstructions in favour of the opportunity to 
make normal unhindered progress.

Page 94



Objector D2                 . 
Local resident

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Mon 20/06/2016

Appeal of double yellow lines on Edenfield 
Road

To Whom it may concern,

Re. REF H60/1196

As a local resident, I would like to appeal the 
plans to put double yellow lines on Edenfield 
Road.
My personal feelings are that parking for local 
residents is already very difficult. I personally 
have a 6 month old baby and as i appreciate i 
don't have designated parking, it is becoming 
increasingly difficult to park close to my 
house.
Double yellow lines would put extra pressure 
on local residents.
A greater concern of mine as a parent is the 
speed of the traffic on Edenfield road and I 
feel for the local council, speed management 
should be taking priority.
Another solution could be permit holder 
parking in the area which would aid and limit 
local parking for residents only.
There is also an area of land of Bailden road 
which is currently under managed and 
wasted.
At least an extra 6 car spaces could be 
created here to aide the ever increasing road 
parking.

I hope you take my concerns and possible 
alternatives into consideration when making 
the decision. Rather than considering the 
revenue that double yellow lines could gather 
please appreciate the parking of your local 
residents.

Kind regards

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

At present vehicles are prevented from 
travelling past occasional obstructions 
caused by indiscriminately parked vehicles 
which mean vehicles in opposing 
directions have on occasion to give way, 
particularly if one or both vehicles is large 
such as a bus or goods vehicle.
Removal of parked vehicles does not in 
itself promote motorists travelling at 
excessive speed, but does remove the 
slow down, give way, accelerate past 
obstructions in favour of the opportunity to 
make normal unhindered progress.

Revenue potentially generated from 
additional lengths of restrictions has not 
been considered.

Page 95



APPENDIX E – Scheme supporters’ comments

A selection of comments from four scheme supporters

 there are some parking spaces on Edenfield Road opposite Phyllis Street which 
makes it very difficult and dangerous when turning out of Phyllis Street and when 
someone parks on the diagonal lines at the end of the parking spaces, it makes it 
even more difficult and dangerous.

 ….how I can deter nuisance drivers from blocking access to our driveway? On an 
almost daily basis, drivers are blocking access to our driveway making entrance and 
exit to our property dangerous or impossible (the driveway is in the middle of a 
major road junction……….). I would be interested in looking at either double-yellow 
lines (no-one should be parking in the area in question for any reason as it is simply 
dangerous to do so!)……..

 I'd like to voice my approval of the scheme. I'm a resident of Baildon Road and I 
struggle each and every day to join Edenfield road, visibility of the oncoming traffic 
is appalling.

 A user of Passmonds Crescent commented in a phone conversation that they 
supported the proposals to protect its junction at Edenfield Road with restrictions.

Page 96



1

APPENDIX 

Equality Impact Assessment

 

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below.

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below

Objections to a 
proposed Traffic 
Regulation Order

Service:

Economy & Environment

Section:

Network Management

Responsible Officer:

Paul Wotton 01706 924593

(paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk)

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed:

Consideration of objections to a proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order – Edenfield Road, Rochdale – Sandy Lane to Cutgate.                       
(Spotland & Falinge Ward).

Date of Assessment:     15 February 2017

Officers Involved:     Paul Wotton (paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk)

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed?

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project)

The purpose of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on 
parts of Edenfield Road and some of its side streets, together with some bus stop clearways.

The scheme proposals are intended to prevent parked vehicles obstructing the free passage of traffic, 
obstructing the junctions with side roads, reduce instances of footway parking, improve junction visibility and 
highway safety.

2.Who are the key stakeholders?

Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated sub-Committee who have commissioned the proposed Traffic 

Page 97



2

Regulation Order.

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 
assessment.  

Strengthening restrictions in the area described in Section 1 above.

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet?

To improve

 traffic flow
 traffic circulation at the junctions
 the pedestrian’s ease of use of footways by reducing instances of vehicles which may presently park on 

footways
 access for all to public transport by implementing bus stop clearways
 reducing the number of instances where vehicles park in cycle lanes 
 highway safety by improving visibility at junctions

To meet the aspirations of Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated sub-Committee.

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

No.

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project?

Vehicular users of the highway

Pedestrian users of the highway

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 
who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.

Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated sub-Committee as scheme promoter.

Traffic Management Unit’s members as statutory consultees.

The public in respect of the statutory process to advertise the traffic order proposal, some of whom have chosen to 
make the objections that are now under consideration.

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  
What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

Have followed usual required process much of which is statutory to promote a Traffic Regulation Order.

Page 98



3

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 
include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available.

None.

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 
includes both positive and potentially negative impacts.

Race Equality 

None.

Disabled People

Some of the objectors mention disability issues.

Disabled and all other pedestrians may benefit from the ability to cross roads more easily by removal of 
some parked vehicles from the kerbside, and a reduction in possible instances of vehicles being parked on 
the footway.

Blue ‘disabled’ badge holders may park on the proposed restrictions for up to 3 hours. There are no 
proposals to restrict loading which would have prevented this.

There will be no restriction upon any motorist stopping on the proposed restrictions to allow a passenger to 
board or alight from a vehicle except at the bus stop clearways which are of relatively short length.

As far as the writer is aware there are no resident disabled badge holders directly affected by this proposal.

Carers

See disabled people above.

Gender

None.

Age

The proposed restrictions could affect those with age related disabilities.

Disabled and all other pedestrians may benefit from the ability to cross roads more easily by removal of 
some parked vehicles from the kerbside, and a reduction in possible instances of vehicles being parked on 
the footway.

Blue ‘disabled’ badge holders may park on the proposed restrictions for up to 3 hours.

There will be no restriction upon any motorist stopping on the proposed restrictions to allow a passenger to 
board or alight from a vehicle.

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel

Page 99



4

None.

Sexual Orientation

None.

Gender Reassignment

None.

Religion or Belief

None.

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave

None.

Marriage or Civil Partnership

None.

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

Sole affected group is disabled persons.

12.What are your recommendations?

To mitigate the potential impact on disabled people in preparing this scheme

 loading is not restricted as part of this scheme which would otherwise have prevented parking by 
disabled motorists.

 therefore disabled motorists are allowed to make use of their ‘up to 3 hours’ concessions.

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 
action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions.

The proposed Traffic Regulation Order does include the recommendations contained in section 12 above.

Signed (Completing Officer):       Paul Wotton Date:   15th February 2017.

Signed (Head of Service):      _______________ Date:   _____________

Page 100



5

Page 101



Title: Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17 Public/Private: For Publication/Not for 
Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Community

Report Author: Sharron Worrall

Date: 7 March 2017

Director: Director of Neighbourhoods

Tel: Tel: 01706 924802  

Author Email:  sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk Key Decision: Yes/No

Comments from Statutory Officers: Monitoring Officer:  Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments and 
balances of Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17 and enable the allocation of funds to 
proposed projects.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Committee notes the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale Township 
revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2 Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3.

2.3 Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to proposed 
projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4 Members note the Principal Townships Officer has assessed proposed projects to be 
considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the Rochdale Township 
Fund, the priorities of the Township and any specific risks have been identified 
(information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5 The Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and 
opposition spokesperson of the Committee, to be given delegated authority to make 
decisions on any deferred projects.

2.6 Members note the summaries of evaluation information for projects funded as detailed 
in Appendix 5.

Page 102

Agenda Item 16



3. Reason for recommendation

3.1 Management of the Rochdale Township Fund is delegated to the Rochdale Township 
Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2 Rochdale Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s 
community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable the Committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds.

4. Background

4.1 Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of Rochdale 
Township Funds 2016/17 in Appendix 1 and 2.  Actual/committed spend for revenue 
funds is 87.51% and capital funds is 79.43%.

4.2 Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale Township 
Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure that Members are aware of 
the projects that have been agreed within their Ward.  Members are asked to note the 
decisions made under the delegated arrangements since the last Committee meeting 
in Appendix 3.

4.3 Projects have been identified for funding from Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17.  
Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer the allocation of 
revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in Appendix 4.

4.4 To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2016/17, Members are asked 
to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects to the 
Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and opposition 
spokesperson of the Committee.

4.5 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of grants; 
whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their objectives and 
evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed projects funded complied 
with the terms and conditions of the Rochdale Township Fund.  Grants awarded and 
projects funded have made a difference to the local community with improvements to 
local facilities, increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local 
needs.  All successful applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that 
they complete a project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as detailed in 
Appendix 5.

5. Alternatives considered

5.1 In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the allocation 
of funds to projects as appropriate.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use of the 
Rochdale Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

6.2 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will 
be presented to future Committees.

Page 103



6.3 Monitoring information will be provided to Public Health concerning its contribution 
towards the funds of Rochdale Township.  Projects that support improved physical, 
mental health and wellbeing of people in our local communities will be identified and 
reported to Public Health.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council has 
made a commitment to consider and endeavor to mitigate the impact on beneficiaries, 
service users and volunteers of any changes to the financial arrangements for the 
voluntary sector and to provide at least three months’ notice of such changes.

8. Personnel Implications

8.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

9. Corporate Priorities

9.1 The purpose of the Township funds is to enable Township Committees to meet their 
respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those priorities.

9.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan for 2017-
19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in 
line with the identified priorities.

9.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will 
continue to be presented to future committees on a regular basis.

10. Risk Assessment Implications

10.1 Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be identified 
for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

11. Equality Impacts

11.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

Careful consideration has been given to the potential equality impact of the proposed 
projects.  There are no identified adverse impacts and it is anticipated that the projects 
will benefit all sections of the community.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 104



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2015/16 118,476          48.91% 87.51%

Base Budget 2016/17 185,800          

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 -                     

Total budget for 2016/17 304,276          

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 148,824          

Commitments 117,454          

Total Actual + Commitments 266,278          

Budget Remaining 2016/17 37,998            

Forecast Outturn 304,276          

Potential over/underspend -                     

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2016/17   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17

      £ 

Members Fund -                     54,000      -                       54,000      32,490           16,315          2,740          2,455         54,000       0                 

Ward Fund -                     72,000      -                       72,000      46,218           5,231            -                 12,562       64,011       7,989          

Projects Fund 1,576              19,800      -                       21,376      5,120             6,150            (20,955)       13,151       3,466         17,910        

Clean & Green Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      5,000             3,503            -                 4,500         13,003       6,997          

Communities & Engagement Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      3,000             9,898            -                 2,000         14,898       5,102          

Township Allocated Funds (pre 2015/16) 116,900          -                -                       116,900    25,626           46,488          18,215        26,571       116,900     0                 

Total 118,476          185,800    -                       304,276    117,454         87,585          -                 61,239       266,278     37,998        

 REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE 17,910      

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 105



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2015/16 38,240       79.31% 79.43%

Base Budget 2016/17 182,000     

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 -                 

Total budget for 2016/17 220,240     

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 174,680     

Commitments 250            

Total Actual + Commitments 174,930     

Budget Remaining 2016/17 45,310       

Forecast Outturn 220,240     

Potential over/underspend -                 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2016/17   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17

      £ 

Armed Forces Fund 8,340         -                 -                       8,340          -                   -                 -                 -                -              8,340          

Capital Fund 29,900       182,000     -                       211,900      250               500             -                 174,180     174,930   36,970        

Total 38,240       182,000     -                       220,240      250               500             -                 174,180     174,930   45,310        

  CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE  36,970       

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 106



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION

Members note the delegated decisions made by the Principal Townships Officer in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson

of Rochdale Township Action & Resources Committee

Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/19/16 Bay Street Bollards Supply and installation of two bollards on Bay Street, Rochdale to 

prevent vehicles parking across the dropped kerb and causing an 

obstruction on the narrow side road.

Central 

Rochdale

£240 03 November 2016 Awarded £240 from 

Members Fund

CE/08/16 United for Peace BTM Global Ltd propose to organise events with the aim of 

connecting communities and addressing the issues of hate 

speeches and crimes.  The lectures to be delivered by Davinder 

Prasad JP from British Organisation for People of Asian-origin 

who is experienced in facilitating events that promote community 

cohesion and peace within our communities.

Rochdale 

Township

£1,500 03 November 2016 Awarded £1,500 

from Communities 

& Engagement 

Priority Fund

CG/05/16 Rinse & Recycle Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association to deliver workshops 

with the aim of raising awareness of recycling and complement 

Rochdale Council’s recycling and waste collection campaigns.  

Literature, radio and social media will be used to deliver the ‘rinse 

and recycle’ message in Punjabi, Kashmiri and Bengali 

languages.  The project aspires to change residents’ behaviours 

and for them to realise the benefits of recycling, empower them to 

improve where they live and take a pride in their local area.

Rochdale 

Township

£2,200 03 November 2016 Awarded £2,200 

from Clean & 

Green Priority Fund

W/11/16 Devon Street 

Pedestrian Guardrail

Installation of a two metre length pedestrian guardrail outside the 

entrance to the Crescent Day Nursery, Devon Street, Rochdale to 

prevent young children exiting the nursery running out into a busy 

road.  The guardrail will also stop vehicles driving and parking on 

the footway outside the premises.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£100 07 November 2016 Awarded £100 from 

Ward Fund

W/33/15 Canal 

Bridge/Milkstone Road 

Litter Bins

Supply and install litter bins in the vicinity of the Canal Bridge on 

Milkstone Road, Rochdale to address the problems with litter at 

this location.  Environmental Management support the installation 

of new litter bins in this area and they have agreed to meet the 

future revenue costs of emptying the bins on a regular basis.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£630 07 November 2016 Awarded £630 from 

Ward Fund

APPENDIX 3

Page 1 of 11

P
age 107



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/22/16 Balderstone Library 

Christmas Day Event

Balderstone Library to organise an event on Christmas Day from 

11.30am to 1.00pm to provide a welcome venue during the festive 

period as it can be often a lonely time for many people, especially 

the older generation.  The local community will be invited to 

participate in activities such as board games with refreshments 

made available in a social and friendly environment.

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

£100.60 08 November 2016 Awarded £100.60 

from Members 

Fund

RP/12/16 Christmas Tree Picket 

Fence

Provision of picket fencing for installation about the Christmas tree 

to be located near Rochdale Town Hall

Rochdale 

Township

£2,650.76 08 November 2016 Awarded £2,650.76 

from Projects Fund

M/21/16 MCRC Launch Event Multicultural Resource Centre propose to deliver a launch event to 

raise awareness of the centre’s service provision available to the 

community, build links and encourage local people to get involved 

to maximise the user groups.  A communal room will be painted 

and new shelves and tables provided to enhance the environment 

to make it more welcoming.  Information and advice on 

services/activities will be promoted at the event and health 

awareness material received from Pennine Care will be 

distributed.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£400 19 November 2016 Awarded £400 from 

Members Fund

M/27/16 Seven Acres 

Lane/Keepers Drive 

Grass Verge 

Replacement

Replacement of grass verge at the junction of Seven Acres Lane 

and Keepers Drive, Rochdale to resolve verge damage caused by 

vehicles over running the kerb/verge.  Construction of a 1.5m 

tarmac strip behind the kerb line and replacing the damaged 

paved path leading to the post box with a tarmac path.

Norden £1,000 19 November 2016 Awarded £1,000 

from Members 

Fund

W/15/16 Caldershaw Road and 

Redfearn Wood 

Speed Surveys

Investigation into the speed of vehicles on Caldershaw Road and 

Redfearn Wood, Rochdale involving the installation of two sets of 

tubes (one on each road) that will measure the speeds and 

volume of traffic over a week long period.  Highways will analyse 

the results and prepare a report with options to address the 

concerns raised.

Norden £500 25 November 2016 Awarded £500 from 

Ward Fund

M/35/16 Paint for canal mural 

in Castleton

Provision of additional paint to create a mural that will reflect the 

nature and heritage aspect of the canal and Castleton Village on a 

retaining wall blighted by graffiti near the canal that is highly visible 

to people leaving and visiting Castleton via train or walking along 

the towpath.

Castleton £400 06 December 2016 Awarded £400 from 

Members Fund

Page 2 of 11

P
age 108



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/31/16 Improving health, 

wellbeing & welfare 

project

Deeplish Community Centre propose to organise weekly sessions 

and an awareness event to improve the health, wellbeing and 

welfare of the local community with the focus on isolated and 

disadvantaged elderly and young people.  Activities will include 

welfare/social advice sessions, keep fit/arm chair exercise 

sessions, health checks and guidance/information from 

professionals/agencies about healthy living.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£1,500 08 December 2016 Awarded £1,500 

from Members 

Fund

M/23/16 Kirkholt Bowling Club 

Portable PA System & 

Landscaping 

Equipment

Kirkholt Bowling Club provides bowling and other recreational 

opportunities for the local community in the ward with an 

emphasis on encouraging social inclusion.  The club propose to 

purchase a portable PA system to amplify announcements at 

competitions and social events and a landscaping multi-tool for 

maintenance of the green.

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

£399.99 12 December 2016 Awarded £399.99 

from Members 

Fund

M/36/16 Fencing at rear of 

Bernard Street

Provision of fencing at the rear of Bernard Street, Rochdale to 

ensure the effectiveness of an alley gating scheme proposed in 

the area to address incidents of burglary and anti-social behaviour 

at the backs of the properties.

Healey £898.87 12 December 2016 Awarded £898.87 

from Members 

Fund

M/33/16 Lowerfold Drive Grit 

Bin

Supply and install a grit bin at the top of Lowerfold Drive, 

Rochdale (outside No. 13 Lowerfold Drive – on the left corner just 

before the bend in the road) and maintenance.

Healey £875.18 19 December 2016 Awarded £875.18 

from Members 

Fund

M/34/16 Calverley Way Grit Bin Supply and installation of a grit bin on Calverley Way, Rochdale as 

this stretch of road is hazardous during wintry conditions.

Healey £875.18 19 December 2016 Awarded £875.18 

from Members 

Fund

M/39/16 MCRC Website Multicultural Resource Centre propose to create a website to 

publicise and promote the services and activities available to the 

local community.  Users will be able to view the latest sessions, 

courses and information.  The website will provide an opportunity 

to raise awareness of the facilities available, volunteers will learn 

new skills and it will support the activities of user groups with the 

use of integrated social media.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£175 20 December 2016 Awarded £175 from 

Members Fund

Page 3 of 11

P
age 109



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/29/16 Curtains for St 

Gabriel’s ADMS

St Gabriel’s Amateur Dramatic Society propose to purchase two 

tab curtains to replace existing curtains that are no longer fit for 

purpose due to wear and changes in the school hall where 

performances are held at St Gabriel’s RC Primary School.  The 

society provides an opportunity for local people/children to 

participate in pantomimes, musicals and cabarets, and offers live 

entertainment for the local community.  Funds raised from 

performances contribute to St Gabriel’s RC Primary School’s 

Children’s Champions Group that provides extra facilities for the 

pupils.

Castleton £210 20 December 2016 Awarded £210 from 

Members Fund

W/13/16 Milnrow Road Speed 

Survey

A speed survey involving the installation of pneumatic tubes at two 

locations on Milnrow Road to provide a record of vehicle speeds 

and volumes over a week long period.  Preparation of a report 

detailing the results of the survey that will identify the extent of the 

problem with speeding vehicles and if necessary consult with 

GMP before options to address the concerns are presented to 

Ward Councillors.

Kingsway £500 21 December 2016 Awarded £500 from 

Ward Fund

W/14/16 Croxton Avenue 

Speed Survey

A speed survey involving the installation of a pneumatic tube on 

Croxton Avenue to provide a record of vehicle speeds and 

volumes over a week long period.  Preparation of a report 

detailing the results of the survey that will identify the extent of the 

problem with speeding vehicles and if necessary consult with 

GMP before options to address the concerns are presented to 

Ward Councillors.

Kingsway £300 21 December 2016 Awarded £300 from 

Ward Fund

CG/09/16 Denehurst Park Trees 

Planting and Garden 

Restoration

Friends of Denehurst Park propose to complete the Victorian 

Garden in Denehurst Park, improve the park’s landscape and 

create a new welcoming entrance into the park.  The project will 

require 30 varieties of plants to complete the herbaceous border 

and 33 trees planted along the path leading from the reopened 

Willbutts Lane entrance to the sunken garden to create a colourful 

and unique attribute to the park.

Spotland & 

Falinge

£1,203 21 December 2016 Awarded £1,203 

from Clean & 

Green Priority Fund

RP/14/16 Rochdale Olympic 

Sculpture Re-paint

The Rochdale Olympics sculpture was created by Adrian Moakes 

to celebrate the revolutionary Rochdale Olympic sports car and it 

was officially unveiled on Nelson Street, Rochdale in 2002.  The 

sculpture depicts the car in 11 life size steel red contour layers to 

represent the car skidding along Nelson Street and attempting a 

handbrake turn into Drake Street.  It is proposed to re-paint the 

sculpture to restore its appearance.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£760 29 December 2016 Awarded £760 from 

Projects Fund

Page 4 of 11

P
age 110



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

CE/13/16 Poetry and history of 

Asian greeting cards 

link with Christmas 

cards

Multicultural Resource Centre propose to organise a live poetry 

reading event dedicated to celebrating the birthday of the founder 

of Pakistan, M A Jinnah, and encourage poetry’s role in the local 

community.  Famous poets from Greater Manchester and 

Yorkshire will be invited to read classic poems that reflect the 

theme of Jinnah and an exhibition about the history of Jinnah will 

complement activities.  Also a presentation will be given about the 

history of greeting cards.

Rochdale 

Township

£500 29 December 2016 Awarded £500 from 

Communities & 

Engagement 

Priority Fund

M/25/16 Chloe Cockton 

Memorial

Create a memorial for Chloe Cockton at St Cuthbert’s RC High 

School, Rochdale to provide a place for pupils and staff to 

remember and reflect.  A memorial bench will be installed within 

the school grounds and a memorial plaque will be placed in the 

school chapel.

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

£646 29 December 2016 Awarded £646 from 

Members Fund

CG/07/16 Rochdale Township in 

Bloom 2017

Rochdale in Bloom propose to deliver horticultural projects 

throughout Rochdale Township and enter the North West in 

Bloom Competition 2017 that rewards horticultural excellence, 

community involvement, environmental friendliness and 

sustainability.  The group will be responsible for designing a route 

and itinerary to showcase the best environmental projects in 

Rochdale Township, preparing a portfolio and producing 

storyboards to be presented to the North West in Bloom judges, 

and liaising with local media to publicise achievements and secure 

increased community involvement.  Projects/activities will present 

the beauty and diversity of the local environment and provide 

sustainable, long term improvements in Rochdale Township.  It 

will encourage community groups, businesses and residents to 

work together to improve the areas where they live/work and be 

proud of their achievements.  Rochdale in Bloom aspire to build 

upon the previous five years of Rochdale Township In Bloom 

success and sustain the Gold Award received in 2016.

Rochdale 

Township

£5,000 03 January 2017 Awarded £5,000 

from Clean & 

Green Priority Fund

W/16/14 Kingsway (between 

246 and 268) Footpath 

Improvements

Contribution towards improvements to the footpath between 246 

and 268 Kingsway, Rochdale involving removal of sections of the 

existing grass verge adjacent to trees with extensive root growth 

on the route.  Construction of the footway at these locations to 

create a level surface to allow safe passage for pedestrians. 

Kingsway £240 09 January 2017 Awarded £240 from 

Ward Fund

Page 5 of 11

P
age 111



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/43/16 Rochdalians AFC 

Boiler Replacement

Rochdalians AFC require a new boiler to be installed at the club’s 

changing facilities to provide hot water for showers and washing 

facilities for the players.  The existing boiler was fitted 20 years 

ago and it is no longer fit for purpose and beyond repair.  

Provision of showers and washing facilities are needed for the 

comfort and hygiene of the young players and to enable this 

amateur football club to continue competing in league matches.

Kingsway £550 13 January 2017 Awarded £550 from 

Members Fund

M/24/16 Friends of Balderstone 

Park Event

Friends of Balderstone Park in partnership with Balderstone 

Library organised an event to encourage the local community to 

visit the park and library during the winter months.  Family friendly 

activities included crafts for children aged 4-11, storytelling in the 

library and park, carol singing and provision of festive 

refreshments.

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

£125 16 January 2017 Awarded £125 from 

Members Fund

M/44/16 Moss Row Fruit Trees Provision of fruit trees (three each of apple, crab apple, plum and 

cherry) to create a community orchard that will increase the 

biodiversity and improve the habitat of Moss Row.  The 

Countryside Ranger and Green Volunteers propose to reduce the 

crown cover of existing trees and establish a wildflower meadow 

in the area.  The local community will benefit from access to fresh 

fruit and an attractive area to visit that promotes wellbeing 

activities and encourages people to interact with nature.

Norden £219 16 January 2017 Awarded £219 from 

Members Fund

W/16/16 Edenfield 

Road/Forsyth Street 

Junction Bollards

Supply and install two bollards at the junction of Edenfield Road 

and Forsyth Street, Rochdale to prevent vehicles from mounting 

the footway when turning into Forsyth Street to address the 

potential hazard to pedestrians.

Norden £260 23 January 2017 Awarded £260 from 

Ward Fund

M/42/16 MCRC Laptop Multicultural Resource Centre propose to enhance their 

community engagement and raise awareness of their services 

through the use of technology.  A laptop will be used to produce 

promotion literature about their activities, manage/monitor social 

media accounts to communicate with the local community/service 

users and develop ICT skills of volunteers.

Kingsway £399 23 January 2017 Awarded £399 from 

Members Fund

M/49/16 Football Kit for St 

Clements FC

Rochdale St Clements FC propose to purchase new football kits 

for one of their teams.  Provision of football kits will give the team 

an identity and encourage local young people to participate in a 

sport that promotes health and wellbeing, improves their social 

skills, builds their confidence and provides a positive activity to 

occupy their time.

Bamford £500 23 January 2017 Awarded £500 from 

Members Fund

Page 6 of 11

P
age 112



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/52/16 & 

W/21/16

Bentley 

Avenue/Stakehill Lane 

Waiting Restrictions

Introduction of waiting restrictions on Bentley Avenue/Stakehill 

Lane to prevent the parking of HGV vehicles in the evening and 

overnight to address complaints received from residents about 

anti-social behaviour and noise.

Castleton £4,500 23 January 2017 Awarded £2,390 

from Members 

Fund and £2,110 

from Ward Fund

CE/17/16 Kashmir Kiya Hai 

(What is Kashmiri)

Rochdale Kashmiri Association (RKA) propose to organise open 

days and classes to raise awareness and educate the local 

community about Kashmiri culture, heritage and language.  The 

community open days will be aimed at re-connecting local 

Kashmiri people over 50 with their culture, build networks and 

capture information on Kashmir history, culture and language.  

Young people (aged 14-25 years) will be provided an opportunity 

to participate in a programme about Kashmiri history, heritage, 

culture and language.  A Rochdale Kashmir Youth Forum will be 

established and the project will encourage new 

members/volunteers to join RKA.

Rochdale 

Township

£1,500 23 January 2017 Awarded £1,500 

from Communities 

& Engagement 

Priority Fund

CE/18/16 Supporting people 

with mental health and 

learning difficulties

Multicultural Arts and Media Centre (MAMC) propose to deliver 

sessions on music therapy and reminiscence creative writing 

poetry with elder people and learning disability groups.  Freelance 

professional artists will run weekly sessions at MAMC Centre for 

groups within the Rochdale Township.  The beneficiaries will be 

given the opportunity to get involved in the artistic and creative 

process with the aim of promoting positive relationships, 

improving self-confidence, enhancing skills and sharing 

knowledge and experiences.

Rochdale 

Township

£1,000 23 January 2017 Awarded £1,000 

from Communities 

& Engagement 

Priority Fund

M/57/16 Movement & 

Memories and Meet & 

Eat Community 

Projects

Making Memories Group provides opportunities for the local 

community who are over 50 years of age to participate in activities 

that promote wellbeing and a better quality of life.  The Movement 

& Memories project engages with local people to discuss life and 

their memories and the Meet & Eat Community Project provides a 

hot home cooked meal once a month and an opportunity to 

socialise, develop friendships and obtain support in a welcome 

environment.  A laptop and software would enable the group to 

raise awareness of the projects/activities through the production of 

posters/leaflets and the use of social media.  In addition, the 

laptop would be made available to guest speakers for 

presentations to the group and as a resource for online 

information to aid reminiscence sessions.

Spotland & 

Falinge

£467.68 25 January 2017 Awarded £467.68 

from Members 

Fund

Page 7 of 11

P
age 113



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/37/16 Petrus Peddles Petrus Community have introduced service users to the benefits 

of cycling through bike ability training in conjunction with Transport 

for Greater Manchester.  As the sessions have been well received 

and attended by service users, Petrus Community propose to 

establish the project ‘Petrus Peddles’ that will provide the 

opportunity for service users to improve their cycling and bike 

maintenance skills.  Donations of unwanted bikes and bikes 

recovered by the police will be renovated to be put back into use 

and cycling tuition from basic to a more advanced level will be 

provided.  Two mechanics being trained by Petrus Community to 

City and Guilds Level 2 will teach the service users and volunteers 

basic cycle maintenance skills.  A grant would enable Petrus 

Community to purchase cycle tool kits, work stands and cycle 

accessories to be used by participants.  Petrus Community’s 

longer term aim is to establish a community cycle club to work 

with groups and a cycle café where people can drop in for advice 

and support on cycle related issues.

Kingsway £1,984.52 25 January 2017 Awarded £1,984.52 

from Members 

Fund

M/51/16 Movement and 

Memories

Making Memories Group provides opportunities for the local 

community who are over 50 years of age to participate in activities 

that promote wellbeing and a better quality of life.  The group 

propose to hire a dance artist to deliver exercise and movement 

sessions to their members to encourage them to be more active 

and engage in movement based on memories through discussion.

Spotland & 

Falinge

£480 25 January 2017 Awarded £480 from 

Members Fund

M/45/16 Arnold Bagnall Court 

Social Event

Arnold Bagnall Court Tenants & Residents Association propose to 

organise a social event for new residents who have recently 

moved into the sheltered housing and celebrate the 100th birthday 

of one of their residents.  The event will be an opportunity to 

introduce the new residents to the social activities and support 

available to them, facilities and local amenities and engage with 

other established residents in a friendly environment.

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

£100 27 January 2017 Awarded £100 from 

Members Fund

Page 8 of 11

P
age 114



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/55/16 Sparth Community 

Centre Nursery 

Computer

Sparth Community Centre propose to purchase a new computer 

tower to replace an outdated existing model and 12 months of 

internet security for all the computers/laptops used within the 

centre.  A new computer tower and security software will enable 

the users to effectively input children’s data on the Egres system 

(funding information required by the Local Authority), record 

learning progress of children important for OFSTED inspections, 

download the photos of children’s work to display within the 

nursery and respond to emails.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£429.98 27 January 2017 Awarded £429.98 

from Members 

Fund

M/61/16 Creative English 

Project

Spotland Community Association propose to establish weekly 

creative English sessions for ten months with the aim of teaching 

students to speak conversational English in an informal, friendly 

and fun atmosphere to help them integrate into society.  A tutor 

will build the confidence and ability of students with role play and 

use of visual aids.

Spotland & 

Falinge

£800 01 February 2017 Awarded £800 from 

Members Fund

W/24/16 Snipe Avenue Grit Bin Supply and installation of a grit bin at the top of Snipe Avenue, 

Rochdale (junction of Snipe Avenue and Petrel Close) as the 

roads in the area are hazardous during wintry conditions.

Bamford £875.18 02 February 2017 Awarded £875.18 

from Ward Fund

M/53/16 Sudden Community 

Centre Men's 

Luncheon Club 

Cultural Awareness 

Trip

Sudden Community Centre propose to organise a visit for the 

members of their men’s luncheon club to Manchester Jewish 

Museum to increase their awareness and educate them about the 

lives of Jewish people in Manchester and their contribution to the 

city.  The displays and exhibits in the museum chart the stories 

and experiences of Manchester Jewish life with the aim of 

promoting understanding in the wider community and preserve the 

heritage of the Jewish community.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£262.50 02 February 2017 Awarded £262.50 

from Members 

Fund

W/19/16 This Girl Can Hamer Amateur Boxing Club & Community Fitness Centre deliver 

female only sessions that provide local women the opportunity to 

improve their health and wellbeing in an environment where they 

can work out without feeling judged and network with other 

women creating a sense of community.  The club propose to 

increase participation in their female only sessions and this will be 

aided by the provision of additional boxing and fitness equipment 

designed specifically to appeal to women.

Central 

Rochdale

£2,000 02 February 2017 Awarded £2,000 

from Ward Fund

Page 9 of 11

P
age 115



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/32/16 & 

W/28/16

Thrum Hall Methodist 

Church Roof Repairs

Thrum Hall Methodist Church building is a valued local resource 

that requires substantial roof repairs to continue its use as a 

community hub. The building provides facilities for activities and 

events delivered by community groups/organisations and it 

accommodates a community café, soup kitchen that provides hot 

soup for the homeless five days a week, collection point for the 

food bank, monthly luncheon club for the elderly, mothers and 

toddlers group, art group, keep fit sessions, indoor bowls, youth 

groups, community choir, local Councillor’s ward surgeries and it 

is used as an election voting station.

Healey £1,000 02 February 2017 Awarded £500 from 

Members Fund and 

£500 Ward Fund

M/60/16 Going Digital Spotland Community Association propose to increase awareness 

in the local community of the benefits of social media for sourcing 

employment and further training opportunities.  Participants will 

enhance/gain skills in the use of online services, social media and 

digital technology using websites such as LinkedIn, uploading CVs 

and trying a variety of communication methods.  Classes will be 

delivered for a six month period from Spotland Community Centre 

and participants will be assessed at the end of the project.

Spotland & 

Falinge

£990 02 February 2017 Awarded £990 from 

Members Fund

W/25/16 BACP Web site 

development and IT 

system upgrade

Bangladesh Association and Community Project (BACP) propose 

to develop a web site for their organisation and improve their 

network connectivity with cable connections to the server to 

replace ineffective Wi-Fi and acquire a new PC.  A web presence 

for BACP will facilitate the promotion of their services, activities 

and facilities to the community and encourage interaction with 

service users through integrated social media and online 

booking/enquiry systems with the aim of improving the 

performance of BACP and meeting the needs of service users.  

The upgrading of the network will enhance the user experience 

when using technology within the centre.

Central 

Rochdale

£1,187 02 February 2017 Awarded £1,187 

from Ward Fund

M/54/16 Valentine's Poetry 

Evening

Sudden Community Centre propose to organise a poetry evening 

with a Valentine theme for the local community to enjoy readings 

recited in English, Urdu and Punjabi from established poets and 

an open mic session to encourage the inexperienced poet to 

recite their own work.

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

£250 03 February 2017 Awarded £250 from 

Members Fund

W/20/16 Whitworth Road Route 

Corridor Study

A study to review the restrictions on Whitworth Road from the 

county boundary to Mizzy Road roundabout to identify areas 

where improvements can be made to prevent indiscriminate 

parking with options reported to Ward Councillors.

Healey £1,000 04 February 2017 Awarded £1,000 

from Ward Fund

Page 10 of 11

P
age 116



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

M/41/15 Brookdale Litter Bin Supply and install a new litter bin on Brookdale, Rochdale to 

address the problems with litter at this location.

Healey £341.00 09 February 2017 Awarded £341 from 

Members Fund

M/58/16 Ashworth Road 

Fencing

Supply and installation of fencing along Ashworth Road, Rochdale 

to deter fly tipping and reduce the costs incurred by Rochdale 

Council for investigations and clean ups.

Norden £1,000.00 09 February 2017 Awarded £1,000 

from Members 

Fund

M/46/16 Kirkholt Pantry 

Publicity

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing have started a scheme on 

Kirkholt estate called Kirkholt Pantry that gives local residents the 

opportunity to pay a £3 weekly subscription to obtain a basket of 

food worth at least £12.  Leaflets produced and distributed on the 

estate will raise awareness of the scheme operating from the drop 

in centre on The Strand and encourage Kirkholt residents to join 

the scheme and reduce their weekly food bills.

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

£150.00 10 February 2017 Awarded £150 from 

Members Fund

M/70/16 Morley Street Grit Bin Supply and install a grit bin on Morley Street, Rochdale as this 

stretch of road is hazardous during wintry conditions.

Central 

Rochdale

£875.18 11 February 2017 Awarded £875.18 

from Members 

Fund

W/36/16 Muriel Street/Lockhart 

Street Junction Grit 

Bin

Supply and installation of a grit bin at the junction of Muriel 

Street/Lockhart Street, Rochdale as this stretch of road is 

hazardous during wintry conditions.

Kingsway £875.18 11 February 2017 Awarded £875.18 

from Members 

Fund

W/38/14 Wildflower meadow 

off Tulip Grove

Provision of seeds and plant plugs to re-establish a wildflower 

meadow on land off Tulip Grove, Rochdale that will create a 

habitat and nectar source for pollinating insects and encourage 

local wildlife.  This initiative aims to increase bio-diversity in the 

area, supports the pollinating of the community orchard that 

provides a source of free fruit for the local residents and the 

community can enjoy an attractive green haven.

Healey £261.58 16 February 2017 Awarded £261.58 

from Ward Fund

M/69/16 Rose bushes for 

planters opposite 

Parish Church of St 

Paul's Norden

Provision of rose bushes for planters on Edenfield Road, 

Rochdale opposite Parish Church of St Paul's Norden to create an 

attractive floral display in this location.

Norden £350.00 16 February 2017 Awarded £350 from 

Members Fund

Page 11 of 11

P
age 117



APPENDIX 4

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17

Projects Fund 2016/17 available for allocation = £17,910

Rochdale Township Projects Fund 2016/17 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Rochdale 

Township

Yes

Place

Highways £5,000

Rochdale 

Township

Yes

Place

Environmental 

Management

Option A - £4,230

Option B - £3,175

Option C - £2,115

Balderstone & 

Kirkholt and 

Kingsway

Yes

People

Library Services £7,000

Milkstone & 

Deeplish

Yes

Place

Councillor Brett £1,000

Comments

Norden Yes

Place

Councillor Gartside £1,000

Comments

Risk implication The estimate may change if there are amendments to the scheme once commissioned.

RP/18/16 Edenfield Road Speed Surveys

Project Description Surveys of vehicle speeds on Edenfield Road, Rochdale to determine if vehicles are complying with the legal speed limit.

Highways fully support any investigations on the highway that are required to improve the safety and efficiency of the network.

RP/17/16 Sparthbottoms Road Speed Surveys

Project Description Surveys of vehicle speeds on Sparthbottoms Road, Rochdale to determine if vehicles are complying with the legal speed limit.

Risk implication The estimate may change if there are amendments to the scheme once commissioned.

Highways fully support any investigations on the highway that are required to improve the safety and efficiency of the network.

Project Description

Risk implication An increase in the number of children accessing the provision may change the estimate.

RP/16/16 Read and Feed 2017

Project Description Read and Feed 2017 to be delivered by Library Services during the summer holidays at Balderstone and Belfield Libraries.  This project aims to provide 

a meal to children during the summer holidays who may not eat when not at school (eg children in receipt of Free School Meals), increase the number of 

5-11 year olds accessing local library services and improve take-up of the Summer Reading Challenge.  Continue and build on the success achieved 

with the Read and Feed pilot project delivered at Smallbridge Library in Pennines Township during summer 2016.

Feasibility study into the introduction of a township wide 20mph speed limit as part of a boroughwide scheme.  All roads except those determined to be 

of strategic importance will be included within the study.  Currently all new residential developments are required to have 20mph schemes introduced.  

Highways have experienced increasing requests to introduce speed reductions in isolated locations and this piecemeal approach is not cost effective.  

An application for funds of £5,000 has been submitted to each Township Committee for consideration.

The estimate may change if there are amendments to the scheme once commissioned.

Comments Highways fully support the introduction of a 20mph speed limit on all residential streets as it will improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.

Risk implication

Landscape improvement schemes for Rochdale in Bloom proposed within the wards of Balderstone & Kirkholt, Milkstone & Deeplish, Bamford, Spotland 

& Falinge, Norden and Central Rochdale (additional schemes may be added).  Schemes range from floral displays and increased number of saddle 

planters on railings to full landscape features (see attached Appendix 4A).  The costs of proposed new landscaping for Rochdale is £44,950.  

Environmental Management are seeking funds from a range of sources including a contribution from Rochdale Township.  Option A: 10% contribution = 

£4,230, Option B: 7.5% contribution = £3,175 and Option C: 5% contribution = £2,115.

None - scheme to be delivered to finance available.

RP/15/16 Rochdale In Bloom

Risk implication

Ref

RP/13/16 20mph Speed Limit Study (Rochdale Township)

Name of Project

Project Description

P
age 118



Rochdale Township Capital Fund 2016/17 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Central 

Rochdale

Yes

Place

Councillor Paolucci £4,500

Spotland & 

Falinge

Yes

Place

Councillor Cecile 

Biant

£3,000

Balderstone 

& Kirkholt

Yes

Place

People

Councillor Farnell £1,958.40

Halifax Road Parking Bays RemovalTC/23/16

Ref

Project Description

Capital Fund 2016/17 available for allocation = £36,970

Name of Project

Risk implication

Removal of parking bays on A58 Halifax Road at the approach to the Albert Royds Street roundabout and replace with double yellow lines.  It is the view 

of Councillor Paolucci that the bays are rarely used and if a vehicle does park there it causes an obstruction to the passage of other vehicles.  Central 

Rochdale Ward Councillors have been notified of this proposed scheme.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development 

resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward 

Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee 

any objections received during the legal process.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme requiring 

readvertising.

Comments Highways fully support the removal of the bays and the introduction of restrictions to improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.

Risk implication Estimate assumes there are no underground services that will be affected by the installation of the barrier and require relocating to facilitate the work.

TC/24/16 Sandy Lane Barrier

Project Description Supply and installation of a 15m Armco barrier at the junction of Sandy Lane and Viking Street, Rochdale to prevent vehicles from mounting the footpath 

and causing damage to properties 198 and 200 Sandy Lane (Layout plan at Appendix 4B).

Comments Armco was selected by Highway Maintenance as the most suitable restraint system to prevent damage to both property and potential collisions with 

pedestrians in this location. Currently, there is no statistical information available for accidents involving pedestrians which could support this installation, 

however, given the damage to properties caused by RTAs then there is the potential for an incident involving pedestrians to occur at this location. 

Risk implication None

TC/25/16 St Mary's CE Primary School Community Allotment

Project Description St Mary’s CE Primary School, Oldham Road, Rochdale propose to establish a community allotment on part of their school field next to Balderstone Park 

that will provide an opportunity for the children to engage with local residents on growing and gardening projects.  Creation of a secure allotment area to 

deliver the scheme will require the supply and installation of 21.5m linear metres of 2m high Duex mesh fencing and one pair of gates.

P
age 119



1 
 

Rochdale In Bloom 2017 Draft EM Landscape Proposals  
 

1st Draft November 2016 

 

Main Themes: 

 Analysing landscaping schemes that fell short in 2016 and upgrading  

 Replacing ugly, litter trapping shrub beds with easy to maintain turf and attractive 

additional tree planting, varieties chosen for spring flowers & autumn colour 

 New landscape features to match the innovation shown in 2016 

 Staffing arrangements to ensure flower displays will be maintained to a good standard 

 

Over-arching proposals that will impact on Rochdale Township 

 Creating an additional 2 person seasonal team to maintain the new facilities mid April 

– mid October and to assist with new scheme creation. Two Scale 4 operatives plus 

vehicle, mower for box mowing and horticultural equipment.   

 Improved bedding displays by improving the planting out process.  Issues to address: 

- Ensuring 100% of bedding is planted out in timely manner as this affects 

how well they grow and flower 

- Ensuring every site has a bedding plan with agreed bed size and number of 

plants and layout 

- Ensuring staff equipment and training to do the job properly 

- Supervisor post-inspects to quality of work 

 Purchase of industrial rotavator to be shared by parks, streets and Countryside to 

enable us to deliver new annual flower displays rather than paying external contractor.  

This would realise annual cost savings and provide flexibility for new schemes. 

 Increase Bowlee poly-tunnel capacity / new baskets, to enable trailing plant hanging 

baskets.  Not enough space in current tunnels for the extra plants for side planting 

baskets to disguise the presence of the basket 

 Contractor Town Centre and In Bloom routes deep clean, graffiti and chewing gum 

removal program 

 

Rochdale Township Ideas 

 Shrub bed removals: 

- Mandale Park Manchester Road selected tree removals and invasive cotoneaster 

removal woodland front (below left) and shrub bed opposite by church 

- Samuel St, Castleton (below middle) and Abbott St , Castleton (below right 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Completion Oldham Road bus station scheme started 2016.  Felling 1 tree and 

construction of asymmetrical angular planter, constructed with railway sleeper size 

timbers.  Removal of some remnant shrubs, soiling up and turfing. 

 Opposite Springfield Park entry: plant 8 upright cherry trees in street verge (gap up) 

 
 

 

Page 120

Worrall Sharron
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4A



2 
 

 Handcart with flowers on it and wicker man pushing cart at Rochdale Market site 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Installation at Queensway / Oldham Rd gyratory of large scale old rusty industrial 

metal and shiny new industrial metal to show our industrial heritage and we have new 

successful industry in the Borough. Councillor Farnell has mooted we do something 

here. Planting scheme of rust and silver colour flower & foliage plants (Russian sage, 

Rudbeckia cherry brandy etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 Balderstone Park wildflower meadow that needs a refresh.  Weed spray, rotavate and 

seed with 3m band at front of meadow with annual flowers 

 Daventry Road planting scheme requested by Councillor Farnell to replace failed 

daffodil scheme.  Specific location planting in similar style to Summit in Heywood 

 New triangular rockery planting scheme to be maintained by the community at 

Edenfield Rd / Ashbourne St, Norden 

 Broadfield Park wildflower meadow next to pond. Spray, rotavate and see 1.5m band 

to front of meadow with annual flower seed 

 Broadfield Slopes: eye-sore from the Esplanade. Hard to maintain so steep.  Over-

growth of trees and shrubs have created a wall of vegetation (picture below).  Start 

Touchstones end and trial 1 section shrub & problem tree removal. Install maintenance 

access paths. Replant with heathers, juniper, silver birch, Scots pine etc per original 

design of a romanticised Scottish Glen.  Relocate glacial boulder as a centrepiece.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 Possible contacts for materials: Reynolds, Ellenrod, ELR 

 

Touchstones 

Town 

Hall 

Page 121



3 
 

 St Chad’s traffic island (below): Strip turf off & replant 

with lavender and yellow santolina (pictured right) 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 St Chad’s old Graveyard: Pedestrian gateway into Town.  Remove all shrubs to Drake 

St side (picture below middle) and inside the site to deter anti-social behaviour 

problems. Selected tree felling of dead trees and trees pushing boundary wall over.  

Re-plant for greater variety / mini arboretum.  Small scale replanting of lavender, 

santolina and escholzia to repeat planting round corner at St Chad’s traffic Island 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 St Chad’s Gardens pedestrian gateway to Town. Remove all shrubs to deter antisocial 

behaviour problems and turf up to paths.  Create new scented gardens with rows of 

herbs (lavender, fennel, rosemary) inter-planted with accent flowers (verbena, 

rudbeckia and santolina) for various shaded of blue / purple and yellows flowering 

from early summer to late autumn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 Fennel & verbena pictured at Kew  

 

 

Rudbeckia  

Lavender & santolina Page 122



4 
 

Costs estimate for all proposed Rochdale schemes 
 

Location Project description Elements Costs 

Overarching 2 man seasonal install & 
maintenance team 

Staff costs: 50% share Service budget 
and In Bloom budget (wages, NI etc) 

£14k In Bloom 
£14k Service 

Vehicle hire, mower etc £3k In Bloom 
£3k Service 

Bedding standards 
improvement 

New system for timely planting up £nil 

Performance management £nil 

Bring Pictorial Meadows 
contractor job in house to 
be delivered by Rangers 

Purchase rotavator (v.heavy duty) to 
be shared by Streets, Parks, Rangers 
to replace dinosaur model at Bowlee 
cost neutral yr1 and £4k saving yr 2 on 

£4k year 1 cost 
for machinery 
£3.5k in house 
annual costs  

Bowlee Polytunnel 
capacity increase for 
better hanging baskets 

Construction new polytunnel £8k 

New baskets (part offset by sale old 
baskets) 

£2k 

In Bloom signs for c7 sites  £4k 

 No Graffiti Clean Town 
Centre & In Bloom route 

Focused clean of town centres and 
inspection route in bloom judges take  

£10k  

Total Costs Over-arching Schemes (quarter share for Rochdale Township) £69.5k 

    

Rochdale Mandale A58 frontage Shrub bed and selected tree removal 
Mandale & Church side Rd, plant tree 

£2,500k 

Samuel St and Abbot st, Castleton 
shrub bed removals & grass seed 

£500 

Oldham Rd bus stop 
scheme completion 

Fell 1 tree and remove remaining 
shrubs, soil up and grass seed 

£800 

Bespoke timber planter, soil & plants £600 

Market handcart Purchase of handcart, construction of 
tiered planter to get height 

£2k 

Queensway / Oldham 
Road gyratory industrial 
metal art installation 

Purchase and large scale installation 
industrial metal (Township grant to be sought) 

£5k  

Soil up and planting scheme round 
metal installation 

£800 

Opposite Springfield Park  Plant 8 cherry trees street verges £1k 

Balderstone Park meadow Spray, Rotavate and re-seed in house £350 

Broadfield Park meadow Spray, Rotavate and re-seed in house £250 

Broadfield Slopes first 
phase replanting 

Shrub removal, weed spraying and 
tree felling 

£4k 

Maintenance path construction £2k 

Tree and shrub replanting £6k 

Boulder relocation £800 

Bridge up-lighting £2k 

St Chad’s traffic island Strip turf, re-soil ready for planting £300 

Plants £500 

St Chad’s old graveyard Tree felling and stump grinding, shrub 
bed removal and re-soiling 

£3k 

Selected tree re-planting, turfing and 
limited flower planting scheme 

£1,500 

St Chad’s Gardens 
(opposite Packer Spout) 

Stripping out all the old shrub beds, 
re-soiling and turfing 

£1,000 

Potential tree felling and re-planting  £2,500 

Planting scheme (seek £5k Township grant) £6k  

Daventry Road planting 
scheme 

Strip turf, re-soil and purchase plants £1,500 

Sudden Junction Annual 
Flower Meadow 

Weed spray, Rotavate and re-seed £400 

Edenfield Road rockery Purchase boulder, soiling up, plants £nil Township project 

Total Rochdale Costs £42,300 
 Page 123



Page 124

Worrall Sharron_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4B



APPENDIX 5 

“Participants became more aware of how their 
action or inaction could impact the 
environment and how they could contribute 
towards conservation and behavioural 
changes” 
M Habibul Ahad 
Centre Manager, Bangladesh Association 

and Community Project 

Recipient: Bangladesh Association and Community Project 

Project: Promoting Environmental Awareness & Cohesion 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £1,590 

Bangladesh Association and Community Project (BACP) is a well-established charitable 
organisation providing support and services to the local community.  BACP delivered a 
project to raise the environmental awareness of residents and encourage them to behaviour 
more responsibly in matters of reducing waste and recycling thereby supporting Rochdale 
Council’s environmental initiatives and priorities. 

The project consisted of environmental/recycling awareness sessions, educational visits to 
recycling centres, Love Food Hate Waste cooking sessions and community clean ups.  Five 
environmental/recycling awareness sessions delivered provided participants with an overview 
of why it is important to look after the environment, the ways in which they can become more 
environmentally conscious and responsible by implementing the concepts of ‘reduce’, ‘reuse’ 
and ‘recycle’ in their daily lives and practical demonstrates of the correct use of recycling 
bins.  Educational visits were organised to Longley Lane Recycling Facility in Sharston, 
Wythenshawe and Bolton Recovery Facility and Education Centre.  Participants gained first-
hand knowledge about household recycling procedures of segregation, treatment and 
processing to create raw materials for new recycled end products, and how recycled waste is 
turned into energy.  The visits included children from a local play scheme with the aim of 
inspiring the right environmental behaviour from an early age. 

Page 125



Love Food Hate Waste cooking sessions imparted knowledge about different ways to 
reduce food waste and introduced participants to recipes using leftovers.  Saving food saves 
money and helps to slow down global warming and deforestation.  Throwing good food 
away costs the average person in the UK around £200 a year. 

The community clean ups aimed to promote community cohesion and a sense of pride in 
their neighbourhood with elderly, adult and young residents encouraged to participate in 
litter picks.  The two clean ups were well attended with 37 participants who collected 30+ 
bags of litter. 

BACP has experienced increased visits from residents requesting kitchen bins and bags and 
parents expressing a wish for their children to be involved in the next community clean up.  
The project has had a positive effect on the community and achieved what it set out to 
deliver. 

Page 126



“…allow us to be a more self-sufficient 
community” 
Denise Kay 
Secretary, Jack McCann Court 

Residents Association 

Recipient: Jack McCann Residents Association 

Project: Jack McCann Rejuvenation 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £1,329.19 

Jack McCann Residents Association aims to represent the community residing in the 
retirement and sheltered housing at Jack McCann Court, improve their quality of life and 
monitor the housing and other services provision.  The association encourages residents to 
socialise in communal areas to develop friendships and take part in activities to distract them 
from the day to day stresses in their lives. 

Residents were consulted on improvements that could be made to the communal areas and 
equipment that could support their calendar of social activities.  The walls of the communal 
areas were enhanced with a selection of artwork consisting of large framed abstract canvas 
prints.  A laptop with inkjet printer and stationery was acquired and located in a secure 
communal area for residents to develop their IT skills and not rely on others to prepare 
letters, send emails or copy documents.  Also this equipment supports the operational 
requirements of the association such as arranging and promoting functions, organising trips 
and servicing their monthly meetings.  The association has regular social evenings and 
supplies for bingo ensured the continuation of this activity enjoyed by the residents. 

Page 127



“The final solution exceeded the 
expectation of the group.  A finished result 
which benefits all” 
Gill Morrell 
Treasurer, Rochdale & Bury Bridleways 

Association 

Recipient: Rochdale & Bury Bridleways Association 

Project: Taylor Park Bridleway 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £1,920 

Rochdale & Bury Bridleways Association promote the bridleways network in the area 
between Bury, Rochdale and Rossendale by ensuring that existing bridleways remain open 
and ride-able and by seeking the creation of further bridleways. 

The clearance and reinstatement of the Taylor Park bridle path (running from Bagslate Moor 
Road behind the houses lining Taylor Park to meet up with the other bridleway across 
Rochdale Golf Course) involving the removal of ten years of overgrown vegetation and 
provision of a cinder surface to make this route accessible again.  The reinstatement of the 
bridle path has benefited dog walkers, ramblers and horse riders and supports the 
environmental efforts of Friends of Taylor Park and Rochdale Golf Club.  Horse riders use the 
path as an alternative route to riding across the adjacent field which has poor drainage.  
Bridleways ensure there is minimal need for horse riders to use the main roads for riding and 
thus reduce the risk and occurrence of accidents involving vehicles and horses. 

The improvement to the paths has achieved a significant positive impact on the leisure 
activities of a number of local groups as well as enhancing the amenity value for the area. 

Before After 

Page 128



“…with these workshops we got to know 
the issues and experiences of the deaf 
community on a more personal basis” 
Obydur Choudhury 
Secretary 

Rochdale Deaf Rhinos 

Recipient: Rochdale Deaf Rhinos 

Project: Deaf Workshops 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £1,000 

Rochdale Deaf Rhinos Football Club was established in 2010 to provide facilities, promote 
the game of association football, arrange matches and social activities for its members and 
encourage community participation.  The club specialises in planning and delivering football 
activities for deaf people.  As a deaf led organisation, the club has personal insight into the 
issues faced by people who are deaf and they are dedicated to the empowerment of the deaf 
community. 

Service provision for the local deaf community is limited and the Rochdale Deaf Rhinos 
decided to address this issue with monthly workshops to provide communication support 
services with the focus on employment, health, inter-faith dialogue and sociable aspects for 
the deaf and hearing impaired community.  The workshops were planned and organised by 
volunteers and delivered by qualified British Sign Language (BSL) interpreters. 

A dedicated volunteer was given the opportunity to attend BSL courses that enhanced the 
communication between the volunteer and the deaf club members.  The club aims to 
continue the training of the volunteer with the hope they will qualify as an interpreter and 
promote improved communication between deaf and hearing members of the club and teach 
the skills to other volunteers. 

Page 129



“The Singers Group comes away from 
concerts energised and happy and with a 
great sense of achievement that 
audiences are able and willing to 
participate” 
Barbara Bergin 

Secretary, Young at Heart

Recipient: Young at Heart 

Project: Carry On Singing and Dancing 

Fund: Project Funds 

Awarded: £2,200 

Young at Heart provides group activities for older people living in Kirkholt and the 
surrounding area with the aim of promoting physical health and mobility, and encouraging 
social interaction to enhance their mental health and wellbeing. 

Members of Young at Heart have enjoyed participating in weekly dance classes, a singing 
group and winter indoor bowls.  The Singers Group have provided much appreciated 
entertainment for older people in residential care homes and local community events.  The 
organiser of Carders Court Summer Fete invited the Singers to perform and visit each unit to 
sing for those residents who were housebound.  Christmas concerts were held at Ashbourne 
House, Lyndhurst, Fieldhouse and Syke Luncheon Club and during the summer at Lyndhurst 
and Trinity Methodist Drop-in.  Five singers joined the Residents’ Choir for the Gracie Fields 
unveiling and the group performed at the Kirkholt Christmas Switch On event. 

Young at Heart’s forty members benefit from social inclusion in an environment that 
encourages mutual support and friendships. 

“Groups like this are vital for people who live alone, especially if they haven’t regular contact 
with friends.  We are all grateful to the wonderful people who give up their time to enrich the 
lives of many in their community and beyond” 

Member of Young at Heart 

Page 130



“We believe we have been very 
successful in promoting the civic twinning 
and the association friendship with 
Tourcoing.  …enjoying and participating 
in a wide range of activities served to 
foster social connections” 
Kathryn Rennie 
General Secretary 

Friends of Tourcoing Association 

Recipient: Friends of Tourcoing Association 
Project: Friends of Tourcoing Association celebration for 50 years of Civic Twinned 

Township Friendship 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £500 

Friends of Tourcoing Association aims to interest and inform the people of the Rochdale 
Borough about France and in particular the twinned town of Tourcoing.  The association 
promotes friendship, mutual respect and diversity.  The civic twinning relationship with 
Tourcoing has achieved 60 years and the friendship group a fantastic 50 years, bringing 
English and French together in community spirit and warm relationship.  Local people are 
offered the opportunity to engage in friendly social activities throughout the year and in 
particular, to access a bi annual trip to France to meet Les Amis de Rochdale, enjoying a 
civic reception from the Mayor of Tourcoing and sightseeing.  Many members have 
established solid friendships with their hosts over the years and return the hospitality to the 
French when they come to England to visit.  Friends of Tourcoing members actively take part 
in community events within the borough and contribute to the Mayor’s Charity as they have 
enjoyed civic patronage since their formation. 

A programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing association friendship 
and 60 years of civic twinning promoted a positive image of the borough and its people.  
Friends of Tourcoing worked in partnership with community organisations and a school and 
patronised local businesses who all received credit for contributing to a successful visit. 

Page 131



Caldershaw Primary School (linked with Condorcet Primary School in Tourcoing) children 
hosted an afternoon of games and gave a choir performance, students from Hopwood Hall 
College made and presented a celebratory cake and local potter Ken Isherwood produced 
commemorative bowls for the visitors.  The venues of the Coop Museum, Touchstones, 
Greater Manchester Fire Service Museum and St John The Baptist Church welcomed the 
visitors with special tours and entertainment was provided throughout the visit with 
performances from St Ann’s Morris Troupe, Milnrow, Wardle Senior Band and Skylight Circus 
Arts.  The Civic Dinner at Rochdale Town Hall hosted by the Mayor and Mayoress attended 
by the French guests of Deputy Mayor Didier Droart, President of Les Amis de Rochdale 
Mme Marie-Christine Lejenun, French Councillors Dorian and Sebastian Becue and Peter 
Maenout with other members of Les Amis de Rochdale was a special occasion with catering 
provided by Crofters and a performance by Lancashire Fusiliers Corp of Drums.  The local 
economy benefited from the visit with the French guests dining at local restaurants, hiring 
local transport and buying numerous souvenirs. 

Friends of Tourcoing Association considered the highlight of the programme was the 
spectacular celebration with 140 people at the 50th Celebration Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall.  The occasion was an opportunity to recognise special members of both Friends of 
Tourcoing and Les Amis de Rochdale.  Gifts were presented to Mrs Dorothy Forshaw in 
recognition of 50 years membership of Friends of Tourcoing and Christopher Dobby received 
a gift for having been a member of Les Amis since 1966 and at the age of 92 continues to 
take part in the exchanges.  Jean-Pierre Collado was presented with a gift in recognition of 
his contribution to Twinning and this was his 115th visit to Rochdale.  He began in 1971 as 
organiser of exchanges for schools and community groups and is remembered by many 
children now adults in the Rochdale Borough.  The programme of activities in 2016 to 
celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing friendship consolidated the association’s aims and 
aspirations. 

Page 132



Page 133



“Our volunteers and service users have 
thoroughly enjoyed the project and are 
proud of what they have achieved” 

Denis Skelton, Coordinator 

Petrus Community 

Recipient: Petrus Community 

Project: Petrus Incredible Medical Allotment 

Fund: Clean & Green Priority Fund and Communities & Engagement 

Priority Fund 

Awarded: £2,500 and £947.03 

Petrus Community provides services to vulnerable adults in housing need.  Individuals can 
feel valued and realise their potential by being involved in daily activities that will enable 
them to regain a higher level of independence and make a positive contribution to the 
community. 

Petrus Incredible Edible Rochdale (PIER) is a gardening project delivered by Petrus 
Community that provides service users with the opportunity to learn new skills, engage with 
the wider community and improve their health and wellbeing through working on a range of 
gardening related activities around Rochdale. 

Petrus Community acquired a plot of land on Entwistle Road near the Croft Shifa Medical 
Centre that they have developed into a community allotment site.  Community/residents 
groups had identified the need for shelter, storage, tools and toilet facilities.  Provision of a 
shipping container offers shelter from the elements and storage for tools rather than 
transporting them to and from the site.  A chemical toilet provided more flexibility 
concerning the length of time working on the site and facilities during weekend events.  The 
tools ensured equipment is accessible for all interested in participating in activities at the 
allotment. 

Page 134



Local nurseries expressed an interested in using the allotment site to add gardening 
activities and food growing to the curriculum.  Also young people are encouraged to use the 
space to learn about the natural world.  Three picnic benches have been installed in the 
children’s educational area and several raised beds plus a mud pie pit at the request of the 
home educators group.  Donations of timber allowed Petrus Community to build a mud pie 
kitchen and toddler work station where they can explore the use of child appropriate hand 
tools such as children’s trowels and watering cans without damaging plants in the main food 
growing beds. 

A seating area for people to relax and enjoy the community garden has been created.  Three 
large picnic benches have been installed and the area planted with flowers and bulbs.  This 
area provides valuable seating for those people with mobility issues and a space for other 
activities such as educational and crafts plus food events using the produce grown on site. 

Petrus Community have attracted match funding to further develop the seating and 
educational areas with a pocket park, creating more established planting schemes and an 
orchard next to the children’s area.  In addition, a more stable pathway into the allotment 
through a series of archways, a patio area for the cooking sessions in the summer and a 
large wooden gazebo to provide a sheltered seating area. 

Petrus Incredible Medical Allotment has had a positive effect on Petrus Community 
volunteers and service users as it has given them the opportunity to engage with members 
of the local community.  The picnic benches are used by staff from Croft Shifa Health Centre 
and local businesses during their lunch breaks and they have also adopted some of the 
raised beds.  KYP Little Angels and Seeros nurseries and the home educators group use the 
children’s raised beds to grow food.  The local community are welcomed into this green 
haven to grow flowers or food and enjoy the variety of wildlife that visit the site with events 
and activities organised to promote the health and wellbeing benefits of the Petrus Incredible 
Medical Allotment. 

“One of the biggest highlights was seeing people who normally access the allotment coming 
in to use the picnic area.  It has meant that it has opened up the space to a much wider 
audience.  Also, the positive comments from people passing by has had a hugely positive 
effect on the confidence of our volunteers and service users” 

Denis Skelton 

Coordinator, Petrus Community 

Page 135



‘It’s already made a difference for 

the local community brightening 

the area as they take children to 

school and go to the shops.  Gives 

volunteers a real sense of 

achievement.’ 

“…it has made the site more accessible and appealing to the wider community particularly 
because it has provided us with a greater ability to host events at the site with all the 
necessary amenities on site.  In addition by having more tools on site we are able to have 
larger groups on site working with us” 

Denis Skelton 

Coordinator, Petrus Community 

Page 136



“It has been great to see the children’s 
confidence grow when completing 
challenging projects” 
Justine Bull 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Balderstone Library 

Recipient: Balderstone Library 

Project: Balderstone Library Lego Club and Coding Club 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £3,412.09 

Balderstone Library is a community hub for various groups/individuals and organisations with 
resources made available to help people gain access to free information, learn, improve their 
health and aspire.  The library is an integral part of the community in bringing young and old 
people from all backgrounds together to create a fun, safe and learning environment for 
everyone. 

A Lego Club and Children’s Coding Club was established to engage with local young 
people with activities that promote creativity, problem solving, enhance communication 
skills, develop critical thinking and literacy ability.  The grant funded the purchase of Lego 
pieces, base boards and storage containers, and six laptops with a secure storage/charging 
cupboard.  The aim of the clubs was to introduce more children to the library and also 
encourage children and their parents/carers to be more innovative together.  These clubs 
support the national curriculum as part of STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and 
Maths). 

Page 137



“Both clubs have been very successful in attracting new customers to the library including a 
lot of boys who we sometimes struggle to engage with” 

Justine Bull 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Balderstone Library 

Page 138



Page 139



“the arts allows us to communicate with 
people we didn’t know before, we make 
friends with them, we became friends for 
the rest of our lives” 

Project Participant 

Recipient: Multicultural Arts and Media Centre 

Project: My Journey Through The Arts 

Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 

Awarded: £2,475 

Multicultural Arts and Media Centre (MAMC) is a non-profit making organisation which works 
to raise standards of achievement and the quality of learning in the chosen area of the arts 
and media for all learners and audiences, leading to better understanding, skills and career 
opportunities, particularly with disadvantaged groups. 

Journey Through The Arts project involved people from diverse backgrounds participating in 
a film to capture their personal experiences and share how the medium of art has influenced 
their lives.  The beneficiaries from the Rochdale Township area were given the opportunity to 
get involved in: 

 the artistic and creative process that enabled participants to look at their needs and ideas
for the production

 ensure beneficiaries are treated equally, fairly and are valued in their contribution

 the production of a film (27 minutes on DVD format and uploaded on YouTube at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yrKWqAeL6KA

 all the areas/roles that are entailed within the production process

 Screening of work produced on 19 December 2016 to a wider audience at MAMC
(YouTube link of the screening at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3IXAOOovW2o)

The project enabled participants to promote positive relationships, friendships and change 
through the medium of art, share knowledge and experiences across generations and 
improve self-esteem through skills acquired and social interaction to capture experiences 
through audio and film. 

Page 140



“The participants were able to express their enjoyment and life journey through the 
involvement or engagement in the arts.  The arts seems to help them focus, try something 
they enjoyed and gave a purpose in life.  They felt that filming of their experiences has 
connected with the wider community and increased chances through participating in other 
arts activities, including those offered through MAMC.” 

Mohammed Sarwar 

Chief Executive, Multicultural Arts and Media Centre 

Page 141



“As we are a mental health project and 
all the beneficiaries have mental health 
problems the fact that no one wanted to 
give up and pulled together to make 
everything right was an amazing 
achievement in itself” 
Karen Hayday 

Director, Hourglass Environment 

Recipient: Hourglass Environment 

Project: The Growth Project (Flood Alleviation) 

Fund: Ward Fund and Clean & Green Priority Fund 

Awarded: £2,430 and £1,642.36 

The Growth Project works with people who suffer from both mental and physical health 
issues to educate them in horticultural techniques, building and joinery skills that are 
transferable to both the home and the work place.  It improves the wellbeing of our client 
group thus making it less likely that they will need primary or secondary medical 
intervention.  Suicide rates among men in Rochdale are significantly higher than the 
national average and one of the very unique features about the Growth Project is that 
75% of the services users are male.  The Growth Project takes disused brown field sites 
and turns these areas into green productive spaces which add value to the local 
community making a safer, greener and a more pleasant place to live. 

On Boxing day 2015 the Growth Project’s allotment site on Kellett Street, Rochdale was 
severely flooded under on average 10 foot of water after the river broke its banks and 
flowed directly through the site.  The flooding destroyed all the fences in the site, moved a 
container the size of a double garage to the other side of the allotment site, washed away 
all the paths, damaged the straw bale building, capsized the toilet and caused damage to 
both equipment and materials.  All the winter vegetables had to be destroyed in the 
aftermath as they were all contaminated.  Rubbish and property from other plots plus 
sewage and silt were deposited all over the site. 

The Growth Project commenced work to rebuild the site in January 2016 that involved 
relocating the container back onto the site, replacing all fences and gravel paths, 
reinstating the woodworking station, acquiring new tools and equipment to replace those 
that had been lost to the flood and rebuilding the straw bale building that was the 
completion of the works in October 2016. 

“We opened for the first time under the National Garden Scheme, the sun shone and we 
had over 90 guests, after all the hard work you could honestly say that the site looked 
like it had never been flooded” 

Karen Hayday 

Director, Hourglass Environmental 

Page 142



The container on the move (it was located 

near the green shed) 

The poly tunnel is 12 feet high and only 

approx. 2 feet is above the water 

View towards the woodworking station Whole site under water 

Debris collecting on the site The plastic marks where the road and 

houses are located 

Page 143



The straw bale after the flood and the 

remains of the fences 

New paths in the same location 

The poly tunnel after the flood The poly tunnel cleaned and re-seeded 

The container flowed to its final resting 
place 

The container being moved back on site by 

crane 

Page 144



Devastated paths after flood Reinstated paths and beds 

View towards the woodworking station after 
the flood 

Woodworking station after being renovated 

Damage to the fence pushed the whole 
structure over 

Working in the woodworking station after 

renovated 

Page 145



Overview of devastation New fences and paths 

Area next to straw bale where container use 
to be located 

New fences and paths at the new site of the 

container

New fences near car park New paths 

Page 146



New beds by fences New edging and paths on all the beds to keep 

in the soil 

National Garden Scheme Open Day Community enjoying the floral displays 

Visitors viewing the photos of the flooding 
devastation 

Serving food at the woodworking station 

Page 147


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	3 Central Rochdale Area Forum
	Central AF 1-12-16

	4 Sparth Area Forum
	5 Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum
	6 Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum
	7 Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum
	8 Healey Area Forum
	9 Kingsway Area Forum
	Kingsway AF 16-2-17

	10 Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
	11 Norden Area Forum
	12 Spotland and Falinge Area Forum
	13 Rochdale Township Clean and Green Priority Group
	14 Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority Group
	15 Edenfield Road, Rochdale - Sandy Lane to Cutgate – Objections to Traffic Order
	Edenfield Road, Rochdale - Sandy Lane to Cutgate – Objections to Traffic Order enc. 1

	16 Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 1 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 2 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 3 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4A - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4B - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 5 - Rochdale Township Funds 2016/17




